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UNIVERSITY OF MINNESOTA 
BOARD OF REGENTS 

 
Board of Regents December 14, 2012 
 
Agenda Item:   Recognition of Senior Vice President, Academic Administration,            

University of Minnesota System 
 

  review   review/action   action   discussion 
 
Presenters: President Eric W. Kaler  
 
Purpose: 
 

 policy   background/context  oversight   strategic positioning 
 
To recognize Robert J. Jones, Senior Vice President, Academic Administration, University of 
Minnesota System 
 
Outline of Key Points/Policy Issues: 
 
Robert J. Jones has served as senior vice president for Academic Administration, University of 
Minnesota System, since 2004. In this senior leadership role, he has overseen a broad portfolio 
of programs and initiatives that provide core support for academic programs across the 
University of Minnesota system and that extend the University's academic mission statewide 
and globally.  Dr. Jones will assume the presidency of the University at Albany, a campus of 
the State University of New York system, in January 2013. 
 
Jones's leadership responsibilities have included oversight of central academic support, 
statewide/systemwide academic programs and resources, and University-wide programs of 
public engagement and outreach. His portfolio has included the four coordinate campuses, 
international programs, public engagement and outreach, diversity and multicultural affairs, 
preK-12 and other youth and family programs, urban initiatives, planning and institutional 
research, information technology, human resources, institutional strategic leadership 
University of Minnesota Extension, and other University statewide initiatives. 
 
Prior to his current appointment, Jones served over 15 years in key administrative leadership 
positions at the University of Minnesota-Twin Cities, including vice president and executive 
vice provost for faculty and academic programs, vice president for campus life and vice provost 
for faculty and academic personnel, and interim vice president for student development. 
A native of rural Dawson, Georgia, Jones has over three decades of higher education 
leadership experience as well as academic expertise spanning plant physiology and urban and 
international development.  
 
He earned a bachelor’s degree in agronomy from Fort Valley State College, a master of science 
degree in crop physiology from the University of Georgia, and a doctorate in crop physiology 
from the University of Missouri, Columbia. After earning the Ph.D., he joined the University of 
Minnesota faculty as a professor of agronomy and plant genetics. He is an internationally 
recognized authority on plant physiology and has published numerous scientific papers, 
manuscripts and abstracts. His research focuses on the role of cytokinins in stabilizing grain 
yields of maize against environmental stresses and global climate change. Over his career, he 
has trained many students who have gone on to leading careers in higher education and 
research. 
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Jones is a fellow of both the American Society of Agronomy and the Crop Science Society of 
America. He has been a visiting professor and featured speaker in North America, Europe, 
Asia and Africa, and from 1984 to 1994 served as an academic and scientific consultant for 
Archbishop Desmond Tutu’s South African Education Program. In 2010, he was awarded a 
University of Minnesota endowed chair in urban and international development; he was also 
named a recipient of the Michael P. Malone International Leadership Award by the 
Association of Public and Land-Grant Universities (APLU). 
 
Background Information: 
 
The Certificate of Appreciation may be awarded to any person for contributions or services at 
the collegiate or all-University level. 
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UNIVERSITY OF MINNESOTA 
BOARD OF REGENTS 

 
Board of Regents December 14, 2012 
 
Agenda Item:  Recognition of Vice President for Research 
 

  review   review/action   action   discussion 
 
Presenters: President Eric W. Kaler  
 
Purpose: 
 

 policy   background/context  oversight   strategic positioning 
 
To recognize R. Timothy Mulcahy, Vice President for Research. 
 
Outline of Key Points/Policy Issues: 
 
R. Timothy Mulcahy was appointed vice president for research at the University of Minnesota 
in February 2005. He has been responsible for the oversight and administration of an 
externally funded research program of more than $800 million, which encompasses all five 
campuses in the U of M system. 
 
Mulcahy has played a lead role in supporting the evolution of new research, maintaining a 
competitive research infrastructure, developing research policies, and overseeing sponsored 
research activity. He has also been responsible for technology commercialization activities at 
the university and for the administration of regulatory offices associated with research. 
Prior to his appointment at the U of M, Mulcahy served as associate vice chancellor for 
research policy at the University of Wisconsin-Madison from 2002 to 2005. From 1996 to 2002, 
he served as the associate dean for biological sciences at UW and managed the research and 
graduate education activities of some 40 departments or programs, 676 faculty, and nearly 
1,700 graduate students. 
 
Mulcahy earned his bachelor's degree in biology from the University of Rochester in 1973 and 
his doctorate in pathology and radiological sciences from the University of Wisconsin-Madison 
in 1979. In 1981, he joined the faculty of the experimental therapeutics program at the 
University of Rochester Cancer Center. In 1985, he was recruited to the University of 
Wisconsin, where he achieved the rank of full professor in 1991. 
 
His research has focused on cancer biology with an emphasis on the development of novel 
therapeutic approaches and the molecular mechanisms of tumor cell resistance to conventional 
chemotherapy. He has trained numerous graduate students, postdocs, and medical fellows, 
and has published more than 85 research papers in peer-reviewed journals. 
 
Background Information: 
 
The Certificate of Appreciation may be awarded to any person for contributions or services at 
the collegiate or all-University level. 
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UNIVERSITY OF MINNESOTA 
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Board of Regents December 14, 2012 
 
Agenda Item:  Recognition of President and CEO, University of Minnesota Foundation 
 

  review   review/action   action   discussion 
 
Presenters: President Eric W. Kaler  
 
Purpose: 
 

 policy   background/context  oversight   strategic positioning 
 
To recognize L. Steven Goldstein, President and Chief Executive Officer, University of 
Minnesota Foundation. 
 
Outline of Key Points/Policy Issues: 
 
L. Steven Goldstein has served as the President and CEO of the University of Minnesota 
Foundation since 2008.  He joined the Foundation as vice president for strategic initiatives in 
2005 where he was responsible for generating additional revenue by advancing 
commercialization of university intellectual property and developing non-strategic real estate 
assets. During his tenure, he has successfully led the Foundation to new levels of growth and 
effectiveness in a particularly challenging economic environment. Under his leadership, the 
Foundation tied its all-time record for annual gift-production, reaching $194 million in FY 
2012. That same fiscal year the foundations together distributed a record $169 million in 
private dollars to benefit the entire University community. Goldstein led the way to reaching 
these milestones by building strong partnerships with the Minnesota Medical Foundation, 
University leaders, and many others across the University. He ably guided the transition to a 
new University president, helping secure an unprecedented commitment to fundraising from 
the University’s top leader. His commitment to operational excellence and a strong and 
sustainable financial model has helped channel more dollars to those who most need the 
support. 
 
Goldstein was born and raised in St. Louis Park, MN and graduated from the University of 
Minnesota in 1973 with a degree in history and began a 13-year career with Carmichael-Lynch 
Advertising, where he eventually became senior vice president. He then served as vice 
president and general manager of WCCO Radio in Minneapolis, until 1992. 
 
In 1992, Goldstein co-founded Colfax Communications, where he acquired, operated and 
subsequently sold 17 major market radio stations.  In 1997 he became chairman of Internet 
Broadcasting, a national network of television Web sites with partners Hearst Corporation, 
Washington Post Newsweek, McGraw Hill and CNN.  About the same time he became 
involved in venture capital with St. Paul Venture Capital and launched Quatris Fund, an 
early stage venture fund, in 2000. 
 
Before coming to work for the University, Goldstein served as national president of the 
University of Minnesota Alumni Association and served multiple terms as a University of 
Minnesota Foundation trustee. With his wife, Mary, he established an endowed scholarship to 
provide financial assistance to future generations of students following in their footsteps on 
campus.  
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Background Information: 
 
The Certificate of Appreciation may be awarded to any person for contributions or services at 
the collegiate or all-University level. 
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UNIVERSITY OF MINNESOTA 
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Board of Regents December 14, 2012 
 
 
Agenda Item:   Receive and File Reports 
 

  review   review/action   action   discussion 
 
 
Presenters: Regent Linda Cohen 

 
 
 
Purpose: 
 

 policy   background/context  oversight   strategic positioning 
 

 
 
Outline of Key Points/Policy Issues: 
 
 
Background Information: 
 
The following items are included for receipt and filing: 
 

A) Quarterly Report on Grant and Contract Activity 
B) Annual Financial Report 
C) Annual Eastcliff Report 
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Fiscal  Year  2013

First  Quarter  Data:    July  -‐  September,  2012
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University  of  Minnesota

Quarterly  Report  of  Grant  and  Contract  Activity
Fiscal  Year  2013  First  Quarter:  July  thru  September,  2012

322 264 746 264
134 134 313 134
198 176 560 176

654 574 1619 574

273 246 1193 246
351 370 1453 370

624 616 2646 616

81 98 371 98

1359 1288 4636 1288

Award  Summary  by  Sponsor  -‐  Award  Counts

Table  1:  Qtr  1  and  Fiscal  Year  comparisons.

Business  &  Industry
Other  Private

Total  Private

State  &  Local

Grand  Total

Agency

NIH
NSF
Other  Federal

Total  Federal

Figure  1:  Number  of  Awards  by  Sponsor.

FY12 FY13 FY12  (Q1-‐4) FY13  (Q1)

Table  1:  Number  of  Awards

Quarter  1 YTD

Comparison  of  Fiscal  Year  2013  versus  Fiscal  Year  2012.      (For  numerical  data,  see  Table  1  below.)
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Federal  -‐  NIH
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Federal  -‐  Other

Total  Federal

Private  -‐  Bus  &  Ind

Private  -‐  Other

Total  Private

State  &  Local

Grand  Total

Number  of  Grants  and  Contracts  Awarded  by  Sponsor  

FY13  Q1

FY12  Q1

FY12  Total
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University  of  Minnesota

Quarterly  Report  of  Grant  and  Contract  Activity
Fiscal  Year  2013  First  Quarter:  July  thru  September,  2012

121 102 286 102
36 34 68 34
41 48 154 48

198 184 508 184

9 10 55 10
34 27 125 27

43 37 180 37

15 26 61 26

256 247 749 247

Award  Summary  by  Sponsor  -‐  Awarded  Amounts

Business  &  Industry
Other  Private

Total  Private

State  &  Local

Grand  Total

Table  2:  Qtr  1  and  Fiscal  Year  comparisons.

FY12  (Q1-‐4) FY13  (Q1)

NIH
NSF
Other  Federal

Total  Federal

Figure  2:  Award  Totals  by  Sponsor.

Comparison  of  Fiscal  Year  2013  versus  Fiscal  Year  2012.    (For  numerical  data,  see  Table  2  below.)

Table  2:  Total  Dollars  Awarded  (Millions)

Agency

Quarter  1 YTD
FY12 FY13

$0 $100 $200 $300 $400 $500 $600 $700 $800

Federal  -‐  NIH
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Federal  -‐  Other

Total  Federal

Private  -‐  Bus  &  Ind

Private  -‐  Other

Total  Private

State  &  Local

Grand  Total

Grants  and  Contracts  Dollars  Awarded  by  Sponsor  (Millions)  

FY13  Q1

FY12  Q1

FY12  Total
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University  of  Minnesota

Quarterly  Report  of  Grant  and  Contract  Activity
Fiscal  Year  2013  First  Quarter:  July  thru  September,  2012

Figure  3:    Quarter  Comparison  -‐  All  Sources.
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University  of  Minnesota

Quarterly  Report  of  Grant  and  Contract  Activity
Fiscal  Year  2013  First  Quarter:  July  thru  September,  2012

Figure  5:    Grants  and  Contracts  Awarded  by  Colleges:    Units  with  Less  than  $10  Million  Awarded  Annually.

*Other  Units  includes:  Ofc  of  Information  Technology,  Global  Programs  &  Strategy,  UM  Morris,  UM  Crookston,  Scholarly  &  
Cultural  Affairs,  Student  Affairs,  System  Acad  Admin,  UM  Rochester,  Public  Safety,  and  Health  Sciences  Admin.

Award  Summary  by  College

Figure  4:    Grants  and  Contracts  Awarded  by  Colleges:    Units  with  Greater  than  $10  Million  Awarded  

Annually.
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2012 2011 Explanation  of  significant  changes  in  balances

Assets:

Current  Assets:

Cash  &  cash  equivalents 167,751             243,093           (75,342)       -‐31%

Decrease  based  on  University's  strategy  that  reduces  funds  held  in  cash  

accounts  and  moved  into  temporary  investment  pools  

Short-‐term  investments 133,586             52,265               81,321         156%

Increase  based  on  University's  strategy  that  increases  funds  going  into  

the  temporary  investment  pools  thus  reducing  amounts  held  in  cash  

accounts

Receivables,  net 242,949             258,791           (15,842)       -‐6%

Inventories 23,325                 23,972               (647)                 -‐3%

Student  loans  receivable,  net 8,865                     8,723                   142                   2%

Prepaid  Expenses  &  deferred  charges 8,464                     3,490                   4,974             143%

Increase  due  to  increase  in  library  subscriptions  and  other  

departmental  prepaid  expenses

Other  assets 221                           221                           -‐                     0%

Total  current  assets 585,161             590,555           (5,394)           -‐1%

Noncurrent  assets:

Restricted  cash  and  cash  equivalents 187,769             175,939           11,830         7% Increase  in  unspent  bond  proceeds

Investments 1,725,670     1,595,855     129,815     8%

$125.6m  -‐    increase  in  LT  TIP  (Temporary  investment  pools)  due  to  

decrease  in  distributions  to  departments  and  the  University's  strategy  

to  hold  more  of  these  funds  in  investment  accounts

Receivables,  net 548                           562                           (14)                     -‐2%

Student  loan  receivables,  net 52,939                 53,811               (872)                 -‐2%

Prepaid  expenses  and  deferred  charges 4,999                     3,957                   1,042             26%

Increase  due  to  increase  in  library  subscriptions  and  other  

departmental  prepaid  expenses

Other  assets 13                               27                               (14)                     -‐52%

Capital  assets,  net 2,696,951     2,605,072     91,879         4%

Increased  spending  on  capital  projects,  specifically  the  Biomedical  

Discovery  District  projects

Total  noncurrent  assets 4,668,889     4,435,223     233,666     5%

Total  assets 5,254,050     5,025,778     228,272     5%

Liabilities:

Current  liabilities:

Accounts  payable 144,073             141,091           2,982             2%

Accrued  liabilities  and  other 228,360             227,498           862                   0%

Unearned  income 59,702                 59,818               (116)                 0%

Long-‐term  debt  -‐  current  portion 293,941             305,514           (11,573)       -‐4%

Total  current  liabilities 726,076             733,921           (7,845)           -‐1%

Noncurrent  Liabilities:

Accrued  liabilities  and  other 167,259             148,213           19,046         13% $18.9m  -‐  increase  in  other  post  employment  benefits  liability

Unearned  income 324                           497                           (173)                 -‐35% Timing  difference  due  to  normal  business  activity

Long-‐term  debt 932,448             839,905           92,543         11%

Increase  due  to  issuance  of:

          $52.5m  -‐  Series  2011B  Special  Purpose  Revenue  Bonds

          $19.3m  -‐  Series  2011C  General  Obligation  bonds

          $53.6m  -‐  Series  2011D  General  Obligation  bonds

Additions  were  offset  by  normal  amortization  of  the  bonds,  premiums,  

and  discounts

Total  noncurrent  liabilities 1,100,031     988,615           111,416     11%

Total  liabilities 1,826,107     1,722,536     103,571     6%

Net  Assets

Unrestricted 727,348             607,364           119,984     20%

Restricted              Expendable 784,443             802,858           (18,415)       -‐2%

                                                  Nonexpendable 265,156             253,609           11,547         5%

Invested  in  capital  assets,  net  of  related  

debt 1,650,996     1,639,411     11,585         1%

Total  net  assets 3,427,943     3,303,242     124,701     4%

Increase  /  

(Decrease)

$                                    %

University  of  Minnesota

Explanation  of  Consolidated  Statement  of  Net  Assets    (Page  20,  Annual  Report)

To  Accompany  Fiscal  Year  2012  Annual  Report

Excluding  Component  Units;  dollars  in  thousands
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2012 2011 Explanation  of  significant  changes  from  prior  year

Revenues:

Operating  revenues:

Student  tuition  and  fees,  net  of  scholarship  

allowances 696,278             634,042           62,236             10% Increase  due  to  tuition  rate  increase  and  slight  increase  in  enrollment

Federal  grants  and  contracts 510,687             491,723           18,964             4%

State  and  other  government  grants 59,631                 60,320               (689)                     -‐1%

Nongovernmental  grants  and  contracts 288,492             265,002           23,490             9%

$15.5m  -‐  Increase  related  to  increased  spending  on  contracts  (Revenue  

is  recognized  as  expenses  are  incurred).  

$    8.0m  -‐  New  awards  starting  in  FY2012

Student  loan  interest  income 1,866                     1,960                   (94)                         -‐5%

Sales  and  services  of  educational  activities,  

net  of  scholarship  allowances 160,230             117,870           42,360             36%

Increase  predominately  due  to  the  following:

$37.7m  -‐  Increase  in  Glaxo  royalty  payments

$    1.5m  -‐  Increase  in  proceeds  from  renewal  of  University  land  lease  

with  hotel

$      1.2m  -‐  Increase  in  Dentistry  clinical  revenue  rates  and  patient  

volume  

Auxiliary  enterprises,  net  of  scholarship  

allowances 351,571             345,537           6,034                 2%

Other  operating  revenues 162                           2,606                   (2,444)               -‐94%

$(2.5)m  -‐  decrease  related  to  a  change  in  recording  investment  

expenses.    Investment  expenses  are  now  netted  against  investment  

income

Total  operating  revenues   2,068,917     1,919,060     149,857       8%

Expenses

Operating  expenses:

Education  and  general:

Instruction 696,217             668,042           28,175             4% Slight  increase  in  enrollment

Research 633,199             625,655           7,544                 1%

Public  service 245,488             225,701           19,787             9% Increased  spending  on  sponsored  public  service  projects

Academic  support 360,626             359,816           810                       0%

Student  services 106,152             104,863           1,289                 1%

Institutional  support 189,040             193,997           (4,957)               -‐3%

Operation  and  maintenance  of  plant 254,553             264,888           (10,335)         -‐4%

Scholarships  and  fellowships 52,014                 52,310               (296)                     -‐1%

Depreciation 183,875             163,689           20,186             12% Increase  in  depreciation  due  to  new  assets  added  in  FY2012

Auxiliary  enterprises 227,397             226,996           401                       0%

Other  operating  expenses,  net (195)                         67                               (262)                     -‐391% Increase  in  Perkins  Loan  Fund  administrative  offset  /  credit

Total  operating  expenses 2,948,366     2,886,024     62,342             2%

Operating  Loss (879,449)         (966,964)         87,515             -‐9%

Nonoperating  Revenues  (Expenses)

Federal  appropriations 15,145                 69,416               (54,271)         -‐78%

Decrease  due  to  the  end  of  the  American  Recovery  and  Reinvestment  

Act  (Federal  Stimulus  Funds)

State  appropriations 572,075             623,300           (51,225)         -‐8% Decrease  in  appropriations  base  

Grants 176,656             174,534           2,122                 1%

Gifts 143,000             147,582           (4,582)               -‐3%

Investment  income,  net 36,895                 180,865           (143,970)     -‐80%

Decrease  due  to  unrealized  losses  on  investments  of  $39.2m  in  FY2012  

compared  to  gains  in  FY2011  of  $122.6m

Interest  on  capital-‐asset  related  debt (45,328)             (36,592)             (8,736)               24% Increase  due  to  increase  in  long-‐term  debt

Other  nonoperating  revenues  (expenses),  net 2,354                     (2,361)                 4,715                 -‐200%

$4.9m  -‐  Increase  due  to  legal  settlements  from  Vertellus  and  Union  

Pacific

Net  nonoperating  revenues 900,797             1,156,744     (255,947)     -‐22%

Income  Before  Other  Revenues 21,348                 189,780           (168,432)     -‐89%

Capital  appropriations 60,570                 75,801               (15,231)         -‐20% Decrease  due  to  timing  of  State  funding  for  capital  projects

Capital  grants  and  gifts 31,349                 44,813               (13,464)         -‐30%

$(26.3)m  -‐  decrease  in  Federal  stimulus  funds  due  to  the  end  of  the  

American  Recovery  and  Reinvestment  Act.    Decrease  offset  by  various  

gifts  to  the  University

Additions  to  permanent  endowments 11,434                 2,118                   9,316                 440%

$9.4m  -‐  increase  in  DNR  funding  related  to  the  Iron  Range  Merit  

Scholarship  and  the  Mineral  Research  Endowment

Total  other  revenues 103,353             122,732           (19,379)         -‐16%

Increase  In  Net  Assets 124,701             312,512           (187,811)     -‐60%

Net  assets  at  beginning  of  year 3,303,242     2,990,730     312,512         10%

Net  assets  at  end  of  year 3,427,943     3,303,242     124,701       4%

Increase  /  

(Decrease)

$                                        %

University  of  Minnesota

To  Accompany  Fiscal  Year  2012  Annual  Report

Excluding  Component  Units;  dollars  in  thousands

Explanation  of  Consolidated  Statement  of  Revenues,  Expenses  and  Changes  in  Net  Assets    (Page  25,  Annual  Report)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

The Board of Regents  
University of Minnesota 
Minneapolis, Minnesota 
 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of net assets of the University of Minnesota (the "University") as of 
June 30, 2012 and 2011, and the related consolidated statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets, and cash 
flows for the years then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the University’s management. 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.  We did not audit the financial 
statements of the discretely presented component units.  Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose 
reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar, as it relates to the amounts included for the discretely presented 
component units, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the University’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audits and the report of the other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, based on our audits and the reports of the other auditors, such financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the University as of June 30, 2012 and 2011, and the results of its operations and its cash flows 
for the years then ended and the financial statements of the discretely presented component units as of and for the years ended 
June 30, 2012 and 2011, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion and analysis 
and the schedule of funding progress, as listed in the table of contents, which are the responsibility of the University’s 
management, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of 
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We and 
other auditors have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to 
express an opinion or provide any assurance.   

 

 
 
October 31, 2012 
  

Deloitte & Touche LLP 

50 South Sixth Street 
Suite 2800 
Minneapolis, MN  55402 
USA 

Tel:   612 397 4000 
Fax:  612 397 4450 
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
(Unaudited) 
 

Introduction 

This discussion and analysis of the University of Minnesota’s (the University) consolidated financial 
statements provides an overview of the consolidated financial position and activities of the University for the 
years ended June 30, 2012, 2011, and 2010. The discussion has been prepared by management and should be 
read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes.  

The University of Minnesota is both the state’s land-grant university, with a strong tradition of education and 
public service, and a major research institution, with faculty of national and international reputation. Its 
mission is to offer undergraduate, graduate, and professional instruction through the doctoral degree, and to 
be the primary state-supported academic institution for research and extension services. 

The University of Minnesota, founded in 1851, has five campuses (Twin Cities, Duluth, Morris, Crookston, 
and Rochester), research and outreach centers, and extension service offices throughout the state.  

The Twin Cities campus is the fourth largest campus in the country in terms of enrollment (approximately 
52,000 students) and among the top nine public research institutions nationally. The University is the state’s 
major research institution with expenditures of approximately $633.2 million, $625.7 million, and $631.2 
million in fiscal years 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively, for research under various programs funded by 
governmental and private sources. 

The Duluth campus is a comprehensive regional university that offers instruction through the doctoral degree 
and has unique research strengths in natural and freshwater resources. The Duluth campus consistently ranks 
among the top Midwestern regional universities. 

The Morris campus is ranked as one of the top public liberal arts colleges in the nation and is a leader in 
environmental issues. 

The Crookston campus provides career-oriented education at the baccalaureate level, primarily in 
polytechnical disciplines. 

The Rochester campus is focused on meeting the educational needs of students in the southeastern Minnesota 
area at the upper division undergraduate and post-baccalaureate levels. 

Mission 

The University of Minnesota’s mission, carried out on multiple campuses and throughout the state, is 
threefold: research and discovery, teaching and learning, and outreach and public service. 

• Research and Discovery—To generate and preserve knowledge, understanding, and creativity by 
conducting high quality research, scholarship, and artistic activities that benefit students, scholars, 
and communities across the state, the nation, and the world. 

• Teaching and Learning—To share that knowledge, understanding, and creativity by providing a 
broad range of educational programs in a strong and diverse community of learners and teachers, and 
to prepare graduate, professional, and undergraduate students, as well as non-degree-seeking students 
interested in continuing education and lifelong learning, for active roles in a multiracial and 
multicultural world. 
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• Outreach and Public Service—To extend, apply, and exchange knowledge between the University 
and society by applying scholarly expertise to community problems, by helping organizations and 
individuals respond to their changing environments, and by making the knowledge and resources 
created and preserved at the University accessible to the citizens of the state, the nation, and the 
world. 

Operations 

The University of Minnesota conducts its mission activities at its campuses and other facilities throughout 
the state. Each year, the University of Minnesota: 

• provides instruction for approximately 68,400 students; 

• graduates approximately 15,000 students, 41 percent with graduate or first professional degrees on 
the Twin Cities campus; 

• conducts research sponsored by the National Institutes of Health, the National Science Foundation, 
other federal, state, and governmental agencies, and numerous private companies and foundations; 

• reaches out to more than one million Minnesotans through various outreach and public service 
activities. 

Consolidated Financial Statements 

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The consolidated financial 
statements required under these reporting standards include the Consolidated Statements of Net Assets; the 
Consolidated Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets; and the Consolidated 
Statements of Cash Flows. All are reported on a consolidated basis for the University as a whole. Also 
required are the financial results of the University’s legally separate component units. 

Financial Highlights 

The University’s financial position remains strong with assets of $5.2 billion and liabilities of $1.8 billion as 
of June 30, 2012 compared to assets of $5.0 billion and liabilities of $1.7 billion as of June 30, 2011.  Net 
Assets, the difference between total assets and total liabilities, increased year over year to $3.4 billion as of 
June 30, 2012 compared to $3.3 billion as of June 30, 2011.  
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The following chart summarizes total assets, liabilities and net assets for the periods ending June 30, 2012, 
2011, and 2010, respectively: 

 

 

Changes in net assets represents the financial results during the fiscal year and is the difference between total 
revenue and total expense.  Net assets increased $124.7 million in fiscal year 2012 and $312.5 million in 
fiscal year 2011. 

The following chart summarizes total revenues, expenses and the change in net assets for the periods ending 
June 30, 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively: 
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Operating revenues increased $149.9 million or 7.8 percent while operating expenses increased $62.3 million 
or 2.2 percent.  The result of operations reflects the University’s focus on academics, research and public 
service while continuing to focus on controlling operating expenses. 

Consolidated Statements of Net Assets 

The Consolidated Statements of Net Assets present the consolidated financial position of the University at 
the end of the fiscal year, under a classified balance sheet format that reflects current and noncurrent assets 
and liabilities and reports net assets under four separate classifications. 

A comparison of the University’s assets, liabilities, and net assets as of June 30, 2012, 2011, and 2010 is 
summarized in the table below: 

 

 

Assets 

Current assets are used to support current operations and consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, net 
receivables and short-term investments.  

Noncurrent assets consist primarily of investments and capital assets net of accumulated depreciation.  
Noncurrent receivables consist mainly of student loan receivables scheduled for collection after the current 
report year.   

  

2012 2011 2010
Assets

Current assets 585,161$               590,555$              598,999$            
Noncurrent assets 1,971,938              1,830,151             1,436,397           
Capital assets, net 2,696,951              2,605,072             2,531,864           

Total assets 5,254,050              5,025,778             4,567,260           

Liabilities
Current liabilities 432,135                 428,407                488,549              
Noncurrent liabilities 167,583                 148,710                131,617              
Long-term debt 1,226,389              1,145,419             956,364              

Total liabilities 1,826,107              1,722,536             1,576,530           

Net assets
Unrestricted 727,348                 607,364                613,688              
Restricted—expendable 784,443                 802,858                512,126              
Restricted—nonexpendable 265,156                 253,609                242,541              

Invested in capital assets, 
    net of related debt 1,650,996              1,639,411             1,622,375           

Total net assets 3,427,943              3,303,242             2,990,730           
Total net assets and liabilities 5,254,050$            5,025,778$           4,567,260$         

Condensed Statement of Net Assets
(in thousands)
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The following chart illustrates the composition of total assets: 
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As of June 30, 2012, total assets increased $228.3 million primarily due to increases in noncurrent and 
capital assets.  Investments increased $211.1 million as a result of the University’s investment strategy that 
increases funds going into the temporary investment pools.  Consequently, cash and cash equivalents 
decreased $62.5 million as less of these funds were held in cash accounts.  Noncurrent cash and cash 
equivalents consist of unspent bond proceeds of $187.8 million and $175.9 million in fiscal year 2012 and 
2011, respectively.  Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation increased $91.9 million due to increased 
spending on construction projects, specifically the Biomedical Discovery District projects. 

Subsequent to the issuance of the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2011, the University identified adjustments, which resulted in a net overstatement of beginning Unrestricted 
Net Assets and an overstatement of Investments. The University determined that at the time of the adoption 
of GASB 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets (GASB 51), the amounts recorded 
for income producing intangible assets should have reduced to reflect accumulated amortization through the 
effective date of adoption.  As a result of improved data available from the InfoEd software system related to 
patents, the University has corrected the accompanying financial statements, retroactive to July 1, 2010, to 
improve consistency of the 2012 and 2011 financial statements. The net effect of these corrections for fiscal 
year 2011 is a decrease in beginning Net Assets of $12.6 million, a decrease in ending Unrestricted Net 
Assets of $12.6 million and a decrease in Investments of $12.6 million. The University believes that the 
effect of these adjustments is not material to the accompanying financial statements. 

Liabilities 

Current liabilities are obligations that are expected to become due and payable during the next fiscal year.  
Current liabilities consist primarily of accounts payable and accrued liabilities, including salaries and 
compensation-related expenditures, and unearned income.  Current unearned income is comprised of revenue 
related to summer session tuition and fees deferred to the following fiscal year.    

The University’s noncurrent liabilities consist primarily of capital obligations, notes payable, leases, and 
bonds payable (long-term debt).  The University’s long-term debt represents 67 percent and 66 percent of 
total liabilities or $1,226.4 million and $1,145.4 million as of June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. 

Increase (Decrease)
From 2011 to 2012 From 2010 to 2011

2012 2011 2010 Amount Percent Amount Percent
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 167,751$     243,093$       259,677$      (75,342)$       (31.0%) (16,584)$     (6.4%)
Receivables, net 251,814       267,514         276,104        (15,700)         (5.9%) (8,590)         (3.1%)
Investments 133,586       52,265           30,000          81,321          155.6% 22,265        74.2%
Other assets * 32,010         27,683           33,218          4,327            15.6% (5,535)         (16.7%)

Total current assets 585,161       590,555         598,999        (5,394)           (0.9%) (8,444)         (1.4%)

Noncurrent assets
Capital 2,696,951    2,605,072      2,531,864     91,879          3.5% 73,208        2.9%

Other noncurrent assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents & other 
assets 192,781       179,923         34,334          12,858          7.1% 145,589      424.0%
Receivables, net 53,487         54,373           56,096          (886)              (1.6%) (1,723)         (3.1%)
Investments 1,725,670    1,595,855      1,345,967     129,815        8.1% 249,888      18.6%

Total other noncurrent assets 1,971,938    1,830,151      1,436,397     141,787        7.7% 393,754      27.4%

Total assets 5,254,050$  5,025,778$    4,567,260$   228,272$      4.5% 458,518$    10.0%

* Total is less than 1 percent - not included in the graph.

The University's current and noncurrent assets on June 30, 2012, 2011, and 2010
(in thousands)
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The following chart illustrates the composition of total liabilities: 
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As of June 30, 2012, total liabilities increased $103.6 million primarily due to an increase in long-term debt 
of $81.0 million or 7.1 percent due to the issuance of General Obligation Bonds Series 2011C and 2011D 
and Special Purpose Revenue Bonds Series 2011B.  Accrued liabilities increased $20.0 million due to the 
gradual amortization of the University’s full liability related to other post employment benefits (OPEB).   
The University recorded an OPEB liability of $18.9 million in fiscal year 2012 and $10.6 million in fiscal 
year 2011. As of June 30, 2012, the cumulative OPEB liability of $63.0 million was recorded as a current 
liability of $6.7 million and a noncurrent liability of $56.3 million. 

Net Assets 

Net assets represent the residual value of the University’s assets after deducting liabilities and consist of the 
following four classifications: 

• Unrestricted net assets, which includes assets that are not subject to limitations or stipulations 
imposed by external entities and that have not been set aside for capital or endowment purposes. 
These assets are available for any lawful purpose of the institution and include resources that may be 
designated for specific purposes as determined by management or the Board of Regents. 

• Restricted net assets, which is divided into two categories—expendable and nonexpendable—
Expendable assets are available for expenditure by the institution, but only in accordance with 
restrictions placed on their use by donors and other external entities. Nonexpendable assets are also 
externally restricted, but are required to be retained in perpetuity, including the University’s true 
endowments and institutional contributions to refundable loan programs. 

• Invested in capital assets, net of related debt, which includes property, plant, and equipment, net of 
accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of debt attributable to these capital 
assets.  

  

Increase (Decrease)
From 2011 to 2012 From 2010 to 2011

2012 2011 2010 Amount Percent Amount Percent
Current liabilities

Accounts payable 144,073$     141,091$       134,400$      2,982$        2.1% 6,691$       5.0%
Accrued liabilities and other 228,360       227,498         293,774        862             0.4% (66,276)       (22.6%)
Unearned income 59,702         59,818           60,375          (116)            (0.2%) (557)            (0.9%)
Long-term debt, current 293,941       305,514         377,501        (11,573)       (3.8%) (71,987)       (19.1%)

Total current liabilities 726,076       733,921         866,050        (7,845)         (1.1%) (132,129)     (15.3%)

Noncurrent liabilities
Accrued liabilities and other 167,259       148,213         130,943        19,046        12.9% 17,270       13.2%
Unearned income * 324              497                674               (173)            (34.8%) (177)            (26.3%)
Long-term debt, noncurrent 932,448       839,905         578,863        92,543        11.0% 261,042     45.1%

Total noncurrent liabilities 1,100,031    988,615         710,480        111,416      11.3% 278,135     39.1%

Total liabilities 1,826,107$  1,722,536$    1,576,530$   103,571$    6.0% 146,006$   9.3%

* Total is less than 1 percent - not included in the graph.

The University's current and noncurrent liabilities on June 30, 2012, 2011, and 2010
(in thousands)
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The following chart illustrates the composition of total net assets: 

 

 

 

 

Restricted expendable net assets decreased $18.4 million in fiscal year 2012 compared to an increase of 
$290.7 million in fiscal year 2011 due to changes in market value related to endowments. 

Consolidated Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets 

The Consolidated Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets present the institution’s 
operating, nonoperating, and capital and endowment-related financial activity during the year. This statement 
differentiates between operating and nonoperating revenues and expenses, and it displays the net income or 
loss from operations. Operating revenues are those generated by the University’s principal ongoing 
operations such as tuition, sponsored research grants and contracts, and sales and services provided by the 
University’s educational and self-supporting auxiliary units. State appropriations are reported as 
nonoperating revenues, as are gifts and other revenues for which the University does not give equal value in 
exchange for the resources received.  As of June 30, 2012, operating revenues were 66 percent and 59 
percent of total revenues for fiscal year 2012 and 2011, respectively. 
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Total revenues decreased in fiscal year 2012 by $116.7 million predominately due to decreases in investment 
income due to market fluctuations.  The decreases were partially offset by increases in operating revenues.  
Effective September 30, 2011, the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) program ended.  As a 
result, the University received $49.6 million less in stimulus funds compared to fiscal year 2011 resulting in 
a decrease in Federal appropriations.  Operating revenues increased $149.9 million or 7.8 percent mainly due 
to increases in student tuition and fees and educational activities.  Revenues from sales and services of 
educational activities increased $42.3 million mainly due to increased royalty receipts from sales of products 
using University patents and technology. 

State appropriations decreased to $572.1 million in fiscal year 2012 from $623.3 million in fiscal year 2011. 
The decrease of $51.2 million or 8.2 percent was predominately due to a decrease in the appropriation base.  
State appropriations, in addition to other sources of unrestricted revenue (tuition and educational and 
auxiliary activities) and nonoperating grants, funded a number of University priorities including competitive 
compensation plans for faculty and staff; various academic initiatives; enhancement of services to students 
including technology improvements; upgrades to the financial aid process and freshman seminars; and 
increases in facilities costs.  

Other significant sources of nonoperating revenue to the University included gifts in support of operating 
expenses of $143.0 million, $147.6 million, and $126.0 million, and grants and gifts for capital purposes of 
$31.3 million, $44.8 million, and $41.0 million in fiscal years 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively.  

As of June 30, 2012, other revenues, which consist of capital appropriations, and capital grants and gifts, and 
additions to permanent endowments gifts and grants decreased $19.4 million or 15.8 percent in fiscal year 
2012 compared to a decrease of $24.8 million or 16.8 percent in fiscal year 2011. 

  

Increase (Decrease)
From 2011 to 2012 From 2010 to 2011

2012 2011 2010 Amount Percent Amount Percent
Operating revenues

Grants and contracts 858,810$      817,045$      746,870$     41,765$      5.1% 70,175$      9.4%
Student tuition and fees, net 696,278        634,042        576,363       62,236        9.8% 57,679        10.0%
Auxiliary enterprises, net 351,571        345,537        324,068       6,034          1.7% 21,469        6.6%
Educational activities 162,096        119,830        200,751       42,266        35.3% (80,921)        (40.3%)
Other operating revenue * 162               2,606            2,304           (2,444)          (93.8%) 302             13.1%

Total operating revenues 2,068,917     1,919,060     1,850,356    149,857      7.8% 68,704        3.7%

Nonoperating revenues 
Federal appropriations 15,145          69,416          64,948         (54,271)        (78.2%) 4,468          6.9%
State appropriations 572,075        623,300        651,350       (51,225)        (8.2%) (28,050)        (4.3%)
Grants, gifts, and other 
    nonoperating, net 322,010        319,755        333,762       2,255          0.7% (14,007)        (4.2%)
Investment income, net 36,895          180,865        54,801         (143,970)      (79.6%) 126,064      230.0%

Total nonoperating revenues 946,125        1,193,336     1,104,861    (247,211)      (20.7%) 88,475        8.0%

Total other revenues 103,353        122,732        147,576       (19,379)        (15.8%) (24,844)        (16.8%)

Total revenues 3,118,395$   3,235,128$   3,102,793$  (116,733)$    (3.6%) 132,335$    4.3%

* Total is less than 1 percent - not included in the graph.

The University's operating, nonoperating and other revenue for the years ended June 30, 2012, 2011, and 2010
(in thousands)
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Total Operating Expenses 

 

 

 

 

 

Total operating expenses increased $62.3 million or 2.2 percent in fiscal year 2012 compared to fiscal year 
2011.  Across almost all functional categories, salaries and compensation-related expenditures continued to 
represent the most significant expense to the University at $1.9 billion or 64.5 percent, $1.9 billion or 65.3 
percent, and $1.9 billion or 64.3 percent of operating expenses in fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010, 
respectively.  Compensation related expenditures increased $17.0 million or 0.9 percent in fiscal year 2012 
and $21.2 million or 1.1 percent in fiscal year 2011.  Public service increased percentage-wise more than the 
other categories of operating expenses due to increased spending on sponsored projects. 

Increase (Decrease)
From 2011 to 2012 From 2010 to 2011

2012 2011 2010 Amount Percent Amount Percent
Education and general

Instruction $696,217 $668,042 $680,469 $28,175 4.2% ($12,427)  (1.8%)
Research 633,199 625,655 631,206 7,544 1.2% (5,551)  (0.9%)
Public service 245,488 225,701 213,759 19,787 8.8% 11,942 5.6%
Academic support 360,626 359,816 362,163 810 0.2% (2,347)  (0.6%)
Student services 106,152 104,863 101,371 1,289 1.2% 3,492 3.4%
Institutional support 189,040 193,997 234,308 (4,957)  (2.6%) (40,311)  (17.2%)
Operation and maintenance of plant 254,553 264,888 243,121 (10,335)  (3.9%) 21,767 9.0%
Scholarships and fellowships 52,014 52,310 50,798 (296)  (0.6%) 1,512 3.0%

Total Education and General 2,537,289 2,495,272 2,517,195 42,017 1.7% (21,923)  (0.9%)

Other operating expenses
Depreciation 183,875 163,689 169,524 20,186 12.3% (5,835)  (3.4%)
Auxiliary enterprises 227,397 226,996 213,201 401 0.2% 13,795 6.5%
Other operating expenses, net (195) 67 469 (262)  (391.0%) (402)  (85.7%)
Total other operating expenses 411,077 390,752 383,194 20,325 5.2% 7,558 2.0%

Total operating expenses $2,948,366 $2,886,024 $2,900,389 $62,342 2.2% (14,365)$   (0.5%)

The University's total operating expenses by functional category for the years ended June 30, 2012, 2011, and 2010
(in thousands)
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

 

 

 

The Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows present information about changes in the University’s cash 
position using the direct method of reporting sources and uses of cash. The direct method reports all major 
cash inflows and outflows at gross amounts, differentiating these activities into cash flows arising from 
operating activities; noncapital financing such as nonexchange grants and contributions; capital financing, 
including bond proceeds from debt issued to purchase or construct buildings and other capital assets; and 
investing activities. 

As illustrated in above table, the University’s cash and cash equivalents decreased $63.5 million due to the 
use of funds by operating activities, investing activities and capital and related financing activities, partially 
offset by cash inflows from noncapital financing activities.  The cash used by capital and financing activities 
decreased $186.0 million as a result of reduced proceeds from new bond issuances.  During fiscal year 2012, 
the University issued $138.2 million in new bond issuances compared to $534.6 million in fiscal year 2011.  
The most significant sources of cash provided by noncapital financing activities included state appropriations 
totaling $546.1 million and $615.1 million, grants totaling $174.7 million and $192.3 million and gifts total 
$142.2 million and $147.1 million in 2012 and 2011, respectively.  Cash inflows for capital acquisitions 
from state appropriations, gifts and grants, and bonds issued during the year funded a portion of the 
University’s equipment needs and ongoing renovation and construction initiatives. 

Investing Activities 
  
The University’s endowment funds are invested to preserve the inflation-adjusted value of the endowment 
and to maximize total return within acceptable risk parameters. These objectives are benchmarked over 
three- to five-year periods.  

Long-term endowment and other investments included a decrease from net unrealized losses on the 
endowment and other investments of $39.2 million in fiscal year 2012 compared to an increase of $122.6 
million in fiscal year 2011.  In addition, decreases of $47.0 million and $48.4 million in 2012 and 2011, 
respectively, related to annual distributions of the endowment to departments, partially offset by reinvested 
endowment earnings.  

To provide a relatively stable level of support for endowed programs, a specified percentage rate based on a 
five-year, moving-average market value of the endowment is distributed each year. These distributions 
provide funds for a variety of purposes, including instructional needs, research activities, scholarships, and 

Increase (Decrease)
From 2011 to 2012 From 2010 to 2011

2012 2011 2010 Amount Percent Amount Percent
Cash provided by (used in) 

Operating activities (659,788)$    (847,949)$      (850,405)$     188,161$      (22.2%) 2,456$         (0.3%)
Noncapital financing activities 913,558       1,027,484      1,066,517     (113,926)      (11.1%) (39,033)       (3.7%)
Capital and related financing 
activities (140,030)      45,972           (148,008)       (186,002)      (404.6%) 193,980       (131.1%)
Investing activities (177,252)      (97,055)          (103,844)       (80,197)       82.6% 6,789           (6.5%)

Net increase (decrease) in cash (63,512)        128,452         (35,740)         (191,964)      (149.4%) 164,192       (459.4%)
Cash, beginning of year 419,032       290,580         326,320        128,452       44.2% (35,740)       (11.0%)
Cash, end of year 355,520$     419,032$       290,580$      (63,512)$      (15.2%) 128,452$    44.2%

The University's cash flows for the years ended June 30, 2012, 2011, and 2010
(in thousands)
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academic support. An endowment spending policy requires balancing current needs with the long-term focus 
of the institution. The endowment funds distribution rate was 4.5 percent in fiscal years 2012 and 2011. 

Capital and Debt Activities 

The following chart illustrates the composition of capital assets before depreciation: 

 

 

 

 

Gross capital assets increased over the past three fiscal years. The major building project completed in fiscal 
year 2012 was the Griggs Hall Dormitory Addition (UMD).   

Capital additions totaled $277.0 million, $242.3 million, and $237.2 million in fiscal year 2012, 2011, and 
2010, respectively.   Fiscal year 2012 spending included the Biomedical Discovery District projects, 
Northrop Interior Renovation, the University Recreation Center Expansion and the Physics and Nanotech 
Building. See Note 4 of the consolidated financial statements for more detailed information about capital 
assets.  

Fiscal year 2012 activity included the issuance of the second tranche of debt related to the Biomedical 
Science Research Facilities Funding Program established for the renovation and expansion of the 
University's Biomedical Discovery District.  Total combined proceeds of $77.2 million from the special 

Increase (Decrease)
From 2011 to 2012 From 2010 to 2011

2012 2011 2010 Amount Percent Amount Percent
Capital assets (gross)

Buildings and improvements 3,760,552$  3,655,566$    3,471,517$   104,986$       2.9% 184,049$  5.3%
Equipment 721,675       718,422         663,474        3,253             0.5% 54,948      8.3%
Library and other collections 191,117       174,965         169,334        16,152           9.2% 5,631        3.3%
Construction in progress 186,973       100,413         140,347        86,560           86.2% (39,934)      (28.5%)
Land 90,189         87,416           85,218          2,773             3.2% 2,198        2.6%
Software and other intangibles 116,422       106,879         100,617        9,543             8.9% 6,262        6.2%

Total capital assets (gross) 5,066,928$  4,843,661$    4,630,507$   223,267$       4.6% 213,154$  4.6%

The University's capital asset categories (before depreciation) for the years ended June 30, 2012, 2011, and 2010
(in thousands)
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purpose revenue bonds, Series 2011B, and general obligation taxable bonds, Series 2011C, will  be used to 
fund a portion of the costs of construction and completion of a new building devoted to cancer and 
cardiovascular research and associated infrastructure within the Biomedical Discovery District.  

In addition, general obligation bond, Series 2011D, in the par amount of $53.6 million was issued for various 
capital projects. Capital leases of $1.9 million and $1.8 million were issued in fiscal year 2012 and 2011, 
respectively.  Refer to Note 5 for additional information. 
 
Factors Affecting Future Economic Conditions 

July 1, 2012 marked the first anniversary of Eric Kaler (Ph.D. ’82) as the 16th president of the University. 
President Kaler entered the presidency of the University at a time of great challenges, significant past 
progress, and a new resolve on the part of the University community to advance the excellence of the 
institution. As President Kaler enters the second year of his presidency, he also faces the development of his 
first state biennial budget request. The University traditionally returns to the state legislature in odd 
numbered years for operating budget support and even numbered years for capital budget appropriations. 
The University will request operating budget support during the upcoming 2013 legislative session. 
 
A framework for operating budget support has been established and the goals and priorities are clearly 
outlined. First and foremost is the concept of excellence in all that the University does: excellence in 
teaching and learning, innovation and discovery, advancing operational excellence, relevant and vital public 
engagement, and an affordable education for qualified Minnesota students.  This framework has guided the 
development of President Kaler’s first operating budget request. 
 
President Kaler’s biennial operating budget request for fiscal years 2014 and 2015 to the State of Minnesota 
calls for 5 critical initiatives:  
 

1. Renewing the University’s partnership with the State through a funding request of $42.6 million over 
the next two fiscal years with a commitment on the part of the University to hold Minnesota 
undergraduate tuition increase to zero percent, thus saving a Minnesota resident undergraduate on the 
Twin-Cities campus more than $2,500 over the next four years.  

2. A proposal to the State of Minnesota to establish a new Minnesota Discovery, Research and 
InnoVation Economy (MNDRIVE) funding program at a cost of $36.0 million over the next two 
years. 

3. Establishing a new performance and accountability program built around the University meeting 3 of 
5 performance goals in order to receive $11.5 million in new state funding in the second year of the 
biennium. 

4. A new $1.5 million University of Minnesota administered loan forgiveness program targeted to 
students willing to work as a health care professional for at least 3 years in an underserved area of 
Minnesota. 

5. A commitment to internally reallocate 5 percent or approximately $28.0 million of the University’s 
current $543.3 million funding level provided by the State of Minnesota. 

 
The University’s MNDRIVE program request envisions funding of four strategic research opportunities 
designed to advance Minnesota’s economy, leverage Minnesota’s strengths and comparative advantage, 
improve Minnesotans’ health and quality of life, advance the capacity and competitiveness of Minnesota 
industries, and position the state as a national leader in key industries. The MNDRIVE program is a multi-
year strategy with an initial focus on supporting robotics, sensors and advanced manufacturing; securing the 
global food supply; advancing industry and conserving our environment; and advancing discoveries and 
treatments for brain conditions.  
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If the University’s budget request is granted, our annual state support in 2015 will stand at $604.0 million 
which would be equivalent to the level of support provided to the University in 2001 (not adjusted for 
inflation). The University’s current level of state appropriations support in 2012 is equal to the amount the 
University received in 1998. 
 
The University of Minnesota continues to make substantial progress. The recent financial downturn and the 
subsequent slow economic recovery have created meaningful challenges for the nation, the state of 
Minnesota, and the University of Minnesota. Human capital and innovation are critical to economic growth, 
and the University of Minnesota is well positioned to contribute to, and advance Minnesota’s economy and 
quality of life. 
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University of Minnesota
Consolidated Statements of Net Assets (Excluding Component Units)
June 30, 2012 and 2011 (in thousands)

2012 2011

167,751$            243,093$             
133,586              52,265                 
242,949              258,791               

23,325                23,972                 
8,865                  8,723                   
8,464                  3,490                   

221                     221                      
585,161              590,555               

187,769              175,939               
1,725,670           1,595,855            

548                     562                      
52,939                53,811                 

4,999                  3,957                   
13                       27                        

2,696,951           2,605,072            
4,668,889           4,435,223            
5,254,050           5,025,778            

144,073              141,091               
228,360              227,498               

59,702                59,818                 
293,941              305,514               
726,076              733,921               

167,259              148,213               
324                     497                      

932,448              839,905               
1,100,031           988,615               
1,826,107           1,722,536            

727,348              607,364               
Expendable 784,443              802,858               
Nonexpendable 265,156              253,609               

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 1,650,996           1,639,411            
3,427,943$         3,303,242$          

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Unearned income

Total assets

Unearned income
Long-term debt-current portion

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities
Accrued liabilities and other

Liabilities
Current liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities and other

Total net assets

Long-term debt
Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Net Assets
Unrestricted
Restricted

Total noncurrent assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Receivables, net
Inventories
Student loans receivable, net
Prepaid expenses and deferred charges
Other assets

Investments
Receivables, net
Student loan receivables, net
Prepaid expenses and deferred charges
Other assets
Capital assets, net

Assets
Current assets

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
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University of Minnesota
Component Units - Statements of Financial Position
June 30, 2012 and 2011 (in thousands)

2012 2011 2012 2011

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents  $14,665 $9,269 $17 $243
Investments, substantially at fair market value 1,499,991       1,511,556    288,626     304,159         
Investments held for unitrusts, annuity trusts, and gift annuities 9,670         11,005           
Investments designated for endowments
Investments loaned to broker 3,441         4,032             
Investments collateral 1,877         2,497             
Pledges receivable, net 88,877            74,149         101,132     102,837         
Accounts and other receivables  25,604            17,450         8,092         1,242             
Interest in charitable lead trusts, unitrusts, pooled income, and trusts 54,030            55,519         37,654       30,074           
Gift annuities 33,784            32,164         
Interest in the net assets of related parties
Due from affiliated parties
Property and equipment, net 28,471            27,987         700            763                
Prepaids and other assets 139            226                
     Total assets 1,745,422       1,728,094    451,348     457,078         

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  10,882            10,832         2,622         2,316             
Deferred revenue and gains 263            244                
Gift annuities payable 19,742            18,745         
Split-interest agreement liabilities 6,013         6,384             
Unitrusts, pooled income, and annuity trusts payable 8,235              10,290         
Investments held for custody of others 201,300          207,485       1,263         1,409             
Payable under investment loan agreement 3,510         4,120             
Bonds and capital lease payable
     Total liabilities 240,159          247,352       13,671       14,473           

Net Assets
Unrestricted 55,799            56,220         18,766       12,928           
Temporarily restricted 836,395          835,677       213,508     226,006         
Permanently restricted 613,069          588,845       205,403     203,671         
     Total net assets 1,505,263       1,480,742    437,677     442,605         

Total liabilities and net assets $1,745,422 $1,728,094 $451,348 $457,078

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

University of Minnesota 
Foundation

Minnesota Medical 
Foundation

36



 

22 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

University of Minnesota
Component Units - Statements of Financial Position
June 30, 2012 and 2011 (in thousands)

2012 2011 2012 2011

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents  $1,406 $810 $424 $1,044
Investments, substantially at fair market value 444               433                 7,982      7,751         
Investments held for unitrusts, annuity trusts, and gift annuities
Investments designated for endowments 24,680          25,266            
Investments loaned to broker
Investments collateral
Pledges receivable, net 318               889                 259         28              
Accounts and other receivables                    -   470                 16           32              
Interest in charitable lead trusts, unitrusts, pooled income, and trusts 141               198                 24           24              
Gift annuities
Interest in the net assets of related parties
Due from affiliated parties
Property and equipment, net 7             3                
Prepaids and other assets 11           6                
     Total assets 26,989          28,066            8,723      8,888         

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  3,634            3,585              92           150            
Deferred revenue and gains 565               544                              -   61              
Gift annuities payable
Split-interest agreement liabilities
Unitrusts, pooled income, and annuity trusts payable
Investments held for custody of others 1,848      1,516         
Payable under investment loan agreement
Bonds and capital lease payable
     Total liabilities 4,199            4,129              1,940      1,727         

Net Assets
Unrestricted 162               980                 275         296            
Temporarily restricted 6,204            6,923              4,582      5,036         
Permanently restricted 16,424          16,034            1,926      1,829         
     Total net assets 22,790          23,937            6,783      7,161         

Total liabilities and net assets $26,989 $28,066 $8,723 $8,888

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Minnesota Landscape 
Arboretum Foundation

Minnesota 4-H 
Foundation
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University of Minnesota
Component Units - Statements of Financial Position
June 30, 2012 and 2011 (in thousands)

2012 2011 2012 2011

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents  $28,561 $12,092 $247 $362
Investments, substantially at fair market value 27,062         26,559        22,600      23,238           
Investments held for unitrusts, annuity trusts, and gift annuities
Investments designated for endowments
Investments loaned to broker
Investments collateral
Pledges receivable, net
Accounts and other receivables  80,795         79,736        168           91                  
Interest in charitable lead trusts, unitrusts, pooled income, and trusts
Gift annuities
Interest in the net assets of related parties
Due from affiliated parties 204           25                  
Property and equipment, net 14,253         12,216        237           265                
Prepaids and other assets 3,163           3,249          287           317                
     Total assets 153,834       133,852      23,743      24,298           

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  69,458         54,753        148           106                
Deferred revenue and gains 13,556         13,556        4,253        4,025             
Gift annuities payable
Split-interest agreement liabilities
Unitrusts, pooled income, and annuity trusts payable
Investments held for custody of others
Payable under investment loan agreement
Bonds and capital lease payable
     Total liabilities 83,014         68,309        4,401        4,131             

Net Assets
Unrestricted 70,820         65,543        18,622      19,434           
Temporarily restricted 539           552                
Permanently restricted 181           181                
     Total net assets 70,820         65,543        19,342      20,167           

Total liabilities and net assets $153,834 $133,852 $23,743 $24,298

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

University of Minnesota 
Physicians

University of Minnesota 
Alumni Association
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University of Minnesota
Component Units - Statements of Financial Position
June 30, 2012 and 2011 (in thousands)

2012 2011

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents  $1,129 $1,292
Investments, substantially at fair market value
Investments held for unitrusts, annuity trusts, and gift annuities
Investments designated for endowments
Investments loaned to broker
Investments collateral
Pledges receivable, net
Accounts and other receivables  347            107             
Interest in charitable lead trusts, unitrusts, pooled income, and trusts
Gift annuities
Interest in the net assets of related parties 23,782       23,604        
Due from affiliated parties
Property and equipment, net 17,182       17,333        
Prepaids and other assets 31,876       32,776        
     Total assets 74,316       75,112        

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  4,403         2,954          
Deferred revenue and gains
Gift annuities payable
Split-interest agreement liabilities
Unitrusts, pooled income, and annuity trusts payable
Investments held for custody of others
Payable under investment loan agreement
Bonds and capital lease payable 52,558       53,182        
     Total liabilities 56,961       56,136        

Net Assets
Unrestricted 17,354       18,975        
Temporarily restricted 1                1                 
Permanently restricted
     Total net assets 17,355       18,976        

Total liabilities and net assets $74,316 $75,112

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

University Gateway 
Corporation
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University of Minnesota
Consolidated Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
(Excluding Component Units)
Years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 (in thousands)

2012 2011   
Revenues
Operating revenues

696,278$            634,042$              
510,687              491,723                

59,631                60,320                  
288,492              265,002                

1,866                  1,960                    

160,230              117,870                

351,571              345,537                
162                     2,606                    

Total operating revenues 2,068,917           1,919,060             
Expenses
Operating expenses Education and general
  Instruction 696,217              668,042                

Research 633,199              625,655                
Public service 245,488              225,701                
Academic support 360,626              359,816                
Student services 106,152              104,863                
Institutional support 189,040              193,997                
Operation and maintenance of plant 254,553              264,888                
Scholarships and fellowships 52,014                52,310                  
Depreciation 183,875              163,689                

Auxiliary enterprises 227,397              226,996                
(195)                   67                         

Total operating expenses 2,948,366           2,886,024             

(879,449)            (966,964)               

15,145                69,416                  
572,075              623,300                
176,656              174,534                
143,000              147,582                

36,895                180,865                
(45,328)              (36,592)                 

2,354                  (2,361)                   
Net nonoperating revenues 900,797              1,156,744             

21,348                189,780                

60,570                75,801                  
31,349                44,813                  
11,434                2,118                    

Total other revenues 103,353              122,732                

124,701              312,512                

3,303,242           2,990,730             

3,427,943$         3,303,242$           

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Student tuition and fees, net of scholarship allowances 
of $232,301 in 2012; $239,131 in 2011
Federal grants and contracts
State and other government grants
Nongovernmental grants and contracts
Student loan interest income

Net assets at end of year

Capital grants and gifts
Additions to permanent endowments

Increase In Net Assets

Net assets at beginning of year 

Capital appropriations

Sales and services of educational activities, net of scholarship 
allowances of $41 in 2012; $60 in 2011

Interest on capital-asset related debt
Other nonoperating revenues (expenses), net

Income Before Other Revenues

State appropriations
Grants 
Gifts
Investment income, net

Auxiliary enterprises, net of scholarship allowances of $8,839 in 
2012; $12,674 in 2011

Other operating expenses, net

Operating Loss

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Federal appropriations

Other operating revenues
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University of Minnesota
Component Units - Statement of Activities
Year ended June 30, 2012
(with summarized information for the year ended June 30, 2011) (in thousands)

2012 2011
Revenues
Contributions $490 $110,897 $23,581 $134,968 $116,069
Investment income, net 1,874           7,054             40                  8,968              7,448              
Net realized and unrealized gains (losses) on investments (1,884)         17,038           15,154            204,622          
Change in value of trusts (397)               603                206                 7,801              
Support services revenue 2,327           2,327              2,411              
UMF - Dinnaken Housing, LLC rental revenue 5,141           5,141              2,865              
Other revenue 940              940                 1,139              
Net assets released from restriction 133,874       (133,874)        -                  -                  
     Total revenues 142,762       718                24,224           167,704          342,355          

Expenses
Program services

Distributions for educational purposes 115,024       115,024          107,023          
Support services

Management and general 7,962           7,962              6,934              
Fund-raising 15,492         15,492            14,848            

UMF - Dinnaken Housing, LLC 4,705           4,705              2,619              
     Total expenses 143,183       -                 -                 143,183          131,424          

Increase (decrease) in net assets (421)            718                24,224           24,521            210,931          
Net assets at beginning of year 56,220         835,677         588,845         1,480,742       1,269,811       

Net assets at end of year $55,799 $836,395 $613,069 $1,505,263 $1,480,742

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

University of Minnesota Foundation

 Unrestricted 
 Temporarily 

restricted 
 Permanently 

restricted 
Total
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University of Minnesota
Component Units - Statement of Activities
Year ended June 30, 2012
(with summarized information for the year ended June 30, 2011) (in thousands)

2012 2011
Revenues
Contributions $2,889 $48,120 $9,181 $60,190 $68,555
Investment income (loss), net (236)            (3,481)            (8,097)            (11,814)           42,083            
Judgment revenue 7,316           7,316              -                  
Change in value of split-interest agreements (205)               8,607             8,402              3,888              
Service charges 3,677           (1,564)            (2,048)            65                   73                   
Receipts from affiliated parties 5,145           (247)               75                  4,973              5,414              
Spending allocation 11                7,356             (7,367)            -                  -                  
Change in donor restrictions (1,116)            1,116             -                  -                  
Net assets released from restriction 61,096         (61,361)          265                -                  -                  
     Total revenues 79,898         (12,498)          1,732             69,132            120,013          

Expenses
Program services

Research and education grants 50,006         50,006            42,831            
Building and equipment grants 7,623           7,623              8,805              
Communications 583              583                 517                 
Student aid and scholarships 2,239           2,239              2,046              
Honor and award grants 501              501                 694                 
Alumni and sponsored events 1,117           1,117              1,029              

Support services
Management and general 3,917           3,917              4,162              
Fund-raising 8,074           8,074              8,041              

     Total expenses 74,060         -                 -                 74,060            68,125            

Increase (decrease) in net assets 5,838           (12,498)          1,732             (4,928)             51,888            
Net assets at beginning of year 12,928         226,006         203,671         442,605          390,717          

Net assets at end of year $18,766 $213,508 $205,403 $437,677 $442,605

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

 Unrestricted 
 Temporarily 

restricted 
 Permanently 

restricted 

Minnesota Medical Foundation
Total
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University of Minnesota
Component Units - Statement of Activities
Year ended June 30, 2012
(with summarized information for the year ended June 30, 2011) (in thousands)

2012 2011
Revenues
Contributions $1,862 $1,458 $380 $3,700 $4,308
Membership dues and fees 1,140           1,140              1,125              
Investment income (loss), net 2                  15                  17                   (84)                  
Net realized and unrealized gains on investments 43                189                232                 4,236              
Change in value of annuity trust 10                  10                   13                   
Other revenue 211              211                 189                 
Net assets released from restriction 2,381           (2,381)            -                  -                  
     Total revenues 5,639           (719)               390                5,310              9,787              

Expenses
Program services 5,043           5,043              5,146              
Support services

Management and general 507              507                 348                 
Fund-raising 907              907                 944                 

     Total expenses 6,457           -                 -                 6,457              6,438              

Increase (decrease) in net assets (818)            (719)               390                (1,147)             3,349              
Net assets at beginning of year 980              6,923             16,034           23,937            20,588            

Net assets at end of year $162 $6,204 $16,424 $22,790 $23,937

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

 Unrestricted 
 Temporarily 

restricted 
 Permanently 

restricted 
Total

Minnesota Landscape Arboretum Foundation
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University of Minnesota
Component Units - Statement of Activities
Year ended June 30, 2012
(with summarized information for the year ended June 30, 2011) (in thousands)

2012 2011
Revenues
Contributions $105 $173 $74 $352 $401
Investment income (loss), net (1)                29                  28                   863                 
Change in value of annuity trust 1                    (1)                   -                  4                     
Other revenue 169              336                14                  519                 1,462              
Net assets released from restriction 987              (987)               -                  -                  
     Total revenues 1,260           (448)               87                  899                 2,730              

Expenses
Program services 922              922                 1,361              
Support services

Management and general 85                85                   86                   
Fund-raising 270              270                 198                 

     Total expenses 1,277           -                 -                 1,277              1,645              

Increase (decrease) in net assets (17)              (448)               87                  (378)                1,085              
Net assets at beginning of year 296              5,036             1,829             7,161              6,076              
Reclassification of net assets (4)                (6)                   10                  -                  -                  

Net assets at end of year $275 $4,582 $1,926 $6,783 $7,161

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

 Temporarily 
restricted 

Minnesota 4-H Foundation
 Permanently 

restricted 
Total

 Unrestricted 
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University of Minnesota
Component Units - Statement of Activities
Year ended June 30, 2012
(with summarized information for the year ended June 30, 2011) (in thousands)

2012 2011
Revenues
Net patient service revenue $182,294 $176,472
Investment income, net 1,371              1,225              
Net realized and unrealized gains (losses) on investments (300)                316                 
Other revenue 231,396          194,752          
     Total revenues 414,761          372,765          

Expenses
Program services

Health care services 369,488          329,208          
Support services

Management and general 39,996            39,729            
     Total expenses 409,484          368,937          

Increase in net assets 5,277              3,828              
Net assets at beginning of year 65,543            61,715            

Net assets at end of year $70,820 $65,543

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

University of Minnesota Physicians
Total (unrestricted)
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University of Minnesota
Component Units - Statement of Activities
Year ended June 30, 2012
(with summarized information for the year ended June 30, 2011) (in thousands)

2012 2011
Revenues
Contributions $98 $98 $83
Membership dues and fees 754              754                 771                 
Investment income (loss), net 15                15                   (81)                  
Change in value of investments 457              $16 473                 3,739              
Other revenue 2,200           2,200              1,964              
Net assets released from restriction 29                (29)                 -                  -                  
     Total revenues 3,553           (13)                 -                 3,540              6,476              

Expenses
Program services 3,860           3,860              3,492              
Support services

Management and general 437              437                 562                 
Fund-raising 68                68                   62                   

     Total expenses 4,365           -                 -                 4,365              4,116              

Increase (decrease) in net assets (812)            (13)                 -                 (825)                2,360              
Net assets at beginning of year 19,434         552                181                20,167            17,807            

Net assets at end of year $18,622 $539 $181 $19,342 $20,167

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

 Permanently 
restricted  Unrestricted 

 Temporarily 
restricted 

Total
University of Minnesota Alumni Association
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University of Minnesota
Component Units - Statement of Activities
Year ended June 30, 2012
(with summarized information for the year ended June 30, 2011) (in thousands)

2012 2011
Revenues
Investment income, net $1
Direct financing lease revenue $2,841 2,841 2,905
Change in derivative financial instruments (1,643) (1,643) 123
Change in the interest in net assets of related parties 177 177 3,956
Other revenue 3,167 3,167 2,925
     Total revenues 4,542 -                 4,542 9,910

Expenses
Program services 5,666 5,666 5,760
Support services

Management and general 56 56 40
Payment to affiliated parties 441 441 421
     Total expenses 6,163 -                 6,163 6,221

Increase (decrease) in net assets (1,621) (1,621) 3,689
Net assets at beginning of year 18,975 1 18,976 15,287

Net assets at end of year $17,354 $1 $17,355 $18,976

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

 Temporarily 
restricted 

Total
University Gateway Corporation

 Unrestricted 
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University of Minnesota
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Excluding Component Units)
Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 (in thousands)

2012 2011
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Student tuition and fees 698,277$       636,915$       
Grants and contracts (federal, state, nongovernmental, other) 881,898         816,156         
Auxiliary enterprises 354,762         341,898         
Sales and services of educational activities 161,017         117,970         
Other operating revenues 896                2,594             
Payments to employees for services (1,414,961)     (1,445,934)     
Payments for fringe benefits (469,537)        (467,890)        
Payments to suppliers for goods and services (831,138)        (809,634)        
Payments for scholarships and fellowships (42,545)          (44,064)          
Loans issued to students (9,970)            (7,518)            
Collection of loans to students 11,513           11,558           

Net cash used by operating activities (659,788)        (847,949)        

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities
Federal appropriations 31,356           69,134           
State appropriations 546,119         615,129         
Grants for other than capital purposes 174,669         192,278         
Gifts for other than capital purposes 142,176         147,108         
Private gifts for endowment purposes 11,429           2,132             
Other nonoperating revenues, net 5,849             5,921             
Direct lending receipts 336,400         343,854         
Direct lending disbursements (337,250)        (342,750)        
Agency transactions 2,810             (5,322)            

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 913,558         1,027,484      

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities
Capital appropriations 58,606           81,368           
Capital grants and gifts 31,348           40,405           
Proceeds from capital debt 138,178         534,622         
Proceeds from sale of capital assets (814)               (2,973)            
Purchases of capital assets (261,552)        (228,270)        
Principal paid on capital debt (55,715)          (344,598)        
Interest paid on capital debt (50,081)          (34,582)          

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities (140,030)        45,972           

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Investment income, net 84,158           66,695           
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 612,947         667,448         
Purchase of investments (874,357)        (831,198)        

Net cash used by investing activities (177,252)        (97,055)          

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (63,512)          128,452         
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 419,032         290,580         
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 355,520$       419,032$       

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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University of Minnesota
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Excluding Component Units)
Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 (in thousands)

Reconciliation of Net Operating Revenues (Expenses) 2012 2011
to Net Cash Used by Operating Activities
Operating loss (879,449)$      (966,964)$      
Adjustments to reconcile net operating loss to net cash used by operating activities

Depreciation expense 183,875         163,689         
Changes in assets and liabilities

Receivables, net 25,053           (3,005)            
Inventories 547                (1,029)            
Prepaid and other items (5,848)            (3,210)            
Accounts payable (13,064)          10,849           
Accrued liabilities 31,076           (52,616)          
Unearned income (1,978)            4,337             

Net cash used by operating activities (659,788)$      (847,949)$      

Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Actvities
Unrealized gains (losses) on investments (40,153)$        116,646$       
Capital assets on account 43,323           34,491           
Contribution of capital assets 3,344             4,388             
Amortization of bond discount/premium 3,390             1,945             
Capital assets acquired with capital lease 1,896             1,769             
Gain on retirement of debt -                 792                

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year
Cash and cash equivalents 167,751$       243,093$       
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 187,769         175,939         
Total cash and cash equivalents at end of year 355,520$       419,032$       

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 (in thousands) 
 

1. Organization, Basis of Presentation, and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  

Organization 

The University of Minnesota (the University) is both a state land-grant university, with a strong tradition of 
education and public service, and a major research institution serving the State of Minnesota through five 
campuses: Crookston, Duluth, Morris, Rochester, and Twin Cities. 

The University is considered a constitutional corporation and an agency of the State of Minnesota. As a 
result of this unique status, authority to govern the University is reserved to the Board of Regents rather than 
state law. The University complies with state law when specifically included by statute or when compliance 
does not conflict with the University’s ability to accomplish its mission and purpose as established by the 
constitution of the State of Minnesota. 

Tax Status—The Internal Revenue Service (IRS) has ruled that the University is an integral part of the State 
of Minnesota. Therefore, the University is generally exempt from federal income taxes, although certain 
activities are subject to federal unrelated business income tax.   

Reporting Entity 

The financial reporting entity for the University of Minnesota includes the financial results of the five 
campuses and, as required under GASB Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations Are 
Component Units—An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 14 (GASB 39), its legally separate component 
units. The component units are included in the University’s reporting entity because of the significance of 
their operational or financial relationships with the University or its other component units. 

Blended Component Units—The University has two component units that provide services entirely for the 
University’s own benefit.  As a result, GASB 39 requires blended presentation—combining the component 
units and University financial information together, displayed as one entity. 

RUMINCO, Ltd. 

RUMINCO, Ltd. is a wholly owned single parent captive insurance company. Although it is legally separate 
from the University, RUMINCO, Ltd. is reported as if it were part of the University because its sole purpose 
is to handle medical malpractice, general liability, directors’ and officers’ liability, and automobile liability 
on behalf of the University. 

UMore Development Limited Liability Company (LLC) 

UMore Development Limited Liability Company (LLC) is a wholly owned company with a purpose of 
providing oversight and management for the planning and development for the University’s UMore Park 
property.  Although it is legally separate from the University, based on its purpose, it is reported as if it were 
part of the University.   

Discretely Presented Component Units—The University’s financial statements include the financial data of 
several tax-exempt component units. They are reported in separate columns on separate pages. GASB 39 
requires discrete presentation of component units when either the resources held by these entities can only be 
used by, or for the benefit of, the University or its component units; or the component units are closely 
related to, or financially integrated with the University. 
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University of Minnesota Foundation 

The University of Minnesota Foundation (UMF) is a legally separate, tax-exempt organization dedicated to 
raising and managing private gifts to benefit the University of Minnesota. The Board of Trustees of the UMF 
consists of between 30 and 45 members and includes the president of the University of Minnesota. One 
fourth of the members of the Board of Trustees are appointed by the University. Although the UMF is an 
independent organization, the majority of resources that it holds and invests, including income from its 
investments, is restricted by donors to the activities of the University. 

During fiscal years 2012 and 2011, the UMF distributed $130,558 and $121,930, respectively, to the 
University. Complete financial statements for the University of Minnesota Foundation can be obtained from 
the UMF office, McNamara Alumni Center, 200 Oak Street S.E., Suite 500, Minneapolis, MN 55455. 

Minnesota Medical Foundation 

The Minnesota Medical Foundation (MMF) is a legally separate, tax-exempt organization dedicated to 
raising and managing private gifts in support of the advancement of health-related education, research, and 
service at the University of Minnesota. The Board of Trustees of the MMF consists of not fewer than 24 
elected members, one third of whom must be physicians. Although the MMF is an independent organization, 
the majority of resources that the MMF holds and invests, including income from its investments, is 
restricted by donors to the activities of the University.  

During fiscal years 2012 and 2011, the MMF distributed $51,489 and $44,832, respectively, to the 
University. Complete financial statements for the Minnesota Medical Foundation can be obtained from the 
MMF office, McNamara Alumni Center, 200 Oak St S.E., Suite 300, Minneapolis, MN 55455. 

Minnesota Landscape Arboretum Foundation 

The Minnesota Landscape Arboretum Foundation (Foundation) is a legally separate, tax-exempt 
organization dedicated to raising and managing private gifts for the benefit of the Minnesota Landscape 
Arboretum of the University of Minnesota. The Board of Trustees of the Foundation consists of between 8 
and 36 trustees, and the number of trustees must be divisible by four. One fourth of the trustees are appointed 
by the University of Minnesota. Although the Foundation is an independent organization, the majority of 
resources that the Foundation holds and invests, including income from its investments, is restricted by 
donors to the activities of the University. 

During fiscal years 2012 and 2011, the Minnesota Landscape Arboretum Foundation distributed $5,180 and 
$6,438, respectively, to the University. Complete financial statements for the Minnesota Landscape 
Arboretum Foundation can be obtained from the Foundation office, 3675 Arboretum Drive, Chaska, MN 
55318. 

Minnesota 4-H Foundation 

The Minnesota 4-H Foundation is a legally separate, tax-exempt organization, organized to receive, hold, 
invest, and administer assets and to make expenditures to or for the benefit of the programs of the Center for 
4-H Youth Development, including support of the University of Minnesota Extension Service. The Board of 
Trustees consists of not fewer than 18 and not more than 21 persons elected from a slate of candidates 
prepared by the Board of Trustees. 

During fiscal years 2012 and 2011, the Minnesota 4-H Foundation distributed $1,013 and $1,354, 
respectively, to the University. Complete financial statements for the Minnesota 4-H Foundation can be 
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obtained from the Minnesota 4-H Foundation office, McNamara Alumni Center, 200 Oak Street S.E., Suite 
270B, Minneapolis, MN 55455. 

University of Minnesota Alumni Association 

The University of Minnesota Alumni Association (Association) is a legally separate, tax-exempt 
organization that serves alumni and the University of Minnesota with a mission to connect alumni to the 
University, advocate and support excellence in education, and build pride, spirit, and community. A 
volunteer board of 46 directors governs the Association. Members of the board are elected as follows: 
officers (9) and an honorary director (1) by the Board of Directors; at-large and geographic representatives 
(18) by the Association’s general membership; and collegiate/professional representatives (18) by their 
respective societies.  

During fiscal years 2012 and 2011, the Association distributed $1,205 and $1,234, respectively, to the 
University. Complete financial statements for the Association can be obtained from the University of 
Minnesota Alumni Association, McNamara Alumni Center, 200 Oak Street S.E., Suite 200, Minneapolis, 
MN 55455. 

University Gateway Corporation 

The University Gateway Corporation (Gateway) is a legally separate, tax-exempt entity that owns and 
operates a facility used to support three beneficiary organizations and the University of Minnesota in student 
recruiting, alumni relations, fund-raising activities, and general operations. The beneficiary organizations 
include the University of Minnesota Foundation, the University of Minnesota Alumni Association, and the 
Minnesota Medical Foundation. Gateway’s six-member Board of Directors consists of three members from 
the University of Minnesota Foundation, two members from the University of Minnesota Alumni 
Association, and one member from the Minnesota Medical Foundation.  

During fiscal year 2012 and 2011, Gateway distributed $689 and $987, respectively, to the University. 
Complete financial statements for the University Gateway Corporation can be obtained from the McNamara 
Alumni Center Management Office, 200 Oak Street S.E., Suite 35, Minneapolis, MN 55455. 

University of Minnesota Physicians 

University of Minnesota Physicians (UMPhysicians) is a legally separate, tax-exempt clinical practice 
organization for the faculty of the University of Minnesota School of Medicine. The Board of UMPhysicians 
consists of 24 voting directors, including the UMPhysicians chief executive officer, the dean of the 
University of Minnesota Medical School, faculty and department heads of the University Medical School (18 
members), individuals from the community at-large (4 members), and 2 nonvoting directors. 

During fiscal years 2012 and 2011, UMPhysicians distributed $79,061 and $67,294, respectively, to the 
University. Complete financial statements for University of Minnesota Physicians can be obtained from the 
Chief Financial Officer, 720 Washington Ave S.E., Suite 200, Minneapolis, MN 55414. 

Component Units 

With the exception of UMore Development Limited Liability Company (LLC), the University’s component 
units are nonprofit organizations, organized under IRS Code Section 501(c)(3). These units report under 
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 958, Not-for-Profit Entities.  As such, certain revenue recognition 
criteria and presentation features are different from GASB revenue recognition criteria and presentation 
features. No modifications have been made to the component units’ financial information in the University’s 
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financial report for these differences. The component units’ financial data has, however, been aggregated 
into like categories for presentation purposes and is shown in these statements in thousands, although in all 
cases except the University of Minnesota Physicians, the separately issued component units’ financial 
statements are not rounded. 

Financial Statement Presentation 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles prescribed by GASB. 
These statements are prepared on a consolidated, entity-wide basis. All significant inter-fund balances have 
been eliminated upon consolidation. 

Basis of Accounting 

The University is considered to be a special purpose government engaged primarily in business type 
activities (BTA). As a BTA, the University prepares its financial statements using the accrual basis of 
accounting and the economic-resources-measurement focus. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues 
and expenses are recognized when earned or incurred, respectively. 

As a GASB institution, the University has the option of applying pronouncements issued by the FASB after 
November 30, 1989, unless FASB conflicts with GASB. The University has elected not to adopt FASB 
pronouncements issued after the applicable date. 

Significant Accounting Policies 

Cash and Cash Equivalents—For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the University defines cash and 
cash equivalents as highly liquid, short-term (90 days or less) investments that bear little or no market risk. 
The intent of the Consolidated Endowment Fund (CEF), the Group Income Pool (GIP), and the Separately 
Invested Funds (SIF) is long-term appreciation. Any cash balances held at the date of the statements are due 
to the timing of reinvesting the proceeds within the funds.  

Investments—Investments in securities are reported at market value as determined by the major securities 
markets. Land and other real estate investments held in endowment are reported at market value as well. The 
values are determined using standardized industry practices, including a third party appraisal performed to 
validate internal valuations. Alternative investment strategies involving thinly traded securities are 
determined by the most recent purchase or sale price publicly available for that security. Private investments 
including real estate, timber, and venture capital are independently appraised annually and reported by 
investment managers as an updated estimate to that appraisal. As a result, these investments bear a greater 
risk that the reported value may be materially different than actual value. Certain alternative investments and 
intellectual property (e.g., income-producing patents) are reported on a cost basis. Purchases and sales of 
investments are recorded on a settlement-date basis. Investment income is reported on the accrual basis and 
includes:  interest income; realized and unrealized gains and losses; and endowment income (interest earned 
on endowments but allocated to other funds).  

The University uses derivative instruments for a variety of purposes. Financial futures are used to maintain 
investment portfolio asset allocations in accordance with institutional policy and to enhance the investment 
returns of certain asset classes. Forward foreign exchange contracts are used to protect against foreign 
currency exposure; gas commodity forward contracts are used to synthetically fix the price of other physical 
gas purchases used for University consumption; and interest rate swaps are used to manage the cost of debt. 
Financial futures and forward foreign exchange contracts are recorded on the contract date and are carried at 
fair value using listed price quotations or amounts that approximate fair value. The University is required to 
post collateral, typically U.S. Treasury bills, for derivative contracts held. Collateral required by these 
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contracts is monitored daily and required deposits or withdrawals are made as necessary. In general, the 
University follows the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA), as adopted in 
Minnesota, for donor-restricted endowments. Under UPMIFA, the Board of Regents determines the prudent 
amount of realized and unrealized endowment appreciation to be allocated to fund current operations. 
Investment of the realized or unrealized appreciation in excess of the annual spending limits is discussed in 
Note 2.  

Inventories—Inventories held for resale are carried at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market value. 
Other inventories are carried primarily at cost, which approximates market value.  

Receivables and Student Loan Receivables, Net—Receivables and student loan receivables are shown net of 
estimated allowance for uncollectible accounts.  

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents—Restricted cash and cash equivalents represent unspent bond 
proceeds, which are externally restricted for the construction or purchase of buildings or other capital assets. 
Although these funds meet the University’s definition of cash and cash equivalents, they are recorded as 
long-term assets, as these funds are required to be used for long-term capital projects.  

Capital Assets—Land, buildings, and other property are recorded at cost, if purchased or constructed, or at 
market value on the date of gift, if received by gift or bequest. Depreciation is determined using the straight-
line method, based on the estimated useful lives of the assets. Interest that qualified for interest capitalization 
is $1,506 and $1,636 for fiscal years 2012 and 2011, respectively. 

The following schedule summarizes the useful lives and capitalization thresholds: 

 

The University maintains certain collections (works of art or historical treasures) for public exhibition, 
education, or research in furtherance of public service. These collections are preserved, unencumbered, and 
cannot be disposed of for financial gain (proceeds from sales of collection items must be used to acquire 
other items for the collections). As such, these collections are not capitalized for financial statement 
reporting purposes.  

Unearned Income—Unearned income represents amounts received from tuition, auxiliary services, and 
grants and contracts prior to fiscal year-end but not yet earned. 

Noncurrent Liabilities—Noncurrent liabilities represent the principal portion of bonds, notes, and capital 
lease obligations as well as estimated amounts of accrued compensated absences, other postemployment 
benefits, and other liabilities that will not be paid within the next fiscal year.  

Net Assets—Net assets are reported in three components based upon the type of external restriction imposed. 

• Unrestricted: Net assets that have no external restriction imposed. Unrestricted net assets may be 
designated for specific purposes by the Board of Regents or subject to contractual limitations, but 
generally are designated to fund the academic, research, and public service mission of the University. 

Asset category
Useful life
(in years)

Capitalization 
threshold

Capitalized software (intangible asset) Shorter of legal life or 5 years $500,000
Licenses (intangible asset) License term 500,000       
Non income-producing intellectual property (intangible asset) Legal life 500,000       
All other intangible assets 5 500,000       
Buildings and improvements 10-40 50,000         
Infrastructure 10-40 50,000         
Leasehold improvements Lease term 50,000         
Equipment 3-20 2,500           
Land Indefinite           -
Library and reference books 10           -
Permanent right-of-way easements (intangible asset) Indefinite           -
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• Restricted:  

Expendable—Net assets that are restricted for specific purposes by grantors, donors, or law. 
Restrictions on these assets are released when the University complies with the stipulations required 
by the grantor, donor, or legislative act.  

Nonexpendable—Net assets that are required to be retained permanently by the University. These 
assets represent the principal portion (historical value) of gifts to the University’s true and life 
endowment funds, and institutional contributions to refundable loan programs.  

• Invested in capital assets, net of related debt: Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and 
outstanding debt used to purchase, construct, or improve such assets. If debt has been incurred but not 
yet expended for capital assets, these unspent proceeds are classified as restricted-expendable net 
assets.  

If both restricted and unrestricted resources are to be used for the same purpose, the resources are used in 
accordance with applicable instructions of the grantor, donor, or law. 

Restatement of Prior Period Amounts—Subsequent to the issuance of the consolidated financial statements 
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, the University identified adjustments, which resulted in a net 
overstatement of beginning Unrestricted Net Assets and an overstatement of Investments. The University 
determined that at the time of the adoption of GASB 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible 
Assets (GASB 51), the amounts recorded for income producing intangible assets should have reduced to 
reflect accumulated amortization through the effective date of adoption.  As a result of improved data 
available from the InfoEd software system related to patents, the University has corrected the accompanying 
financial statements, retroactive to July 1, 2010, to improve consistency of the 2012 and 2011 financial 
statements. The net effect of these corrections for fiscal year 2011 is a decrease in beginning Net Assets of 
$12.6 million, a decrease in ending Unrestricted Net Assets of $12.6 million and a decrease in Investments of 
$12.6 million. The University believes that the effect of these adjustments is not material to the 
accompanying financial statements. 

Revenue Recognition—The University recognizes exchange revenue in accordance with GASB Statement 
No. 34 (GASB 34), Basic Financial Statements—and Management’s Discussion and Analysis—for State and 
Local Governments, when the University receives and gives up essentially equal values, and recognizes 
nonexchange revenue in accordance with GASB Statement No. 33 (GASB 33), Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions, when the University receives something of value without directly 
giving something of equal value in exchange. 

Revenue and Expense Classifications—The University has classified revenues and expenses as operating or 
nonoperating based upon the following criteria: 

• Operating revenues: Revenues that result from exchange activities that contribute to the 
University’s mission of Research and Discovery; Teaching and Learning; and Outreach and Public 
Service. Exchange activities are transactions where the amount received approximates the fair market 
value of the goods or services given up. The University considers student tuition and fees (net of 
scholarship allowances), most grants and contracts, interest on student loans, and sales and services 
of auxiliary and educational activities (net of scholarship allowances) to be exchange transactions. 

• Nonoperating revenues: Revenues that represent nonexchange activities. The primary sources of 
these revenues are federal and state appropriations, gifts, capital grants, federal and state financial aid 
grants (such as Pell and Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants), and other nonexchange 
grants and contracts. Although the University relies upon these revenue sources to fund the cost of 
operations, the grantor or donor is not the direct recipient of the goods or services delivered under the 
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grant or gift terms. Insurance recovery proceeds are also classified as nonoperating revenues as part 
of other nonoperating revenues, net, which total $740 and $1,642 for fiscal years 2012 and 2011, 
respectively.   

• Operating expenses: Expenses that are paid to acquire or produce goods and services in return for 
operating revenues. The University has classified operating expenses based upon their functional 
classification. Operating expenses by natural classification are presented in Note 12.  

During fiscal years 2012 and 2011, departmental research in nonsponsored accounts of $160,535 and 
$161,492, respectively, was recorded as research expense. 

• Nonoperating expenses: Expenses incurred in the performance of activities that are not directly 
related to generating University operating revenues, such as interest on capital asset-related debt. 

Reclassifications—Certain prior-year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the presentation used in 
the current year. These reclassifications had no impact on net assets as previously reported. 

Use of Estimates—To prepare the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America, management must make estimates and assumptions. 
These estimates and assumptions may affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues 
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The most 
significant areas that require the use of management’s estimates relate to investment valuations, accounts 
payable, allowances for uncollectible accounts, self-insurance reserves, scholarship discounts and 
allowances, arbitrage rebates, and vacation pay and pension accruals. 

New Accounting Pronouncements 

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued new accounting standards that may be 
applicable to the University effective in future fiscal years. 

GASB Statement No. 60, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession Arrangements, 
addresses the recognition, measurement, and disclosure requirements for services concession arrangements 
(SCA), which are a type of public-private or public-public partnership.    

GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity:  Omnibus—an amendment of GASB Statements 
No. 14 and 34, which modifies and improves existing guidance regarding the inclusion, presentation, and 
disclosure requirements for component unit and equity interest transactions of a financial reporting entity.   

GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-
November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, brings authoritative accounting and financial 
reporting literature of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) and American Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants’ (AICPA) issued on or before November 30, 1989, and which does not conflict or 
contradict GASB pronouncements, together in one standard. 

GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources, and Net Position, standardizes the presentation of deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources and their effects on the University’s net position. 
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GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, reclassifies certain items that 
were previously reported as assets and liabilities as deferred inflows or outflows of resources or recognizes 
them as inflows or outflows of resources. 

GASB Statement No. 66, Technical Corrections—2012—an amendment of GASB Statements No. 10 and No. 
62, resolves conflicting guidance that resulted from the issuance of two pronouncements. 

GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions—an amendment of GASB 
Statement No. 27, improves the accounting and financial reporting for pensions, along with improving 
information regarding financial support for pensions provided by other entities. 

 Management is in the process of evaluating whether these GASB statements will be applicable to the 
University and the impact these statements may have on the University’s financial statements.   

 
2. Cash and Investments 

Summary 

The University maintains centralized management of substantially all of its cash and investments which are 
held in several investment pools.  Each pool has a specific set of guidelines designed to meet its respective 
investment objectives within risk parameters established for that pool.  Securities held in these portfolios are 
exposed to various types of risk such as credit, interest rates, foreign currency and other capital market risks. 
Material changes in the value of securities subsequent to June 30, 2012 could affect the market values 
reported in the consolidated financial statements.  

The following table summarizes cash and investments, including RUMINCO, Ltd., a wholly-owned captive 
insurance company, as of June 30, 2012: 

 

  

Separately Invested
Temporary Consolidated Group Invested Assets RUMINCO, Ltd.
Investment Endowment Income Funds and Related to Insurance

Pool Fund Pool Other Indebtedness Subsidiary Total
Cash and cash equivalents 165,013$     136$            109$             2,176$             317$                  167,751$       
Short-term investments 133,586       133,586         
   Total current assets 298,599       136              109               2,176               317                    301,337         

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 187,769           187,769         

Investments—Securities 652,496       251,963       40$            904,499         
Investments—Other 718,494       44,284          26,019       32,374               821,171         
   Total noncurrent investments 652,496       970,457       44,284          26,059       32,374               1,725,670      
   Total cash and investments 951,095$     970,593$     44,393$        26,059$     189,945$         32,691$             2,214,776$    
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The following table summarizes cash and investments, including RUMINCO, Ltd., a wholly-owned captive 
insurance company, as of June 30, 2011: 

 

Authorizations 

The Board of Regents (Board) establishes the investment policies and objectives for all University funds. 
RUMINCO, Ltd., a wholly-owned captive insurance company, has an independent Board of Directors that 
establishes the investment policies and objectives for its reserves.  Guidelines to manage the investment 
pools are described below:  

Temporary Investment Pool (TIP)—Short-Term Reserves—The TIP funds are intended to meet the 
current obligations of the University. The investment objectives for the TIP are to maximize current income 
and investment returns, maintain sufficient liquidity for University operations, and provide backup liquidity 
for certain University short-term or variable-rate debt obligations.  The pool may invest in money market 
funds, corporate obligations, and U.S. government and agency securities, within specified credit quality and 
term constraints.  

The Board’s Investment of Reserves policy allows for up to 30 percent of the pool to be invested in the 
Consolidated Endowment Fund (CEF).  As of June 30, 2012 and 2011, the market value of the TIP assets 
invested in the CEF was $112,611 and $108,661, respectively.  These assets are reported in the total cash and 
investments of the CEF.  In addition, the Investment of Reserves policy guidelines include the following: 
average duration of four years or less for the entire pool and maximum duration of seven years for any 
individual holding; average credit quality of A1/A+ or better; no use of leverage; and credit ratings of 
investment grade defined as Baa3/BBB- or better by Moody’s or Standard & Poor’s.  Retention of a lower 
rated security requires approval by the president or delegate.    

For both June 30, 2012 and 2011 the TIP’s average Standard & Poor’s credit rating was AAA.  

Consolidated Endowment Fund (CEF)—The CEF represents the pooling of funds from both public and 
private sources for which donor intent, law, or institutional decree determines the principal amount that must 
be invested in perpetuity or other specified time frames. The funds are invested to achieve an inflation-
adjusted rate of return, after expenses are deducted, that exceeds the current payout rate of 4.5 percent of the 
average of the endowment’s trailing month-end market values for the prior 60 months.  The Board reserves 
the authority to approve asset allocation ranges for this pool.  

Minnesota State Chapter 309, Section 745, governs the expenditure or accumulation of endowment funds, 
where the intent of a donor expressed in the gift instrument, an institution may appropriate for expenditure or 
accumulate so much of an endowment fund as the institution determines is prudent for the uses, benefits, 
purposed, and duration for which the endowment fund is established.  For fiscal years ended June 30, 2012 

Separately Invested
Temporary Consolidated Group Invested Assets RUMINCO, Ltd.
Investment Endowment Income Funds and Related to Insurance

Pool Fund Pool Other Indebtedness Subsidiary Total
Cash and cash equivalents 235,631$     3,888$         (341)$           3,634$             281$                  243,093$       
Short-term investments 49,993         2,272               52,265           
   Total current assets 285,624       3,888           (341)             5,906               281                    295,358         

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 175,939           175,939         

Investments—Securities 526,895       228,162       7,570            40$            762,667         
Investments—Other 736,250       36,725          28,049       32,164               833,188         
   Total noncurrent investments 526,895       964,412       44,295          28,089       32,164               1,595,855      
   Total cash and investments 812,519$     968,300$     43,954$        28,089$     181,845$         32,445$             2,067,152$    
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and 2011, $10,179 and $34,570, respectively, in net appreciation over the prior fiscal year was made 
available for departmental spending in unrestricted net assets. 

The University makes distributions from the CEF for activities targeted by the individual endowments.  
When the CEF investment return is less than the payout rate, accumulated capital gains are used to 
supplement the distribution payout to meet the spending policy. If investment income exceeds the amount 
needed for distribution the excess remains as a capital gain in the respective endowment.  

The CEF is a diversified portfolio that utilizes external investment managers. The CEF assets are held in 
separately managed accounts, commingled pools, and limited partnerships (LP). Each of these fund 
structures have different risk and return characteristics.  LP investments are privately negotiated transactions 
with limited liquidity.  LPs are required to conduct an external audit annually in accordance with the 
Financial Accounting Standards Board or the International Accounting Standards Board.   As of June 30, 
2012 and 2011, the University had unfunded commitments to LPs of $166,641 and $228,667, respectively, 
which are commitments that have not been drawn down by the general partners. 

Group Income Pool (GIP)—Long-Term Reserves—The GIP represents assets invested for the benefit of 
various university units for long-term capital purposes. The investment objective of the GIP is to maximize 
the total investment return while preserving capital balances until such time as the principal is required to 
fund the intended use.  The GIP is invested in fixed-income funds through external investment managers.  
Additionally, up to 50 percent of the pool can be invested in the CEF.  As of June 30, 2012 and 2011, the 
market value of the GIP assets invested in the CEF was $10,622 and $10,249, respectively.  These assets are 
reported in the total cash and investments of the CEF. 

Separately Invested Funds (SIF) and Other—The SIF represent restricted assets which include future 
licensing or royalty interests and equity in companies that are established based on University owned 
technology, as well as, minerals and future mineral rights assigned to the University from privately owned 
real estate.  All of these assets have been assigned a nominal value.  Investments defined as other represent 
investments made by the University in its own intellectual property, such as copyrights, patents, and 
trademarks, which are developed with the primary purpose of generating royalty income from its licensing to 
external customers. These other investments are valued at cost, which is based on certain filing and legal 
expenses incurred to establish the University’s legal ownership. 

Invested Assets Related to Indebtedness—Invested Assets Related to Indebtedness are internally managed 
and held in custodial accounts. These assets are invested in high quality, short-term fixed income securities 
until needed for capital projects for which the debt was issued. 

Regents of the University of Minnesota Insurance Company, Ltd. (RUMINCO)—RUMINCO is a 
wholly-owned captive insurance company (Note 9) whose principal activities are the insurance of certain 
risks to the University.  Coverage includes: commercial general and professional liability, non-profit 
organization liability, business auto liability and excess automobile liability.  RUMINCO insurance 
agreements limit the exposure to loss on a per-occurrence and annual aggregate basis.   

The investment objectives for the liability reserves, which cover specific known and expected claims, are 
capital preservation and near term liquidity.  The investment objectives for the capital surplus in excess of 
the liability reserves are to maximize the total return within acceptable risk parameters and to achieve at least 
400 basis points of return above the inflation rate over multiple year periods. 

Components of Net Investment Income (Loss)—Components of the net investment income (loss) include 
interest, dividends, realized and unrealized gains or losses and all changes in fair market value on 
investments.   
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The components of the net investment income (loss) are as follows: 

 

Investment Risks 

Credit and Interest Rate Risk—Credit risk is the risk that company specific events may cause a bond 
issuer to default, which results in a failure to repay principal or interest owed to the University in a timely 
manner.  The Board’s Investment of Reserves policy affecting the assets of the TIP limits investments in 
fixed income instruments to those with credit ratings of investment grade as a means of managing its 
exposure to market value losses arising from credit deterioration or defaults. 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the market value of the 
University’s fixed income investments. The Board’s Investment of Reserves policy affecting assets in the 
TIP limits investment duration as a means of managing its exposure to market value losses arising from 
increasing interest rates.  

The following table summarizes the TIP, CEF, GIP, and RUMINCO credit and interest rate exposures as of 
June 30, 2012: 

 

  

 Investment 
Income (Net) 

 Net Increase 
(Decrease) in 

The Fair 
Market Value 
of Investments 

 Net 
Investment 

Income (Loss) 
Temporary Investment Pool 9,671$             2,268$             11,939$           
Consolidated Endowment Fund 49,787             (22,444)            27,343             
Group Investment Pool 4,061               (2,576)              1,485               
Separately Invested Funds and Other 11                    (5,205)              (5,194)              
Invested Assets Related to Indebtedness 48                    1,334               1,382               
RUMINCO, Ltd. Insurance Subsidiary 978                  (1,038)              (60)                   
     Total 2012 64,556$           (27,661)$          36,895$           

     Total 2011 58,303$           122,562$         180,865$         

Fixed-income securities:
Market 
Value

Weighted 
Average 
Maturity 
(years)

AA or 
Better BBB to A

BB or 
Lower Not Rated

Cash & equivalents 183,330$    0.00                      100 
Mortgage-backed securities 40,000        22.40                    100 
US Agency 695,097      2.50                      100 
US Treasury 45,000        1.90                      100 
Mutual Funds 166,847      7.10                      100 
  Total marketable fixed-income securities 1,130,274   3.45          
  Private fixed-income securities 38,885        
Total fixed-income securities 1,169,159$ 
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The following table summarizes the TIP, CEF, GIP, and RUMINCO credit and interest rate exposures as of 
June 30, 2011: 

 

Concentration of Credit Risk—Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the exposure of 
the University’s investment in a single issuer. The Board’s Endowment Fund policy prohibits investing 
directly in individual issuers in the CEF and places limits on exposures to individual managers and funds.  
The Board’s Investment of Reserves policy places limits on concentrations to a single corporate issuer in the 
TIP of no more than 5 percent.  As of June 30, 2012, and 2011, all securities held in the pools were in 
compliance with policy guidelines.  

Foreign Currency Risk—The University invests in foreign currency denominated assets. Fluctuations in 
exchange rates may adversely affect the fair market value of such investments.   

  

Fixed-income securities:
Market 
Value

Weighted 
Average 
Maturity 
(years)

AA or 
Better BBB to A

BB or 
Lower Not Rated

Cash & equivalents 281,020$    0.04                      100 
Mortgage-backed securities 15,005        6.70                      100 
US agency 476,775      2.30                      100 
US treasury 30,000        2.80                      100 
Mutual Funds 154,998      6.49                      100 
  Total marketable fixed-income securities 957,798      2.40          
  Private fixed-income securities 45,791        
Total fixed-income securities 1,003,589$ 
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The following table summarizes the University’s exposure to foreign currency risk, stated in U.S. dollar 
equivalents, as of June 30, 2012 and 2011: 

 

Securities Lending—The University does not participate in a securities lending program. 

Financial Institution Credit Risk  

Deposits—Depository credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the University’s deposits may 
not be recovered. Beginning December 31, 2010, and ending December 31, 2012, all non-interest-bearing 
accounts are fully insured, regardless of balance, at qualified FDIC-insured institutions. This change was due 
to the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act that provides for unlimited insurance 
coverage for such non-interest-bearing accounts. As of June 30, 2012 and 2011, the University’s bank 
balances of $182,138 and $76,766, respectively, were insured, but uncollateralized. 

Investments—Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of failure of the counterparty, the University 
may not be able to recover the value of its investments held in custodial accounts.  The University currently 
has custodial accounts at State Street Bank & Trust Company and JPMorgan Chase.  As of June 30, 2012 
and 2011, the market value of investments held in the custodial accounts was $785,352 and $565,421 in TIP 
and $28,770 and $40,612 in CEF, respectively.  

 

 

Market Market
Investment Foreign value value
type currency 2012 2011
Equity/Debt/RE Euro  $  45,113  $  28,457 
Equity Japanese Yen      16,346         8,489 
Equity/Debt Other Currency           274        5,420 
Equity British Pound Sterling      12,355        5,081 
Equity/Debt Brazilian Real        4,936        3,826 
Equity Hong Kong Dollar        7,868        2,984 
Equity/Debt South Korean Won        5,500        2,616 
Equity/Debt Mexican Peso        2,793        1,913 
Equity Australian Dollar        4,285        1,833 
Equity Singapore Dollar        2,191        1,719 
Equity/Debt Chinese Renminbi        2,245        1,374 
Debt Russian Ruble           566        1,314 
Equity Swedish Krona        1,536        1,227 
Equity Canadian Dollar        4,692        1,165 
Equity Indian Rupee        2,143        1,016 
Equity South African Rand        2,738           962 
Debt Argentine Peso              -             940 
Equity Thailand Baht           860           825 
Equity New Taiwan Dollar        3,629           746 
Equity/Debt Swiss Franc        3,072           694 
Equity Turkish Lira           604           651 
Debt Indonesian Rupiah           918           598 
Equity Malaysian Ringgit        1,501           450 
Equity Kazakhstan Tenge              -             285 
Equity Norwegian Krone           414           242 
Equity Polish Zloty           449           171 
Equity Danish Krone           406             51 
Equity New Zealand Dollar             40             10 
Equity Israeli Shekel           193 
Equity Philippine Peso             10 
Total 127,677$ 75,059$   
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3. Other Asset and Liability Information 

 

 

 

 

 

Receivables, net, and student loans receivable as of June 30, 2012, consisted of the following:

Current Noncurrent Total
State and federal appropriations  $         792    $         792 
Sponsored grants and contracts 105,481 105,481 
Notes receivable 34  $         529 563 
Student receivables 35,767 35,767 
Trade receivables 98,208 98,208 
Accrued interest 5,212 5,212 
Other 9,916 19 9,935 
Allowance for uncollectible accounts (12,461) (12,461)
Total receivables, net  $  242,949  $         548  $  243,497 

Student loans receivable 11,740 53,474  $    65,214 
Allowance for uncollectible accounts (2,875) (535) (3,410)
Student loans receivable, net  $      8,865  $    52,939  $    61,804 

Accrued liabilities as of June 30, 2012, consisted of the following:

Current Noncurrent Total
Trade liabilities  $      6,572  $      7,416  $    13,988 
Compensation and benefits 132,026 93,334 225,360 
Self-insurance reserves 36,637 11,472 48,109 
Accrued interest 12,002 12,002 
Refundable advances 55,037 55,037 
Other 41,123 41,123 
Total accrued liabilities  $  228,360  $  167,259  $  395,619 

Activity for certain liabilities consisted of the following as of June 30, 2012: 

Additions Reductions

Self-insurance reserves (see Note 9) 43,989 251,902 (247,782) 48,109 36,637 
Refundable advances 55,659 (622) 55,037 
Other 42,384 41,123 (42,384) 41,123 41,123 

Current 
Portion

Compensated balances (excluding pensions, see 
Note 6)  $205,556  $   126,291  $(111,750)  $  220,097  $  132,026 

Beginning 
Balance

Ending 
Balance
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Receivables, net, and student loans receivable as of June 30, 2011, consisted of the following:

Current Noncurrent Total
State and federal appropriations  $    19,352    $    19,352 
Sponsored grants and contracts 105,373 105,373 
Notes receivable 32  $         518 550 
Student receivables 38,816 38,816 
Trade receivables 86,951 86,951 
Accrued interest 3,088 3,088 
Other 17,113 44 17,157 
Allowance for uncollectible accounts (11,934) (11,934)
Total receivables, net  $  258,791  $         562  $  259,353 

Student loans receivable  $    11,404  $    54,354  $    65,758 
Allowance for uncollectible accounts (2,681) (543) (3,224)
Student loans receivable, net  $      8,723  $    53,811  $    62,534 

Accrued liabilities as of June 30, 2011, consisted of the following:

Current Noncurrent Total
Trade liabilities  $    10,154  $         526  $    10,680 
Compensation and benefits 131,383 79,751 211,134 
Self-insurance reserves 33,244 10,745 43,989 
Accrued interest 11,866 11,866 
Refundable advances 55,658 55,658 
Other 40,851 1,533 42,384 
Total accrued liabilities  $  227,498  $  148,213  $  375,711 

Activity for certain liabilities consisted of the following as of June 30, 2011: 

Additions Reductions

Self-insurance reserves (see Note 9) 39,145 257,672 (252,828) 43,989 33,244 
Refundable advances 56,056 (397) 55,659 
Other 72,976 42,384 (72,976) 42,384 40,851 

Current 
Portion

Compensated balances (excluding pensions, see 
Note 6)  $237,978  $   135,926  $(168,348)  $  205,556  $  131,383 

Beginning 
Balance

Ending 
Balance
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4. Capital Assets 

 

Capital assets, net as of June 30, 2012, consisted of the following:

Beginning balance Additions Transfers Retirements Ending balance
Depreciable / amortizable capital assets
   Buildings and improvements 3,235,133$                4,756$          73,366$        3,313,255$          
   Leasehold improvements 9,239                         3                   9,242                   
   Equipment 718,422                     56,976          (53,723)$        721,675               
   Infrastructure 411,194                     (140)              27,001          438,055               
   Library and reference books 125,119                     14,270          139,389               
   Capitalized software (intangible asset) 97,940                       8,897            5,112            111,949               
   All other intangible assets 8,937                         648               (5,112)           4,473                   
Total depreciable / amortizable capital assets 4,605,984                  85,410          100,367        (53,723)          4,738,038            

Non-depreciable / amortizable capital assets
   Land 87,416                       2,776            (3)                   90,189                 
   Museums and collections 49,846                       1,882            51,728                 
   Construction in progress 100,413                     186,926        (100,367)       1                    186,973               
   Permanent right-of-way easements (intangible asset) 2                                2                          
Total non-depreciable / amortizable capital assets 237,677                     191,584        (100,367)       (2)                   328,892               

Accumulated depreciation / amortization
   Buildings and improvements (1,404,163)                 (85,811)         (1,489,974)          
   Leasehold improvements (3,519)                        (808)              (4,327)                 
   Equipment (492,038)                    (56,638)         52,345           (496,331)             
   Infrastructure (203,010)                    (14,342)         (217,352)             
   Library and reference books (59,518)                      (12,757)         (72,275)               
   Capitalized software (intangible asset) (71,376)                      (12,795)         (2,731)           140                (86,762)               
   All other intangible assets (4,965)                        (724)              2,731            (2,958)                 
Total accumulated depreciation / amortizable (2,238,589)                 (183,875)       -                52,485           (2,369,979)          

Capital assets, net 2,605,072$                93,119$        -$              (1,240)$          2,696,951$          

Summary
   Depreciable / amortizable capital assets 4,605,984$                85,410$        100,367$      (53,723)$        4,738,038$          
   Non-depreciable / amortizable capital assets 237,677                     191,584        (100,367)       (2)                   328,892               
Total capital assets 4,843,661                  276,994        (53,725)          5,066,930            
Less accumulated depreciation / amortization (2,238,589)                 (183,875)       52,485           (2,369,979)          
    Capital assets, net 2,605,072$                93,119$        -$              (1,240)$          2,696,951$          
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Capital assets, net as of June 30, 2011, consisted of the following:

Beginning balance Additions Transfers Retirements Ending balance
Depreciable / amortizable capital assets
   Buildings and improvements 3,055,478$                144$             180,497$      (986)$             3,235,133$          
   Leasehold improvements 8,740                         501               (2)                   9,239                   
   Equipment 663,475                     68,268          (13,321)          718,422               
   Infrastructure 407,299                     3,905            (10)                 411,194               
   Library and reference books 121,762                     13,947          (10,590)          125,119               
   Capitalized software (intangible asset) 93,029                       4,927            (16)                 97,940                 
   All other intangible assets 7,586                         1,351            8,937                   
Total depreciable / amortizable capital assets 4,357,369                  89,138          184,402        (24,925)          4,605,984            

Non-depreciable / amortizable capital assets
   Land 85,218                       2,198            87,416                 
   Museums and collections 47,572                       2,072            202               49,846                 
   Construction in progress 140,347                     148,844        (184,604)       (4,174)            100,413               
   Permanent right-of-way easements (intangible asset) 2                                2                          
Total non-depreciable / amortizable capital assets 273,139                     153,114        (184,402)       (4,174)            237,677               

Accumulated depreciation / amortization
   Buildings and improvements (1,329,579)                 (75,108)         524                (1,404,163)          
   Leasehold improvements (2,686)                        (833)              (3,519)                 
   Equipment (453,432)                    (51,235)         12,629           (492,038)             
   Infrastructure (189,736)                    (13,274)         (203,010)             
   Library and reference books (57,400)                      (12,708)         10,590           (59,518)               
   Capitalized software (intangible asset) (62,730)                      (8,646)           (71,376)               
   All other intangible assets (3,081)                        (1,884)           (4,965)                 
Total accumulated depreciation / amortizable (2,098,644)                 (163,688)       -                23,743           (2,238,589)          

Capital assets, net 2,531,864$                78,564$        -$              (5,356)$          2,605,072$          

Summary
   Depreciable / amortizable capital assets 4,357,369$                89,138$        184,402$      (24,925)$        4,605,984$          
   Non-depreciable / amortizable capital assets 273,139                     153,114        (184,402)       (4,174)            237,677               
Total capital assets 4,630,508                  242,252        (29,099)          4,843,661            
Less accumulated depreciation / amortization (2,098,644)                 (163,688)       23,743           (2,238,589)          
    Capital assets, net 2,531,864$                78,564$        -$              (5,356)$          2,605,072$          
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5. Long-Term Debt 

Long-term debt on June 30, 2012, consisted of the following:  

 

Long-term debt on June 30, 2011, consisted of the following:  

 

 

Original 
issued 

amount (par)
Fiscal year 

issued Interest rate

Due at 
various dates 
through fiscal 

year

FY 2012 
beginning 
balance Additions Reductions

FY 2012      
ending 
balance

Current 
portion

General obligation bonds
   *Series 2011D  $     53,610 2012 2.00%-5.00% 2037  $       60,964  $          156  $       60,808  $       1,455 
   *Series 2011C           19,335 2012 0.90%-4.56% 2037           19,322           19,322              299 
   *Series 2011A         335,270 2011 2.00%-5.50% 2037  $       368,073         19,297         348,776         22,182 
     Series 2010B           41,720 2011 .74%-5.02% 2036             41,720 920 40,800           1,295 
     Series 2010D           27,200 2010 3.86%-5.77% 2030             27,200 27,200
   *Series 2010C             8,480 2010 2.00%-4.00% 2016 7,570 1,440 6,130 1,470
   *Series 2009D 37,330 2009 6.30% 2029 37,032 (17) 37,049 (17)
   *Series 2009C 44,625 2009 1.50%-5.00% 2022 43,171 3,187 39,984 3,317
     Series 2009B 17,035 2009 2.50%-6.00% 2029 16,005 600 15,405 620
   *Series 2009A 41,000 2009 3.00%-5.25% 2034 40,672 1,104 39,568 1,136
     Series 2001B 3,500 2002 4.33% 2012 435 435
Commercial paper notes, Series A 159,100 2006 .10%–.31% 2013 131,100 7,000 124,100 124,100
Commercial paper notes, Series B 61,000 2007 .14%–.31% 2013 49,000 3,000 46,000 46,000
Commercial paper notes, Series C 70,000 2008 .13%–.32% 2013 59,500 5,500 54,000 54,000
Commercial paper notes, Series D 25,000 2010 .13%–.29% 2013 25,000 2,750 22,250 22,250
Obligations to the State of Minnesota pursuant to 
Infrastructure development bonds 109,234 1991 3.55%–6.90% 2025 35,511 4,872 30,639 4,822
Auxiliary revenue bonds 13,180 1971-1977 3.00% 2014 2,215 795 1,420 800
*Special purpose revenue bonds, Series 2011B           52,485 2012 3.00%-5.00% 2037           57,893              157           57,736              593 
*Special purpose revenue bonds, Series 2010A 111,400 2011 3.00%–5.00% 2036 123,840 1,211 122,629 3,056
*Special purpose revenue bonds, Series 2006 137,250 2007 4.00%–5.00% 2030 131,353 4,769 126,584 4,969
Capital leases and other 1995-2010 1.72%–8.00% 2018 6,022 1,895 1,929 5,988 6,085
Total  $  1,367,754  $    1,145,419  $     140,074  $     59,105  $  1,226,388  $   298,432 
*Net unamortized premium/discount is included in beginning and ending balances.

Due at
Original 
issued 
amount 

(par)
Fiscal year 

issued Interest rate

 various 
dates 

through 
fiscal year

FY 2011 
beginning 
balance Additions Reductions

FY 2011      
ending 
balance

Current 
portion

General obligation bonds
   *Series 2011A  $   335,270 2011 2.00%-5.50% 2037  $   368,675  $        602  $   368,073  $   19,297 
     Series 2010B         41,720 2011 .74%-5.02% 2036         41,720 41,720 920
     Series 2010D         27,200 2010 3.86%-5.77% 2030  $       27,200 27,200
   *Series 2010C           8,480 2010 2.00%-4.00% 2016 8,955 1,385 7,570 1,440
   *Series 2009D 37,330 2009 6.30% 2029 37,015 (17) 37,032 (17)
   *Series 2009C 44,625 2009 1.50%-5.00% 2022 46,249 3,078 43,171 3,187
     Series 2009B 17,035 2009 2.50%-6.00% 2029 16,590 585 16,005 600
   *Series 2009A 41,000 2009 3.00%-5.25% 2034 41,749 1,077 40,672 1,106
   *Series 2004A 20,720 2005 4.00%–5.00% 2011 3,915 3,915
     Series 2003A 71,000 2003 4.39% 2011 62,700 62,700
     Series 2001C 159,950 2002 4.40% 2011 121,550 121,550
     Series 2001B 3,500 2002 4.33% 2012 850 415 435 435
     Series 1999A 200,650 1999 4.16% 2011 116,900 116,900
Commercial paper notes, Series A 159,100 2006 .10%–.31% 2012 137,100 6,000 131,100 131,100
Commercial paper notes, Series B 61,000 2007 .14%–.31% 2012 52,000 3,000 49,000 49,000
Commercial paper notes, Series C 70,000 2008 .13%–.32% 2012 59,750 250 59,500 59,500
Commercial paper notes, Series D 25,000 2010 .13%–.29% 2012 25,000 25,000 25,000
Obligations to the State of Minnesota pursuant to 
Infrastructure development bonds

109,234 1991 3.55%–6.90% 2025 40,466 4,955 35,511 4,872

Auxiliary revenue bonds 20,085 1971-1977 3.00% 2014 3,310 1,095 2,215 795
*Special purpose revenue bonds, Series 2010A 111,400 2011 3.00%–5.00% 2036 124,227 387 123,840 1,211
*Special purpose revenue bonds, Series 2006 137,250 2007 4.00%–5.00% 2030 135,927 4,574 131,353 4,769
Capital leases and other 1995-2010 1.72%–8.00% 2018 6,211 1,769 1,958 6,022 2,299
**Interest rate swaps borrowing 4.05% 2011 12,927 12,927
Total  $1,701,549  $     956,364  $   536,391  $ 347,336  $1,145,419  $ 305,514 
*Net unamortized premium/discount is included in beginning and ending balances.
**Interest rate swaps borrowing was reduced in its entirety due to termination of swaps in FY2011.
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General Obligation Bonds 

On December 21, 2011, the University issued General Obligation Bonds, Series 2011D in the par amount of 
$53,610. The proceeds will be used to fund projects that consist of the renovation of Northrop Memorial 
Auditorium, other construction and remodeling projects, purchases of land and buildings, and the acquisition 
and installation of equipment. The 2011D bonds were issued at coupon rates of 2.0 – 5.0 percent with a 
premium of $7,354.   

On October 13, 2011, the University issued General Obligation Taxable Bonds, Series 2011C in the par 
amount of $19,335 as the second tranche of the University Supported Biomedical Science Research Facilities 
Funding Program. The proceeds will be used to fund a portion of the costs of construction of one of the 
biomedical science research facilities. The 2011C bonds were issued at coupon rates of 0.9 – 4.6 percent 
with a discount of $13. 

On February 15, 2011, the University issued General Obligation Bonds, Series 2011A in the par amount of 
$335,270 to fund various capital projects, to refund the University’s outstanding variable rate General 
Obligation Bonds, Series 1999A and Series 2001C, and variable rate General Obligation Refunding Bonds, 
Series 2003A, and to pay costs of issuance.  The 2011A bonds were issued at coupon rates of 2.0 - 5.5 
percent with a premium of $33,405.  On March 21, 2011, the University refunded all of the current 
outstanding balance of the Series 1999A, 2001C and 2003A bonds in the amount of $282,900.  In addition, 
the University terminated liquidity facilities and interest rate swap agreements associated with each refunded 
series.   

On September 30, 2010, the University issued General Obligation Taxable Bonds, Series 2010B in the par 
amount of $41,720. The Series 2010B bonds are Build America Bonds – Direct Payment to Issuer, whereby 
the University will receive a 35 percent annual interest subsidy from the Federal Government for the life of 
the bonds. The 2010B bonds are the first tranche of the University Supported Biomedical Science Research 
Facilities Funding Program that will be used to fund a portion of the costs of construction of one or more 
biomedical science research facilities.  The 2010B bonds were issued at coupon rates of 0.74 – 5.02 percent. 

On February 10, 2010, the University issued General Obligation Taxable Bonds, Series 2010D and General 
Obligation Bonds, Series 2010C in the amount of $27,200 and $8,480, respectively. The Series 2010D bonds 
are Build America Bonds – Direct Payment to Issuer, whereby the University will receive a 35 percent 
annual interest subsidy from the Federal Government for the life of the bonds.  The 2010D bonds were 
issued at coupon rates of 3.86 – 5.77 percent.  The 2010C bonds were issued at coupon rates of 2.0 – 4.0 
percent with a premium of $508. 

On May 5, 2009, the University issued General Obligation Taxable Bonds, Series 2009D and General 
Obligation Bonds, Series 2009C in the par amount of $37,330 and $44,625, respectively.  The Series 2009D 
bonds are Build America Bonds – Direct Payment to Issuer, whereby the University will receive a 35 percent 
annual interest subsidy from the Federal Government for the life of the bonds.  The 2009D bonds were 
issued at a coupon rate of 6.3 percent, with a discount of $334.  The 2009C bonds were issued at coupon 
rates of 1.5 – 5.0 percent with a premium of $4,431. 

On February 5, 2009, the University issued General Obligation Taxable Bonds, Series 2009B and General 
Obligation Bonds, Series 2009A in the par amount of $17,035 and $41,000, respectively.  The 2009B bonds 
were issued at coupon rates of 2.5 – 6.0 percent. The 2009A bonds were issued at coupon rates of 3.0 – 5.25 
percent with a net premium of $1,528. 
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Under generally accepted accounting principles, the Series 2001B bonds were defined as demand bonds 
because bondholders had the option to put the bonds back to (demand repayment from) the University 
weekly. In the absence of Standby Purchase Agreements (SBPAs), the University classified the entire 
obligation of the Series 2001B bonds as current liabilities.  

All general obligation bonds are secured by the full faith and credit of the University and subject to 
mandatory sinking fund requirements set forth in the prospectuses. In addition, the bonds are tax-exempt 
with the exception of the Series 2010D, 2009D, 2009B, and 2001B bonds.  

Special Purpose Revenue Bonds 

On October 13, 2011, the University issued Special Purpose Revenue Bonds, Series 2011B in the par amount 
of $52,485 as the second tranche of the State Supported Biomedical Science Research Facilities Funding 
Program. The proceeds will be used to fund a portion of the costs of construction of one of the biomedical 
science research facilities. The 2011B bonds were issued at coupon rates of 3.0 – 5.0 percent with a premium 
of $5,408. State of Minnesota legislation provides for an annual appropriation to reimburse the University for 
the annual debt service on these bonds. 

On September 30, 2010, the University issued Special Purpose Revenue Bonds, Series 2010A in the par 
amount of $111,400.  The 2010A bonds are the first tranche of the State Supported Biomedical Science 
Research Facilities Funding Program that will be used to fund a portion of the costs of construction of one or 
more biomedical science research facilities.  The 2010A bonds were issued at coupon rates of 3.0 to 5.0 
percent with a premium of $12,827.  State of Minnesota legislation provides for an annual appropriation to 
reimburse the University for the annual debt service on these bonds. 

The University issued Special Purpose Revenue Bonds, Series 2006 to finance a portion of the cost of the 
TCF Bank Stadium on the Twin Cities campus and to pay costs of issuance. State funding of up to $10,250 
per year for no more than 25 years is provided to reimburse the University for the annual debt service on 
these bonds. 

Commercial Paper Notes 

The University issued tax-exempt Commercial Paper Notes, Series A, B, C, and D, to defease outstanding 
bond obligations, to finance purchases of land, buildings, construction, and remodeling projects to be 
undertaken by the University, to finance the acquisition and installation of equipment by the University, and 
to pay costs of issuance.  The commercial paper is backed by the University’s self-liquidity, which is 
supported by a line of credit with a major commercial bank.  The credit agreement was amended effective 
October 1, 2012, reducing the maximum line from $50,000 to $40,000, and extending the term for another 
one-year period with a current expiration of September 30, 2013.  No amounts have been drawn under the 
line of credit.   

Although commercial paper is short-term in nature and classified as current liabilities in the financial 
statements, the University intends to hold the commercial paper notes as a long-term financing vehicle. 

Auxiliary Bonds 

The University’s auxiliary bonds are secured by the revenues, net of expenses, of the auxiliary activity to 
which they relate, debt-service subsidy grants provided by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development, and the full faith and credit of the University. Student housing and food services net revenues 
of $2,270 in fiscal year 2012, and $2,909 in fiscal year 2011, were pledged as security to pay total debt 
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service payments of $930 and $1,286 for auxiliary revenue bonds in fiscal years 2012 and 2011, respectively. 
Revenues are pledged until fiscal year 2014, at which time the debt obligation on these auxiliary revenue 
bonds will be satisfied. 

The auxiliary bond agreements require minimum mandatory reserves sufficient to cover the principal and 
interest due in any future fiscal year. To comply with this requirement, the University set aside $1,201 on 
June 30, 2012 and $1,382 on June 30, 2011, for future debt service. An additional $975 and $4,526 was set 
aside for building replacement reserves on June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. These mandatory reserves 
are included in restricted expendable net assets in the financial statements.  

Infrastructure Development Bond Obligations 

Pursuant to Minnesota law, the University is obligated to pay the state one third of the debt service of 
infrastructure development bonds issued by the state for University capital projects. Debt was issued for this 
purpose between July 1990 and October 2005. The total amount of outstanding debt issued by the state on 
behalf of the University was $91,915 as of June 30, 2012 and $106,531 as of June 30, 2011 of which the 
University owes $30,639 and $35,511, respectively. 

Capital Leases and Other Debt 

Capital lease and other commitments consist of capital leases and a note payable for fleet vehicles and a real 
estate contract for deed. Equipment acquired through capital leases and the note payable totals $13,761 and 
related accumulated depreciation totals $7,640.  The capital leases bear interest rates between 1.5 percent and 
4.1 percent, with none extending beyond fiscal year 2020. The note payable bears interest which is tied to the 
30 Day LIBOR rate that cannot fall below a floor of 3.0 percent. The 3.0 percent floor for the note payable 
was maintained during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 and does not extend beyond fiscal year 2017. 

Interest Rate Swaps 

The University had three pay-fixed, receive-variable interest rate swaps to convert all of a portion of the 
associated variable rate debt to synthetic fixed rates to protect against future interest rate fluctuations – 
essentially hedging against the variability of cash flows for budgeting purposes.  On February 1, 2011, the 
University terminated the three interest rate swap agreements related to the Series 1999A, 2001C and 2003A 
bonds at a cost of $17,195 which included a net realized loss of $4,695.   

At June 30, 2012 the University has three freestanding pay-fixed, receive-variable interest rate swaps that are 
considered ineffective hedges, where the changes in fair value are included in investment income reported in 
the Consolidated Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets. 
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The terms, fair values, and credit rating of the outstanding swaps as of June 30, 2012, are as follows: 

 

Credit Risk—The three existing swaps at the end of the fiscal year are with two separate counterparties.  
The percentage of the notional amount of swaps outstanding on June 30, 2012 for each counterparty is 74 
and 26 percent, while these counterparties are rated A2 and A3, respectively, by Moody’s Investors Service.  
The University faces maximum possible losses equivalent to the amount of the derivatives’ fair value should 
the counterparty not perform under the terms of the swap agreements.  Due to the fair value of all the swaps 
being negative as of June 30, 2012, the University was not exposed to credit risk. 

It is the University’s practice to net payments to/from a counterparty required under the derivatives 
instrument as allowed under the terms of the Master Agreements.   

Interest Rate Risk—The University is exposed to interest rate risk since the changes in interest rates may 
adversely affect the fair value of the University’s interest rate swaps and/or cash flows related to the net 
interest payments.   

Basis Risk—The University was exposed to basis risk on two of its swaps since the variable-rate payments 
received by the University on the swaps are based on a rate or index other than interest rates the University 
pays to the holders of its commercial paper. These swaps matured subsequent to the fiscal year-end.   

Termination Risk—The University is exposed to termination risk on one of the freestanding swaps. The 
freestanding swap with a notional amount of $70,000 allows the counterparty to terminate the swap 
agreement if the variable rate paid by the counterparty to the University averages above 7.0 percent for any 
rolling consecutive 90-day period. 

Variable-rate bond interest payments and net swap payments will vary depending on current market 
conditions from week to week. Using rates as of June 30, 2012, debt service requirements of the University’s 
outstanding long-term debt obligations and net swap payments for the next five years and in subsequent five-
year periods are as follows:  

Associated Nature Swap
bond of Notional Effective Fixed Variable maturity
issue association amounts date rate rate Swap type Fair value date

CP, Series 
2005A Freestanding  $    70,000 8/27/1997 4.98% SIFMA Pay fixed and  $      (14,902) 8/27/2017

Index* receive variable 

CP, Series 
2005A Freestanding        37,500 8/28/1997 4.88% LIBOR Pay fixed and               (267) 8/28/2012

Index** receive variable 

CP, Series 
2005A Freestanding        37,500 9/1/1997 4.90% LIBOR Pay fixed and               (431) 7/1/2012

Index** receive variable 
 $  145,000  $      (15,600)

*   SIFMA (Securities Industry Financial Markets Association) Index, previously known as the BMA (Bond Market Association) Index,
       is a 7-day high-grade market index comprised of tax-exempt variable demand obligations from the MMD (Municipal Market Data).
**  LIBOR Index is an average yield of interbank offered rates for one-year US dollar-denominated deposits in the London Market.
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The two swaps with the notional amounts of $37,500 each matured subsequent to the fiscal year-end. The 
first swap matured on July 1, 2012 and the second swap matured on August 28, 2012. The remaining swap 
with the notional amount of $70,000 is with the counterparty, rated A2 by Moody’s Investors Service. 

Defeased Bonds 

In previous years, the University defeased various bonds by placing the proceeds from new bond issuances 
into an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt-service payments on the old bonds. The defeased bonds 
are as follows: 

 
 
The 1982 Series A bonds were issued December 1, 1982, to finance the construction and equipment for the 
University Hospital and Clinics. They were defeased in fiscal year 1985, resulting in a recognized loss of 
$13,945.  

The 1996 Series A bonds were issued to provide funds for capital projects and to refund the general 
obligation variable rate demand bonds Series 1985F, 1985G, 1985H, and 1985I and the 1991 Series A and 
Series B Commercial Paper. As required under the terms of a put option exercised July 5, 2005, the proceeds 
from the issuance of commercial paper notes, Series A in October 2005 were used to defease the remaining 
outstanding Series 1996A bonds. There was no gain or loss incurred with the defeasance of the 1996 Series 
A bonds.  

Neither the outstanding indebtedness nor the related trust account assets for the defeased bonds are included 
in the University’s financial statements. 

Arbitrage 

University general obligation and special purpose debt issuances issued after the Federal Tax Reform Act of 
1986 are subject to federal arbitrage regulations. This results when earnings on the invested gross proceeds 
of a bond issue exceed the issuer’s tax-exempt borrowing rates. The University continues to monitor and 
report any arbitrage in accordance with the Internal Revenue Code.  The University had no arbitrage liability 
at June 30, 2012 or June 30, 2011. 

Bonds and 
obligations

Commercial 
paper notes

Capital lease 
and other

Total 
principal Interest

Net interest 
rate swaps

Total 
obligations

Fiscal year ending June 30
2013  $     45,998  $   246,350  $         1,593  $    293,941  $     45,532  $      3,714  $     343,187 
2014 47,786 1,407 49,193 41,956 3,423 94,572
2015 48,442 1,249 49,691 39,860 3,423 92,974
2016 49,970 1,013 50,983 37,747 3,423 92,153
2017 51,714 474 52,188 35,533 3,967 91,688
2018-2022 244,829 252 245,081 143,200 388,281
2023-2027 203,285 203,285 93,258 296,543
2028-2032 189,982 189,982 42,899 232,881
2033-2037 92,044 92,044 10,020 102,064

 $   974,050  $   246,350  $         5,988  $ 1,226,388  $   490,005  $    17,950  $  1,734,343 

Associated bond issue
Refunding 

date
Amount 
defeased

Refunded 
amount

Amount 
outstanding on 
June 30, 2012

Bond call 
date

General obligation bonds
1982 Series A 4/23/1985 112,635$  65,000$    29,600$            12/1/2016

General obligation bonds
1996 Series A 10/2/2005 159,000    159,000    124,000            7/1/2021
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6. Pension Plans 

 
The University and its employees contribute to pension plans characterized as either a defined benefit 
(specifies the amount of pension benefits to be provided at a future date) or defined contribution (specifies 
how contributions are to be determined, rather than an amount) plan. 

Defined Benefit Plans  

Cost-sharing plans, multiple-employer plans 

United States Government (Federal) Retirement Plans 

All University employees with federal benefits work for the University of Minnesota Extension (Extension) 
or its partner colleges; College of Food, Agricultural and Natural Resources Science (CFANS), College of 
Design, and College of Education and Human Development. These employees were grandfathered in, 
allowing them to keep their federal benefits, which were formerly offered exclusively to Extension staff. No 
new participants are being accepted into the federal retirement plans listed below. An exception would be 
granted to allow for a new participant when an appointment transfers from another Extension service. 
Questions regarding the federal plans listed below, including requests for financial statements and required 
supplementary information can be directed to the United States Office of Personnel Management (OPM), 
1900 E Street N.W., Washington, DC 20415. 

Civil Service Retirement System (CSRS) 

The Civil Service Retirement System (CSRS) is a federal program that provides retirement benefits for 
approximately 46 employees who work for the University. Participation is limited to those who initially 
entered federal service prior to January 1, 1984, and have been continuously employed since December 31, 
1983, or before, or have had a break in federal service of one year or less since 1984. It is closed to new 
members. Retirement benefits are based on years and months of service. CSRS provides full retirement 
benefits at age 55 with 30 years of service, age 60 with 20 years of service, or age 62 with 5 years of service. 
Deferred benefits are payable at age 62 with 5 years of service. The annuity formula provides 1.5 percent of 
average salary for the first five years of service, 1.75 percent for the next five years, and 2.0 percent for any 
remaining service, up to a maximum of 80 percent of average salary (based on the highest three consecutive 
years of salary).  

Civil Service Retirement System Offset Retirement (CSRS Offset) 

The Civil Service Retirement System Offset Retirement (CSRS Offset) is administered in conjunction with 
the standard CSRS by the OPM. It provides retirement benefits for five employees who work for the 
University. Participation is limited to federal employees who had at least five years of creditable civilian 
federal service prior to January 1, 1987, and had rejoined federal service since January 1, 1984, after a break 
of CSRS coverage of more than one year; or was hired before January, 1, 1984, and acquired CSRS interim 
coverage (precursor to CSRS Offset coverage) between 1984 and 1987.  

Federal Employees Retirement System (FERS) 

The Federal Employees Retirement System (FERS) is a federal program that provides retirement benefits for 
approximately 114 employees who work for the University. In general, all civilian service employees newly 
hired on or after January 1, 1984, are mandatorily covered by FERS. In addition, employees rehired after 
January 1, 1984, who had less than five years of prior civilian service as of December 31, 1986, are 
mandatorily covered by FERS. Using Social Security as a base, FERS provides an additional defined benefit 
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and a voluntary thrift savings plan. An employee who receives a new appointment can often elect FERS 
coverage voluntarily during the first six months of the appointment. FERS provides full retirement benefits 
at the “Minimum Retirement Age” (MRA) with 30 years of service, at age 60 with 20 years of service, or at 
age 62 with 5 years of service. The MRA is 55 for those born before 1948, and incrementally increases to 57 
for those born in or after 1970. Deferred retirement benefits are available at or after the MRA with 10 years 
of service at reduced benefit levels. The annuity formula generally provides 1.0 percent of the employee’s 
average salary (based on the highest three consecutive years of salary) multiplied by the number of years of 
creditable service. If retirement is at age 62 or later with at least 20 years of service, a factor of 1.1 percent is 
used rather than 1.0 percent.  

State of Minnesota Retirement Plans 

Public Employee Police and Fire Fund (PEPFF) 

The Public Employee Police and Fire Fund (PEPFF) covers approximately 59 active law enforcement staff; 
participation is mandatory and begins from the first day of employment. PEPFF, in total, provides coverage 
to approximately 500 local governmental subdivisions within the state of Minnesota. Each participant earns 
service credit for each month retirement deductions are withheld from the employee’s salary. Retirement 
benefits are based on years and months of service. Normal retirement age is 55. The annuity formula for each 
member is 3.0 percent of average salary for each year of service in that plan. The fund covers all those hired 
since 1980. The University is liable for a portion of any unfunded accrued liability of this fund for its 
participants. A publicly available financial report, which includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information for this plan, can be obtained from the Public Employees Retirement Association 
(PERA) Office, 60 Empire Drive, Suite 200, St. Paul, MN 55103.  

State Employees’ Retirement Fund (SERF) 

The State Employees’ Retirement Fund (SERF) covers approximately 9,300 active Civil Service and non-
faculty bargaining unit employees. SERF, in total, provides coverage to approximately 33 employers within 
the state of Minnesota. Participation is mandatory and begins from the first day of employment. Each 
participant earns service credit for each month retirement deductions are withheld from the employee’s 
salary. Retirement benefits are based on years and months of service. Normal retirement age is 65. The 
annuity formula is the greater of a step rate with a flat rate reduction for each month of early retirement or a 
level rate (the higher step rate) with an actuarial reduction for early retirement. Applicable rates for each year 
of allowable service are 1.2 percent and 1.7 percent of a member’s average salary, which is defined as the 
highest salary paid in five successive years of service. The University is liable for a portion of any unfunded 
accrued liability of this fund for its participants. A publicly available financial report, which includes 
financial statements and required supplementary information for this plan, can be obtained from the 
Minnesota State Retirement System (MSRS) Office, 60 Empire Drive, Suite 300, St. Paul, MN 55103. 

74



 

60 
 

 
 
In the 2006 Legislative Session, a bill was passed to build up MSRS (affecting SERF) funding levels. As a 
result, the rates for employee and employer contributions increased from 4.0 percent to 5.0 percent over four 
years beginning July 1, 2007. The PEPFF contribution rates increased on January 1, 2011, to 9.6 percent for 
the employee and 14.4 percent for the employer.  

Single-employer plan 

Supplemental Benefits Plan (SBP) 

The Supplemental Benefits Plan (SBP) is a plan sponsored by the University pursuant to the Board of 
Regents governing authority. This plan is in addition to the Faculty Retirement Plan (FRP), where faculty 
members employed prior to 1963 and female participants employed prior to July 1, 1982, may be eligible to 
receive additional benefits. SBP is designed to provide additional retirement benefits for certain groups of 
individuals who participated in the FRP, but who, due to plan design, have retirement income levels that are 
significantly lower than those of current participants. It accounts for 198 eligible participants. SBP is funded 
in an amount equal to or greater than the amount required under statute. Each plan provides retirement, 
disability, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The eligible population under the plan is a 
closed group. An internal faculty and staff retirement program report is prepared on a fiscal year basis. 
Questions regarding the SBP may be directed to Employee Benefits, 100 Donhowe Building, 319 15th 
Avenue S.E., Minneapolis, MN  55455.   

 
 
Due to the plan being closed, required contribution rates do not apply. Contribution amounts are determined 
by funding status and actuarial value in compliance with state statutes. The University makes all 
contributions to the SBP using a variable rate.  

Funding Policy

CSRS CSRS Offset FERS PEPFF SERF
Statutory authority

    Minnesota chapter N/A N/A N/A 353 352
    United States code Title 5, Chapter 83 Title 5, Chapter 83 Title 5, Chapter 84 N/A N/A

Required contribution rates (%)
    Active plan members 7.00% 1.20% 0.80% 9.60% 5.00%
    University 7.00% 8.51% 11.90% 14.40% 5.00%

Required contributions ($)
   Employee

2012 $226 $5 $61 $462 $20,244
2011 271 5 66 471 21,269 
2010 281 4 68 422 18,752 

   University 
2012 $226 $33 $900 $693 $20,249
2011 271 32 957 706 21,285 
2010 281 34 974 633 18,756 

Funding Policy

Statutory authority
Minnesota chapter 356

Required contribution rates (%)
Active plan members N/A
University N/A
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The schedule of funding progress, presented as Required Supplementary Information (RSI) following the 
notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of 
plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.  

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation

Annual required contribution (ARC) 409$             
Interest on net pension obligation (NPO) 146
Adjustment to ARC (378)
Annual pension cost (expense) 177$             
Less contributions made –
fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 (409)
Decrease in NPO (232)$            
NPO—June 30, 2011 2,914
NPO—June 30, 2012 2,682$          

Three-Year Trend Information  

Fiscal 
year 

ended

Annual 
pension 

cost
Employer 

contribution

Percentage 
of annual 
pension 

cost 
contributed

Net 
pension 

obligation
6/30/2012 $177 $409 231.07% $2,682 
6/30/2011 136 356 261.76% 2,914 
6/30/2010 108 339 313.89% 3,134 

Schedule of Funding Progess

Actuarial 
valuation 

date

Actuarial 
value of 
assets 

(a)

Actuarial 
accrued 
liability 
(AAL)      

(b)

Unfunded 
AAL 

(UAAL)
(b-a)

Funded 
ratio
(a/b)

Covered 
payroll

(c)

UAAL 
as a 

percentage 
of covered 

payroll
((b-a)/c)

7/1/2011 $2,106 $5,263 $3,157 40.02% $731 431.87%

7/1/2010 2,621 5,578 2,957 46.99% 951 310.94%

7/1/2009 3,252 6,083 2,831 53.46% 1,345 210.48%
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Defined Contribution Plans 

The University’s defined contribution plans represent benefits to be received. They are limited to the value of 
the participant’s account balance, depending on the plan. Accordingly, there is no unfunded actuarial accrued 
liability (UAAL), or actuarial accrued liability (AAL), associated with the following plans.  

Description of Plans and Contribution Information 

Faculty Retirement Plan (FRP) 

The Faculty Retirement Plan (FRP) is a mandatory retirement savings/investment plan contingent on meeting 
certain prescribed eligibility requirements. Pursuant to the University’s Board of Regents governing 
authority, in compliance with Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code, it authorizes the University to 
contribute to the plan and governs the requirements of this plan. Eligibility requirements involve an 
employee appointment of at least nine months; employee appointments between 67 to 99 percent time are 
granted prorated participation. Other eligibility requirements may involve a waiting period based on salary 
class. The plan is funded through employee pre-tax contributions and University contributions.  Eligible 
academic employees with hire dates prior to January 2, 2012 contribute 2.5 percent of covered salary and the 
University contributes 13.0 percent.  Eligible employees with a start date (or were rehired) on or after 
January 2, 2012, contribute 5.5 percent of covered salary and the University contributes 10.0 percent.  The 
FRP covers approximately 7,800 active faculty and professional and administrative (P&A) staff. This 
amount includes approximately 140 with hire dates on or after January 2, 2012.  

University of Minnesota Optional Retirement Plan (ORP) 

The Optional Retirement Plan (ORP) is a voluntary retirement savings/investment plan covered under 
Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. All faculty and staff members who are paid on a continuous 
basis are eligible to participate in this plan. The plan is funded mainly through employee pre-tax 
contributions. However, the University may make discretionary contributions for select staff based on 
employment contracts. Approximately 4,200 full- and part-time employees contribute to this plan.  

University of Minnesota Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plan 

The 457 Deferred Compensation Plan is a voluntary retirement savings plan authorized under Section 457 of 
the Internal Revenue Code. This plan is funded exclusively through employee pre-tax contributions. All 
faculty and staff members who are paid on a continuous basis are eligible to participate in this plan. 
Approximately 870 full- and part-time employees contribute to this plan.  

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Valuation date 7/1/2011
Actuarial cost method Entry age

Amortization method Level of dollar by 
6/30/2021, closed

Remaining amortization period 10 years
Asset valuation method Fair market value, 

smoothed over 5 years
Actuarial assumptions
     Investment rate of return 5.00%
     Projected salary increase 3.50%
     Cost of living adjustment 2.50%
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University of Minnesota 415(m) Retirement Plan  

The 415(m) Retirement Plan is a qualified excess benefit plan authorized under Section 415(m) of the 
Internal Revenue Code. This plan is provided to select staff based on individual employment contracts 
negotiated. All contributions provided by the University are negotiated on an individual employee basis and 
are contingent on vesting requirements being satisfied.    Eleven University employees are part of this plan.  

 

 

7. Related Organization 

The University is responsible for appointing 8 members of the 15 member Board of Directors of UCare 
Minnesota, a licensed nonprofit health maintenance organization (HMO) that provides medical services for 
its members. The University’s accountability for this organization, however, does not extend beyond making 
Board appointments.  The dean of the University of Minnesota Medical School and the head of the 
University’s Department of Family Medicine and Community Health appoint six board members; two 
members are automatically appointed by virtue of the University positions that they hold. 

 
8. Commitments and Contingencies 

Construction projects in progress, principally buildings, approximated $186,973 on June 30, 2012. The 
estimated cost to complete these facilities is $358,449, which is to be funded from plant fund assets and 
$148,571 in appropriations available from the State of Minnesota as of June 30, 2012. 

The University owns steam production facilities that produce steam for heating and cooling the Twin Cities 
campus, which by agreement are managed, operated, and maintained by an unaffiliated company. The 
original agreement was for five years and began May 17, 2004. In fiscal year 2009, the contract was 
extended for five years, with a contract end date of May 2014.  Under the agreement, the University must 
make minimum fixed payments for certain operating and maintenance costs, as well as contingent payments 
based upon performance requirements.  

The University is obligated under various operating leases for the use of real property and equipment. 
Included in the leases for real property is an agreement between Gateway and the University of Minnesota 
for a rent obligation through September 2014. Total operating lease expenditures for the years ended June 
30, 2012 and 2011, were $21,246 and $18,217, respectively, of which $17,784 and $15,449 were for real 
property and $3,462 and $2,767 were for equipment, respectively.  

  

Contributions Made for Fiscal Year 2012

FRP ORP 457 415(m)
Employee $17,558 $38,560 $11,271 N/A
University 90,959 386 N/A 609 
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The future steam plant and operating lease commitments as of June 30, 2012, for the next five years and in 
subsequent five-year periods are as follows: 

 

The University receives financial assistance from federal and state governmental agencies in the form of 
grants.  The disbursement of funds received under these programs generally requires compliance with the 
terms and conditions specified in the grant agreements and are subject to audit by the grantor agencies.  Any 
disallowed claims resulting from such audits could become a liability of the University.  Management is not 
aware of any disallowed claims at this time, and any such disallowances that are currently being reviewed by 
grantor agencies are immaterial.   

The University is a defendant in cases involving claims of medical malpractice, personal injuries, breach of 
contract, and other civil matters. While any litigation has an element of uncertainty and the University 
cannot, therefore, predict how these cases will be finally resolved, management and its general counsel 
believe the outcomes of the cases, individually and combined, will not have a material adverse effect on the 
overall financial position of the University. 

9. Self-Insurance Programs 

The University is self-insured for medical malpractice, general liability, directors and officers liability, and 
automobile liability through RUMINCO, Ltd., a wholly-owned, single parent captive insurance company 
(see Note 1). Claims are reported to a third-party administrator, which pays expenses and estimates claim 
liabilities. The total expense of a claim is estimated and booked as a liability when it is probable that a loss 
has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. In addition, an actuarial liability is 
established for incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims using a discount rate of 1.5 percent.  

The University is also self-insured for workers’ compensation through an internally maintained fund, and 
excess claims insurance is maintained through the Workers’ Compensation Reinsurance Association 
(WCRA). The internal fund for workers’ compensation is maintained only to fund the current year’s 
expected payouts. Each year, an actuarial estimate of the University’s liability for workers’ compensation is 
compiled and recorded, but the liability is not separately funded.  

The University’s medical (health) coverage for faculty and staff and their dependents is a self-insured 
program (UPlan). Under UPlan Medical, the University pays claims and establishes reserves, and the 
administration of the program is handled by two independent administrators: Medica for medical plan 
administration, and Prime Therapeutics for pharmacy benefit management. A medical conversion carrier 
provides policies to the University under which terminated employees are able to convert their UPlan 
coverage to single coverage once their COBRA rights expire. The University also carries stop-loss coverage, 
which protects the University against the risk that an individual participant will incur medical expenses 
greater than $800,000 in a single year. An annual actuarial estimate of the University’s liability for medical 
claims, including IBNR, is recorded. 

Steam 
plant

Operating 
leases Total

Fiscal year ending June 30
2013 $500 $15,508 $16,008
2014 500 12,746 13,246
2015 8,160 8,160
2016 5,398 5,398
2017 5,105 5,105
2018-2022 24,559 24,559
2023-2027 8,078 8,078
2028-2032 7,924 7,924
2033-2037 5,122 5,122

Total commitments $1,000 $92,600 $93,600
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The University’s dental coverage for faculty and staff and their dependents is also a self-insured program 
(UPlan). Under UPlan Dental, the University pays claims and establishes reserves, and the administration of 
the program is handled by two independent administrators, Delta Dental and HealthPartners. An annual 
actuarial estimate of the University’s liability for dental claims, including IBNR, is recorded.  

Effective September 1, 2004, the University changed its medical coverage for eligible graduate assistants 
from a fully insured program to a self-insured program. Under the graduate assistant medical plan, the 
University pays claims and establishes reserves. The program is administered by HealthPartners. An annual 
actuarial estimate of the University’s liability for medical claims, including IBNR, is recorded. The Graduate 
Assistant Plan also offers self-insured Dental Plan benefits at Boynton Health Service without a third party 
administrator.   

The University’s medical (health) coverage for eligible students and their dependents is a self-insured 
program (Student Health Benefit Plan). Under the Student Health Benefit Plan, the University pays claims 
and establishes reserves, and the administration of the program is handled by Blue Cross and Blue Shield of 
Minnesota. The administrator offers medical conversion policies to eligible University students who are able 
to convert their SHBP coverage to single coverage after graduation. The University also carries stop-loss 
coverage, which protects the University against the risk that an individual participant will incur medical 
expenses greater than $250,000 in a single year in addition to aggregate stop-loss coverage for claims totals 
over 115 percent of plan year claims.  An annual actuarial estimate of the University’s liability for medical 
claims, including IBNR, is recorded. Effective September 1, 2005, the University negotiated a new student 
health plan for the Academic Health Center (AHC-Student Health Benefit Plan).  The plan is self-insured 
and the health carrier is Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Minnesota. An estimated claims liability ensures that 
funds are available to cover claims up to the point where stop-loss coverage begins. The AHC Plan also 
offers self-insured Dental Plan preventive benefits at Boynton Health Service without a third party 
administrator.   

Effective July 1, 2010, the University changed its medical coverage for eligible Medical Residents and 
Fellows from a fully insured program to a self-insured program.  Under the Medical & Resident medical 
plan, the University pays claims and establishes reserves.  The program is administered by HealthPartners.  
An annual actuarial estimate of the University’s liability for medical claims, including IBNR, is recorded.  
The Medical & Resident group also offers a fully insured Dental Benefit Plan through Delta Dental.   

 

Reported liabilities as of June 30, 2012, are shown below:

Liability 
beginning 

of year
New 

Claims
Claim 

payments
Other 

adjustments

Liability 
end

 of year
RUMINCO, Ltd. $7,863 $2,110 ($1,584) ($247) $8,142
Workers’ compensation 11,965 2,969 (2,969) (391) 11,574
UPlan medical 16,610 211,061 (209,338) 2,806 21,139
UPlan dental 1,104 17,189 (16,657) (640) 996
Graduate assistant health plan 1,338 18,674 (18,673) (141) 1,198
Student health plan 4,651 (90) 4,561
Medical Residents & Fellows 458 41 499
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10.  Termination Benefits 

Termination benefits are defined as benefits received for involuntarily or voluntarily terminating 
employment with the University in accordance with GASB Statement No. 47, Accounting for Termination 
Benefits (GASB 47). University benefits that qualify and meet GASB 47 criteria include contract buyouts, 
retirement incentives, severance lump-sum payouts and continuing healthcare subsidies, and vacation. 
Benefits that are otherwise offered in exchange for, or are considered conditional on, future employee 
services do not qualify under GASB 47; rather they qualify as a pension benefit or other postemployment 
benefits (OPEB) as referenced in Notes 6 and 11, respectively.  

Contract Buyouts 

University contract buyouts apply when an employee resigns his or her duty and the University has agreed to 
pay additional compensation based on the contractual employment agreement. Benefits outstanding as of 
June 30, 2012 and 2011 are paid in the subsequent fiscal year and affect only the Twin Cities campus. Due to 
the nature and timing of the payments, the outstanding liability is not discounted and reflects current cost 
level amounts due.  

Retirement Incentives 

These incentives provide medical and dental benefits and lump sum payments to eligible employees as 
defined in the Retirement Incentive Option (RIO) Program. On May 9, 2008, the Board of Regents approved 
the reinstatement of the second RIO Program (RIO2), an opportunity for employees to elect voluntary 
retirement to minimize involuntary workforce reductions.  RIO2 covered Faculty, Professional and 
Administrative (P&A), Civil Service, and Radio and Television Broadcast Technician employees who were 
actively employed at 75 percent time or greater; held an appointment term of nine months or greater on the 
last day of employment; met the specific age and years of service requirements; and were receiving UPlan 
benefits. Eligible employees were able to enroll in the program during the time period of May 15 through 
September 26, 2008, or no later than the effective date of retirement, whichever occurred first. Effective June 
2, 2008, represented bargaining unit staff consisting of Minnesota Teamsters Public and Law Enforcement 
Employees Union, Law Enforcement Labor Services, Inc., and AFSCME Units 4, 6, and 7 could elect to 
enroll in RIO2  through September 26, 2008, or no later than the effective date of retirement, whichever 
occurred first.  RIO2 provided a maximum of 36 months of medical and dental subsidy following an 
employee’s last day of employment. The subsidy and coverage is the same as if the retiree had remained 
employed. The University’s contribution was based on the employee’s coverage level, work location, and 
permanent residence as of the last day of employment. The outstanding liability is calculated using the 
discounted present value of expected future benefit payments based on the projection of benefits, an initial 

Reported liabilities as of June 30, 2011, are shown below:

Liability 
beginning 

of year
New 

Claims
Claim 

payments
Other 

adjustments

Liability 
end

 of year
RUMINCO, Ltd. $7,818 $2,345 ($2,215) ($85) $7,863
Workers’ compensation 12,683 3,517 (3,517) (718) 11,965
UPlan medical 16,749 210,971 (209,593) (1,517) 16,610
UPlan dental 624 16,798 (16,147) (171) 1,104
Graduate assistant health plan 355 18,865 (18,865) 983 1,338
Student health plan 916 3,735 4,651
Medical Residents & Fellows 458 458

Other adjustments reflect reserve changes on prior years’ claims and changes in estimated IBNR.
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healthcare cost trend rate of 6.85 percent and a discount rate of 4.0 percent. Benefits provided impact all 
University campuses.  

The third Retirement Incentive Option (RIO3), an opportunity for voluntary retirement for eligible 
University of Minnesota employees, was approved by the Board of Regents on February 11, 2011.  RIO3 
covered Faculty, P&A, Civil Service, Union Represented, and University employees enrolled in federal 
health benefits who were actively employed at 75 percent time or greater; held an appointment term of nine 
months or greater on the last day of employment; met the specific age and years of service requirements; and 
were receiving benefits. Eligible employees were able to enroll in the program during the time period of 
February 15 through May 15, 2011, or no later than the effective date of retirement, whichever occurred first.  
Under the program, the University deposited a lump sum amount to the State of Minnesota’s Health Care 
Savings Plan (HCSP), shortly following the last day of employment, which could be no later than January 
11, 2012.  These lump sums were determined by the individual’s coverage level.  No ongoing healthcare 
subsidy was provided, though retirees under RIO3 could continue to participate in the University of 
Minnesota retiree medical and dental plans on the same basis as any other retiree. 

Severance Lump-Sum Payouts and Continuing Healthcare Subsidies 

Eligible Civil Service and Represented Bargaining Unit staff members may fall under the University of 
Minnesota’s Layoff Severance Program. This program is an elected program provided to Civil Service and 
Represented Bargaining Unit staff members who receive a notice of layoff and who meet the eligibility 
requirements as described. Benefits are based on years of continuous service with the University in 
designated types of appointments. Severance payouts may apply to tenured faculty members and academic 
professionals with continuous appointments under the University of Minnesota Terminal Agreement 
Program and University of Minnesota Federal Terminal Agreement Program. The University of Minnesota 
Phased Retirement Program also provides continuing healthcare subsidies, though it does not provide 
severance payouts. These programs are designed to facilitate change within units by providing remuneration 
in return for tenure resignation. Due to the nature and timing of the payments, the outstanding liability is not 
discounted and reflects current cost level amounts due. Severance lump-sum payouts and continuing 
healthcare subsidies impact all University campuses. 

Vacation  

Vacation payouts apply to employees that have terminated employment prior to the end of the fiscal year and 
subsequently receive compensation payment in the next fiscal year. Due to the nature and timing of the 
payments, the outstanding liability is not discounted and reflects current cost level amounts due.  

Academic Professional and Administrative (P&A) Contracts 

Benefits below reflect contract buyouts, retirement incentives, severance lump-sum payouts and continuing 
healthcare subsidies, and vacation: 

 

  

University contributions 
as of June 30

Number of 
staff 

members
Liability 
amount

2012 122 $1,473
2011 273 3,510
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Civil Service Contracts 

Benefits below reflect retirement incentives, severance lump-sum payouts and continuing healthcare 
subsidies, and vacation: 

 
 

Faculty Contracts 

Benefits below reflect severance lump-sum payouts and continuing healthcare subsidies and vacation: 

 
 

Graduate Assistant Contracts 

Benefits below reflect severance lump-sum payouts and continuing healthcare subsidies and vacation: 

 
 

Represented Bargaining Unit Staff Contracts 

Benefits below reflect retirement incentives, severance lump-sum payouts and continuing healthcare 
subsidies, and vacation: 

 
 

11. Other Postemployment Benefits 

Description of Plan 

The University administers the UPlan—a self-insured, single-employer, defined benefit healthcare plan. It is 
a partnership between the University and its employees to provide quality, cost-effective health benefits to 
employees, retirees, and their families. Pursuant to the University’s Board of Regents governing authority, 
non-Medicare retirees and former employees can purchase medical and dental insurance coverage. The 
University also provides a continuation of pay and benefits beyond active employment under the Academic 
Disability Plan (ADP) for Faculty and Academic Professional and Administrative (P&A) employees after 
three months of medical leave. The benefit provision process is initiated through the Benefits Advisory 

University contributions 
as of June 30

Number of 
staff 

members
Liability 
amount

2012 139 $1,763
2011 282 3,438

University contributions 
as of June 30

Number of 
staff 

members
Liability 
amount

2012 95 $1,089
2011 146 1,661

University contributions 
as of June 30

Number of 
staff 

members
Liability 
amount

2012 5 $6
2011 69 142

University contributions 
as of June 30

Number of 
staff 

members
Liability 
amount

2012 339 $3,801
2011 524 6,238
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Committee (BAC). The BAC comprises representatives from all employee groups who advise the University 
administration on health program benefit offerings. An internal UPlan financial report is prepared on a 
calendar year basis. Questions regarding the UPlan may be directed to Employee Benefits, 100 Donhowe 
Building, 319 15th Avenue S.E., Minneapolis, MN 55455.   

Funding Policy 

The University has established that a former employee must pay the entire premium for continuation 
coverage, except as otherwise provided in a collective bargaining agreement or personnel policy. Non-
Medicare retirees can purchase medical and dental insurance coverage at the full premium rate applicable to 
active employees, and COBRA participants can purchase coverage at 102 percent of the full group rate. 
Eligible participants under the ADP receive full healthcare benefits at employee cost for up to two years 
from disability onset and beyond that point disabled participants would pay the full premium as if they were 
retirees. The self-insured portion of the ADP program also provides disability income and retirement 
contributions for up to 9 months—months 4 through 12 after disability onset. The following premium rates 
were in effect for fiscal year 2012: 

 

The UPlan is currently financed on a pay-as-you-go basis. For fiscal year 2012, the University paid $5,944 
on behalf of former employees and eligible disabilitants who participate in the UPlan. 

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation 

The University’s annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the 
annual required contribution of the employer (ARC). This amount is actuarially determined in accordance 
with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (GASB 45). The ARC represents a level of funding that, if 
paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each fiscal year and amortize any unfunded 
actuarial liability (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed 30 years. The University has elected to 
amortize the unfunded actuarial liability over 20 years.  

The components of the University’s annual OPEB cost for the fiscal year, the amount actually contributed to 
the plan, and changes in the University’s net OPEB obligation are as follows:  

 
 
  

Beneficiary type

Beneficiary annual rate 
(Actual amounts, not rounded 

to thousands)
Non-Medicare retiree $6,295
COBRA 6,421
Disabled Participants 6,295

Annual required contribution (ARC) $26,157
Interest on net OPEB obligation 1,765
Adjustment to annual required contribution (3,122)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 24,800
Less contributions made – 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 (5,944)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 18,856
Net OPEB obligation—June 30, 2011 44,131
Net OPEB obligation—June 30, 2012 $62,987
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The University’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the Plan, and the net 
OPEB obligation are as follows: 

 

Funded Status and Funding Progress 

The funded status of the plan as of June 30, 2012, is as follows:  

 
 
The actuarial accrued liability (AAL) is the present value of projected future benefits earned by employees to 
date. Whereas, the unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) is the AAL less any cash, investments, and 
other resources the University is holding to specifically fund the AAL. Included in the AAL is a change of 
$2,940 due to the impact of the RIO Program being reinstated during fiscal year 2008. The change in the 
liability is a result of eligible retirees electing retirement under the RIO Program and choosing to continue 
UPlan coverage after the RIO Program benefits are fulfilled.  

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions 
about the probability of the occurrence of events far into the future. Some of the specific assumptions that 
were taken into consideration when calculating the actuarial valuations were participant age, years of service, 
salary increases, benefit election patterns, and healthcare cost trends. Amounts determined regarding the 
funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual 
revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. 
The schedule of funding progress, shown as required supplementary information following the notes to the 
financial statements, presents the results of the University’s OPEB valuation as of June 30, 2012. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan, the plan as 
understood by the employer and plan members. This includes the types of benefits provided at the time of 
each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members 
to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used are designed to reduce the effects of short-term 
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term 
perspective of the calculations.  

  

Fiscal 
year 

ended
Annual OPEB 

cost
Employer 

contribution

Percentage of 
annual OPEB 

cost contributed
Net OPEB 
obligation

6/30/2012 $24,800 $5,944 24.0% $62,987
6/30/2011 19,939 9,290 46.6% 44,131
6/30/2010 18,999 8,041 42.3% 33,482

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $116,182
Actuarial value of plan assets
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) 116,182
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL) 0.00%
Increase in net OPEB obligation $18,856
Covered payroll (active plan members) 1,222,548
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 9.50%
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The actuarial methods and assumptions incorporated in the UPlan’s valuation are as follows: 

 

  

12. Operating Expenses by Natural Classification 

 

 

Valuation date 7/1/2012
Actuarial cost method Entry age
Amortization method Level Dollar, 

Open Group

Remaining amortization period 20 years
Asset valuation method N/A
Actuarial assumptions
     Investment rate of return 4.00%
     Projected Payroll growth 4.00%
     Benefit increase N/A
     Assumed inflation rate 3.00%
     Healthcare cost trend rate
          Initial rate 6.85%
          2nd year rate 6.70%
          Ultimate rate 5.50%
          Year ultimate rate reached 2060

Operating expenses by natural classification for June 30, 2012, are summarized as follows:

Function
Compensation 
and benefits

Supplies 
and services

Scholarships and 
fellowships Depreciation Total

Instruction  $           613,119  $         83,098  $         696,217 
Research               415,064           218,135 633,199           
Public service               153,896             91,592 245,488           
Academic support               292,057             68,569 360,626           
Student services                 84,991             21,161 106,152           
Institutional support               136,471             52,569 189,040           
Operation and maintenance of plant               107,310           147,243 254,553           
Scholarships and fellowships                   7,660               2,517  $               41,837 52,014             
Depreciation  $              183,875 183,875           
Auxiliary enterprises                 92,161           135,236 227,397           
Other operating expense                 (195) (195)                 

 $        1,902,729  $       819,925  $               41,837  $              183,875  $      2,948,366 

Operating expenses by natural classification for June 30, 2011, are summarized as follows:

Function
Compensation 
and benefits

Supplies and 
services

Scholarships and 
fellowships Depreciation Total

Instruction  $           587,836  $         80,206  $         668,042 
Research               414,361           211,294 625,655           
Public service               147,979             77,722 225,701           
Academic support               292,788             67,028 359,816           
Student services                 84,087             20,776 104,863           
Institutional support               156,853             37,144 193,997           
Operation and maintenance of plant               103,989           160,899 264,888           
Scholarships and fellowships                   6,455               2,782  $               43,073 52,310             
Depreciation  $              163,689 163,689           
Auxiliary enterprises                 91,338           135,658 226,996           
Other operating expense                    67 67                    

 $        1,885,686  $       793,576  $               43,073  $              163,689  $      2,886,024 
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13. Subsequent Events 

Effective October 1, 2012, the University amended its line of credit agreement which backs the University’s 
self-liquidity supporting its Commercial Paper Notes Series A, B, C, and D. The maximum line of credit was 
reduced from $50,000 to $40,000 and the term was extended for another one-year period with a current 
expiration of September 30, 2013.   

For more information related to long-term debt, refer to Note 5.  

14. Component Units 
 
The significant accounting policies and related note disclosures for investments, securities lending, 
temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net assets, as reported in the separately issued 
financial statements of the University of Minnesota Foundation (UMF) and the Minnesota Medical 
Foundation (MMF); as well as disclosures for guarantee agreements and financing agreements for the 
University Gateway Corporation (Gateway), are presented below.  

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  

University of Minnesota Foundation  

Contributions 

Contributions, including unconditional promises to give, are recognized as revenues on an accrual basis. 
Conditional promises to give are not recognized until they become unconditional, that is, when the 
conditions on which they depend are substantially met. Contributions to be received after one year are 
discounted at rates of 1.67 percent – 5.15 percent based on when the contribution was made. Amortization of 
discounts is recorded as additional contribution revenue. An allowance for uncollectible contributions 
receivable is provided based upon management’s judgment, including such factors as prior collection history.   

Assets Held in Charitable Trusts 

UMF has entered into unitrust and annuity agreements as trustee that provide, among other matters, that the 
trustee shall pay to the beneficiaries an annual income payment until the income obligation is completed in 
accordance with the donor’s trust agreement. UMF records the assets held in these trusts at fair value and the 
corresponding liability at the actuarially determined present value of payments to be made to the designated 
beneficiaries. The residual amount is recorded as contribution revenue at the time the trust is established. In 
subsequent periods, the liability under charitable trust agreements is adjusted and changes therein are 
reported as a component of the change in carrying value of trusts in the consolidated statement of activities. 
Upon termination of the income obligation, the assets of the trust are held by UMF in accordance with the 
donor’s trust agreement. 

Gift Annuity Agreements 

UMF has entered into gift annuity agreements that provide that UMF shall pay to the designated 
beneficiaries an annual amount until the death of the designated beneficiaries. The payments continue even if 
the assets of the gift annuity fund have been exhausted. UMF records the assets received at fair value and a 
corresponding liability is recorded for the actuarially determined present value of payments to be made to the 
designated beneficiaries, with the residual amount recorded as contribution revenue. Upon the death of the 
beneficiaries, the assets of the gift annuity fund are held by UMF in accordance with the agreements. 
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Beneficial Interest in Trusts 

UMF has beneficial interests in charitable remainder, lead, and perpetual trusts that are held by other entities 
such as banks or charitable organizations. UMF records its interest in these trusts, upon discovery of their 
existence, at fair value as determined using the present value of the estimated future cash receipts to be 
received from the trust. Because of the complex issues related to collecting the data for these transactions, 
there can be a time delay in the recording of the asset because of the time needed for discovery, verification 
of UMF’s rights, and determination of the valuation of future payments. 

Minnesota Medical Foundation 

Contributions 

Contributions, which include pledges, are recognized as revenue in the period received. All contributions are 
available for unrestricted use unless specifically restricted by the donor. 

Pledges are recorded as pledges receivable using discount rates ranging from 3.50 percent to 5.40 percent.   
Additionally, an allowance for uncollectible pledges is provided based on management’s judgment, 
including factors such as aging schedules, prior collection history, and the nature of fundraising activity. 

Investments, fixed assets, and contributed materials are initially recorded at fair value when received.  

Contributions with donor-imposed conditions, such as time or purpose restrictions, are recorded as 
temporarily restricted net assets. When donor-imposed time conditions expire, or a donor-imposed purpose 
restriction is fulfilled, the temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets. This 
reclassification is reported as net assets released from restriction on the statement of activities. 

MMF wrote off approximately $60 of uncollectible pledges for the year ended June 30, 2012 and 
approximately $1,600 for the year ended June 30, 2011. 

Split-Interest Agreements 

The split-interest agreements include charitable remainder and lead trusts, charitable gift annuities and 
perpetual trusts.  MMF recognizes the contribution from charitable trusts when the trust is established and 
recognizes the contribution from the charitable annuity gifts when the agreement is executed.  

When MMF is the trustee, the contribution amount is the difference between the fair value of assets received 
and the present value of the future cash flows expected to be paid to the designated beneficiaries. MMF 
recognizes a liability calculated as the net present value of estimated future cash disbursements to be paid to 
other beneficiaries. This liability is included in split-interest agreement liabilities on the statement of 
financial position. These assets are invested primarily in equity and fixed income mutual funds.  

When MMF is not the trustee, the contribution amount is the present value of expected future cash flows 
from split-interest agreements.  

Interest in Charitable Trusts  

MMF is the beneficiary of two perpetual trusts.  MMF is not the trustee on either of these trusts.   

Under the terms of one of these trust agreements dated November 27, 1944, MMF will receive a continual 
stream of quarterly payments equal to 5 percent annually of the fair value of the trust. Two additional trusts, 
associated with this 1944 trust, are currently making distributions to other beneficiaries. After the lives of 
these beneficiaries, these trusts will discontinue as separate trusts and roll over into the 1944 perpetual trust.   
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Using discount rates of 3.70 percent and 5.10 percent at June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively, the present 
value of future benefits to be received by MMF was estimated to be $34,203 and $25,651 at June 30, 2012 
and 2011, respectively.  MMF received payments from the trust totaling $86 and $88 for the years ended 
June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. 

The second trust agreement was established by the Last Will of its creator dated January 28, 1980.  Under the 
terms of the trust, MMF will receive a continual stream of annual payments equal to 5 percent of the fair 
value of the trust.  The fair value of the trust was $471 and $510 as of June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.  
MMF received payments from the trust of $21 and $24 for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, 
respectively.  

Interest in Charitable Lead Trusts  

MMF is the irrevocable beneficiary of three charitable lead trusts.  Two of these charitable lead trusts were 
established during fiscal year 2000, and one during fiscal year 2011. MMF is not the trustee on any of these 
trusts.  

The first of the 2000 trusts distributes $440 annually to MMF.  Based on current market valuations, 
payments are estimated to end in 2015.  The second of the 2000 trusts distributes 9 percent of the fair value 
of the trust on a quarterly basis over a period of 20 years.  Using discount rates of 3.70 percent and 5.10 
percent as of June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively, the present value of future benefits to be received by 
MMF was $2,291 and $3,162 at June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.  MMF received payments from the 
trusts totaling $672 and $703 for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. 

MMF is also the beneficiary of a charitable lead trust established on August 25, 2010.  This trust distributes 7 
percent of the fair value of the trust on a quarterly basis over a period of 10 years.  Using discount rates of 
3.70 percent and 5.10 percent at June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively, the present value of future benefits to 
be received by MMF was $101 and $114 at June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.  MMF received payments 
from the trust totaling $151 and $9 for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. 

Investments 

University of Minnesota Foundation  

Investments in cash equivalents, corporate bonds, other fixed income securities, equity securities, and 
Treasury inflation protected securities with readily determinable fair values are reported at fair value as set 
forth in note 3 of UMF’s annual report (traditional structures).  Investments held in alternative structures are 
recorded at net asset values provided by external investment managers as a practical expedient in 
determining fair value.  Because such investments are not readily marketable, the estimated value is subject 
to uncertainty and therefore may differ materially from the value that would have been used had a ready 
market for such investments existed. 

Donated investments are recorded at their fair values, as determined on the date of donation. Investment 
income and gains and losses are recorded in the period incurred. 

For management efficiency, investments of the unrestricted and restricted net assets are pooled, except for 
certain net assets that the board of trustees or the donors have designated to be segregated and maintained 
separately. 

Receivables from pending liquidations represent sales of investments made prior to the end of the fiscal year, 
but settled after the fiscal year end.    
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The investments on June 30, 2012, are summarized as follows:  

 

Fixed income investments include high yield bonds, bank loans, mortgage, and related securitizations. 

Investments held in traditional structures represent those held directly by UMF in custodial accounts with 
financial institutions. Investments held in alternative structures include those held through interests in 
collective trust funds, limited partnerships, commingled funds, and limited liability companies. 

Net asset values provided by external investment managers for alternative structures include estimates, 
appraisals, assumptions, and methods that are reviewed by management.  It is possible that the redemption 
rights may be restricted by the funds in the future in accordance with the underlying fund agreements.  
Changes in market conditions and the economic environment may impact the net asset value of the funds 
and, consequently, the fair value of UMF’s interests in the funds.  UMF has $1,039,499 of investments in 
alternative structures which are reported at net asset value as a practical expedient.  Although a secondary 
market exists for these investments, it is not active and individual transactions are typically not observable.  
When transactions do occur in this limited secondary market, they may occur at discounts to the reported net 
asset value. It is, therefore, reasonably possible that if UMF were to sell these investments in the secondary 
market, a buyer may require a discount to the reported net asset value, and the discount could be significant. 

Minnesota Medical Foundation  

A substantial portion of the valuations included in the financial statements are provided to the MMF by third 
parties and are not calculated by MMF. These third parties follow generally accepted accounting principles 
(GAAP). In accordance with these principles, investments are carried at fair value based on quoted market 
prices or are recorded at approximate fair value based on financial models of hypothetical transactions.  

Some valuations may also be determined and approved by the managers or valuation committees of the 
funds in which MMF invests. The fair value assigned to a particular security by the fund does not necessarily 
reflect the amount that would be realized in the current illiquid market. In addition, in light of the judgment 
involved in fair value decisions, there can be no assurance that a fair value assigned to a particular security 
by the fund is accurate. 

MMF invests in a variety of investment vehicles. In general, investments are exposed to various risks, such 
as interest rate, credit and overall market volatility risk. Due to the level of risk associated with certain 
investments, it is reasonably possible that changes in the values of the investments will occur in the near term 
and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the statements of financial position. 

  

Traditional 
structures

Alternate 
structures Total

Cash and cash equivalents 117,368$      117,368$          
Fixed income 230,025        21,061$       251,086            
Global equity 76,297          187,823       264,120            
Hedge funds 292,250       292,250            
Natural resources 91,213         91,213              
Treasury inflation protected securities (TIPS) 65,534          65,534              
Real estate 76,059         76,059              
Private equity 371,093       371,093            

Subtotal 489,224        1,039,499    1,528,723         
Other investments not categorized above 3,389                
Less charitable gift annuities reported separately (32,121)             
Total 1,499,991$       
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Investments as of June 30, 2012, are summarized as follows: 

 
 

Investments include funds held for the custody of others at June 30, 2012 and 2011 of $1,263 and $1,409, 
respectively. 
 
Net investment return as of June 30, 2012, consists of the following: 

 

Fair Value Measurements 

University of Minnesota Foundation 

FASB Accounting Standards Codification 820 (ASC 820), Fair Value Measurement, established a three-tier 
fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value.  The 
hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). 

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under FASB ASC 820 are described below: 

Level 1 – Inputs that utilize quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that 
the organization has the ability to access.   

Level 2 – Inputs that include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets and inputs that 
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the 
financial instrument.  Fixed income securities are generally traded in the over-the-counter market and are 
valued at a price that reflects fair value as quoted by dealers in these securities or by an independent pricing 
service.  These prices are based on observable market data for the same or similar securities, including 
quoted prices in markets that are not active, or matrix pricing or other similar techniques that use observable 
market inputs, such as benchmark yields, expected prepayment speeds and volumes, and issuer ratings. 

Total
Cash and cash equivalents 25,263$       
Treasury inflation protected securities (TIPS) 4,016
U.S. government money market fund 6,934
Fixed income corporate bonds 852
Fixed income funds of funds 60,966
U.S. and foreign equity 359
Equity index funds 20,705
Equity fund of funds 94,283
Hedge funds 58,817
Global distressed debt 5,066
Private equity 3,306
Foreign private equity 3,843
Real estate 4,052
Venture capital 2,725
Natural resources & commodities 880

Subtotal 292,067
Less:  investments loaned to broker (3,441)
Total 288,626$     

Interest and dividend income 3,957$         
Net realized and unrealized investment gains (losses) (15,522)        
Subtotal (11,565)        
Less: net external investment manager and consultant fees (248)             
Total (11,813)$      
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Level 3 – Inputs that are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability, which are typically based on an 
entity’s own assumptions, as there is little, if any, related market activity. 

In instances where the determination of fair value measurement is based on inputs from different levels of 
the fair value hierarchy, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which the entire fair value measurement 
falls is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. 

The following table summarizes UMF’s financial assets measured at value on a recurring basis at June 30, 
2012:

 

  

Total
fair value 
of assets at

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 June 30, 2012
Investments:

Cash and cash equivalents 117,368$            117,368$            
Fixed income:

Asset backed securities 39,298$              39,298                
Mortgages 18,424                18,424                
Alternative structures 21,061$              21,061                
Corporate bonds 1,086                  1,086                  
Government 170,002              170,002              
Other 1,215                  1,215                  

Global equity:
Small cap 21,914                21,914                
Large cap 37,806                16,577                54,383                
Alternative structures 187,823              187,823              

Hedge funds:
Directional long biased equity 109,872              109,872              
Fixed income arbitrage 78,933                78,933                
Long/short nonequity 50,880                50,880                
Market neutral equity 32,984                32,984                
Structured credit 19,581                19,581                

Natural resources 91,213                91,213                
Real estate 76,059                76,059                
Treasury inflation protected 

securities (TIPS) 65,534                65,534                
Private equity:

Buyout 127,426              127,426              
Distressed 68,435                68,435                
Special situations 21,864                21,864                
Venture capital 153,368              153,368              

Other investments 3,389                  3,389                  
Total investments 177,088$            312,136$            1,042,888$         1,532,112$         

Gift annuities not categorized above 1,663$                1,663$                
Beneficial interest in perpetual trusts 23,778$              23,778                
Beneficial interest in trusts 3,009                  3,009                  

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year ended June 30, 2012.

Fair value measurements using
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The changes in investments measured at fair value on a recurring basis included as Level 3 measurements are 
summarized as follows: 
 

 

 
The changes in other investments or financial assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis included as 
Level 3 measurements are summarized as follows: 

 

Minnesota Medical Foundation 

MMF follows an accounting standard that defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair 
value, establishes a fair value hierarchy based on the quality of inputs used to measure fair value, and 
requires expanded disclosures about fair value measurements.  

The fair value framework requires the categorization of assets and liabilities into three levels based upon the 
assumptions (inputs) used to price the assets or liabilities.  The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority 
to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to 
unobservable inputs (Level 3).   

Level 1 – Financial assets and liabilities are valued using inputs that are unadjusted quoted prices in active 
markets accessible at the measurement date of identical financial assets and liabilities.  Level 1 includes 
common and preferred stock traded on active exchanges, such as the New York Stock Exchange, as well as 

Net change in 
unrealized

gains (losses)
included in 

change in net
assets for the 

Net realized period relating 
Beginning and Ending to  investments 

balance Investment unrealized balance at held at 
at July 1, 2011 income gains (losses) Purchases Sales Transfers June 30, 2012 June 30, 2012

Fixed income:
Alternative structures 23,597$            2,416$                3,102$                (8,054)$               21,061$              2,416$                

Global equity:
Alternative structures 195,931            929$                   1,205                  6,510                  (16,752)               187,823              1,267                  

Hedge funds:
Directional long-biased equity 114,952            1,418                  10,171                (16,669)               109,872              1,418                  
Fixed income arbitrage 94,011              3,262                  (18,340)               78,933                3,262                  
Fund of funds 44,402              (2,320)                 (42,082)               (2,320)                 
Long/short nonequity 52,542              1,440                  35,001                (38,103)               50,880                1,440                  
Market neutral equity 39,184              300                     (6,500)                 32,984                300                     
Structured credit 1,581                  18,000                19,581                1,581                  

Natural resources 117,862            (12,520)               7,102                  (21,231)               91,213                (12,367)               
Real estate 71,872              3,429                  21,877                (21,119)               76,059                3,429                  
Private equity:

Buyout 137,493            (2,763)                 7,375                  (14,679)               127,426              (2,763)                 
Distressed 67,877              3,944                  8,266                  (11,652)               68,435                3,409                  
Special situations 11,611              (1,486)                 15,673                (3,934)                 21,864                (1,486)                 
Venture capital 158,967            13,741                15,734                (35,074)               153,368              13,988                

Other investments 6,233                147                     3,580                  39                       (6,610)                 3,389                  (26)                      
Total 1,136,534$       1,076$                17,227$              148,850$            (260,799)$           -$                    1,042,888$         13,548$              

Net change in 
unrealized

gains (losses)
included in 

change in net
assets for the 

Change in Net realized period relating 
Beginning carrying and Ending to  investments 

balance value unrealized balance at held at 
at July 1, 2011 of trusts gains (losses) Purchases Sales June 30, 2012 June 30, 2012

Beneficial interest
     in trusts 27,243$            (456)$                  26,787$              (456)$                  
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overnight repurchase agreements, short term commercial paper, money market mutual funds, and U.S. 
Treasury obligations that are traded by dealers or brokers in active over-the-counter markets. 

Level 2 – Financial assets and liabilities are valued using quoted prices for similar assets, or inputs that are 
observable, either directly or indirectly for substantially the full term through corroboration with observable 
market data. Level 2 includes asset backed securities, corporate bonds, certificates of deposit, municipal 
bonds, and hedge funds as noted in the disclosure in MMF’s footnote 5, Fair Value of Financial Instruments. 

Level 3 – Financial assets and liabilities are valued using pricing inputs which are unobservable for the asset, 
inputs that reflect the reporting entity’s own assumptions about the assumptions market participants would 
use in pricing the asset.  Level 3 includes global distressed debt, private equity, venture capital, natural 
resources, real estate, interests in charitable trusts, interests in charitable lead trusts, and interests in 
commercial annuity contracts.   

The carrying amount of cash, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, grants payable, and investments held 
for custody of others approximate fair value because of the short maturity of those instruments.  Investments 
in equity and debt securities and equity mutual funds are carried at fair value based on quoted market prices.  
Investments in limited partnerships are carried at fair value determined by the partnerships’ general partner.  
Although the custodial bank stated the investment collateral would be valued at quoted market prices the 
investment collateral and amounts payable under investment loan agreement are reported at fair value based 
on quoted market prices of the underlying investment or, in the absence of quoted market prices, valuations 
provided by the securities lending agent.   

Interests in charitable trusts, charitable lead trusts, commercial annuity contracts, and pledges receivable are 
recorded at fair value using the present value of the estimated expected future cash flows.  Student loans 
receivable approximates fair value because the related interest rates are not significantly different than 
current market rates.  Split-interest agreement liabilities are carried at the present value of the estimated 
expected future cash flows using discount rates assumptions established upon initial recognition of the 
liability.   

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis at June 30, 2012 are: 

 

At June 30, 2012, MMF did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis. 

  

Assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Investments 11,309$            235,623$          19,872$            266,804$          
Investments collateral 993                   545                   339                   1,877                
Investment held for unitrusts,
    annuity trust, and gift annuities 9,670                9,670                
Interest in charitable trusts 34,675              34,675              
Interest in charitable lead trusts 2,393                2,393                
Interest in commercial annuity 
    contracts 586                   586                   
Total financial assets 21,972$            236,168$          57,865$            316,005$          
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The following table provides a summary of changes in fair value of MMF’s Level 3 financial assets for the 
year ended June 30, 2012: 

 

Securities Lending 

Minnesota Medical Foundation 

In October 2008, MMF, along with three other nonprofit organizations, filed suit against Wells Fargo Bank 
for a number of claims related to the bank’s Securities Lending Program.  In June 2010, a jury found the 
bank liable for breach of fiduciary duty and violation of the Minnesota Consumer Fraud Act.  Based on the 
jury verdict, the district court entered judgment for MMF in the amount of $5,947.  In addition, judgment 
was granted to the plaintiffs for pre and post-judgment interest, and certain attorneys’ fees and expenses. 

On July 14, 2011, Wells Fargo filed an appeal with the Minnesota Court of Appeals. 

On April 16, 2012, the Court of Appeals affirmed the trial court decision. 

On May 16, 2012, Wells Fargo filed a Petition for Review of Decision of Court of Appeals to the Minnesota 
Supreme Court and on June 27, 2012, the Minnesota Supreme Court denied Wells Fargo’s petition. 

These financial statements reflect a judgment receivable in the amount of $7,315 representing the judgment 
awarded net of fees and interest earned.  This amount was subsequently received in July, 2012 and in 
August, 2012 MMF exited the Securities Lending Program. 

Valuations of the collateral pools are provided to MMF by the custodial bank. For purposes of determining 
the values of collateral investments reflected on a balance sheet, the custodial bank uses financial models or 
other inputs where quoted prices in an active market are not available. Such valuations reflect hypothetical 
transactions, are subject to uncertainties, and accordingly do not reflect the amount that would be realized in 
a current sale. In addition, in light of the judgment involved in the fair value decisions by the custodial bank, 
and given the current market conditions, the illiquidity of many of the securities in the collateral pool, and 
the credit risk associated with securities in the collateral pools, there can be no assurance that a fair value 
assigned to a particular security by the custodial bank is accurate. 

MMF had equity and fixed income securities with fair values of $3,441 and $4,031 on loan at June 30, 2012 
and 2011, respectively. MMF reflects the collateral received for securities on loan as an asset and its 
obligation to return the collateral as a liability on its statement of financial position. An asset of $1,877 and 
$2,497 and the related liability representing the obligation to return collateral received of $3,510 and $4,120 
are reflected on the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. 
  

Interest in Interest in Interest in Total 
Investment charitable charitable commercial Level 3

Investments collateral trusts lead trusts annuities assets

Balance July 1, 2011 12,960$            504$                 26,161$            3,276$              637$                 43,538$            
Net investment return 1,109                (11)                    (97)                    1,001                
Change in value of SIA's 8,611                (883)                  (51)                    7,677                
Net purchase and sales 5,803                (191)                  5,612                
Net transfers out 37                     37                     
Balance June 30, 2012 19,872$            339$                 34,675$            2,393$              586$                 57,865$            
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Net Assets 

University of Minnesota Foundation 

Net assets of UMF and changes therein are classified into the following three categories:  

1. Unrestricted net assets represent the portion of expendable funds that are available for support of the 
operations of UMF. 

2. Temporarily restricted net assets consist of contributions that have been restricted by the donor for 
specific purposes or are time restricted. 

3. Permanently restricted net assets consist of contributions that have been restricted by the donor that 
stipulate the resources be maintained permanently, but permit UMF to use or expend part or all of the 
income derived from the donated assets for either specified or unspecified purposes. 

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets 

Temporarily restricted net assets are available as of June 30, 2012, for the following purposes. 

The portion of unexpended investment return generated from donor-restricted endowment funds subject to 
the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) consists of: 

 

  

Capital improvement/facilities         6,863$           
Faculty support 6,625
Scholarships and fellowships 83,368
Lectureships, professorships, and chairs 143,074
College program support 51,006
Research 8,794
Other 1,522
Subtotal 301,252$       

Gifts and other unexpended revenues and gains available for:
Capital improvement/facilities         83,079$         
Faculty support 10,364
Scholarships and fellowships 125,621
Lectureships, professorships, and chairs 35,486
College program support 235,874
Research 28,279
Trusts 9,334
Other 7,106
Subtotal 535,143

Total temporarily restricted net assets 836,395$       
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Permanently Restricted Net Assets 

Permanently restricted net assets are restricted to investment in perpetuity. The permanently restricted net 
asset balances, and purposes the income are expendable to support, as of June 30, 2012, are as follows: 

 

Minnesota Medical Foundation 

MMF follows an accounting standard that provides guidance on the net asset classification of donor-
restricted endowment funds for a not-for-profit organization that is subject to an enacted version of the 
Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act of 2006 (UPMIFA). 
  
Net assets, revenues, expenses, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor 
imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets of MMF and changes therein are classified and reported as 
follows: 

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets 

This classification includes net assets that have been restricted by donors for specific purposes or are not 
available for use until a specific time. These consist principally of gifts and grants for designated purposes, 
investment return, and payout from permanent endowments. Such net assets are retained until expended as 
provided by the donor. Temporarily restricted net assets are available as of June 30, 2012, for the following 
purposes: 

 

Permanently Restricted Net Assets 

This classification includes net assets that have been permanently restricted by donors who stipulate the 
resources be maintained by MMF in accordance with the memorandum of agreement. Earnings and growth 
in excess of payout (4.75 percent of the average market value over 20 trailing quarters) are reinvested and 
permanently restricted by MMF.  

  

Capital improvement/facilities  $           3,656 
Faculty support 11,632
Scholarships and fellowships 294,675
Lectureships, professorships, and chairs 194,214
College program support 57,691
Research 11,922
Trusts 37,650
Other 1,629
Total  $       613,069 

Medical School - Twin Cities         87,921$         
Student scholarships and support 8,000
Academic Health Center 102,026
Faculty grants and awards 9,381
School of Public Health 2,973
Medical School - Duluth 3,207
Total 213,508$       
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The permanently restricted net asset balances, and purposes the income is expendable to support, as of June 
30, 2012, are as follows: 

 

Guarantee Agreement and Financing Agreements 

University Gateway Corporation 

Guarantee Agreement 

The University of Minnesota Foundation guarantees the Series 1997, 2002, 2006, and 2009 bonds. Gateway 
pays a credit enhancement fee equal to 0.5 percent (50 basis points) of the outstanding balance on Series 
1997, 2002, and 2006 and 0.65 percent (65 basis points) on Series 2009.  The fee is calculated and paid on a 
semi-annual basis.  

Gateway recorded $279 and $282 of bond guarantee fee expense paid to the University of Minnesota 
Foundation for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The amount is included in financing 
expense on the statement of activities and changes in net assets. 

Financing Agreements 

Bonds payable  

The City of Minneapolis revenue bonds, Series 1997-B, Series 2002, Series 2006, and Series 2009 are 
collateralized by substantially all the assets of Gateway, and repayment of the revenue bonds will be made 
through lease payments of the occupants. 

To minimize interest cost, the University of Minnesota Foundation has guaranteed the revenue bonds (see 
Guarantee Agreement above). In addition, Gateway’s Board of Directors’ resolutions require mandatory 
capital contributions from the beneficiary organizations should the cash flow of Gateway be insufficient to 
meet the debt service obligations of Gateway. 

Pursuant to a mortgage between Gateway and the trustee, the obligations to pay the principal and interest on 
the bonds have been collateralized by the mortgage on the property and equipment and an assignment of 
rents. 

In July 2005, Gateway entered into an interest rate swap arrangement with a bank to fix the interest rate on 
$12,000 of variable-rate debt at an annual interest rate of 3.93 percent. The swap arrangement is indexed 
against the Bond Market Association Municipal Swap Index. In November 2011, the swap was amended to 
convert the index from SIFMA to 70 percent 1-month LIBOR, resulting in a new annual interest rate of 3.41 
percent.  The arrangement requires the difference between the fixed rate of interest and the index to be 
settled monthly.  Included in interest expense for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 is approximately 
$412 and $439, respectively, paid to the bank. The change in fair value of the interest rate swap arrangement 
has been recorded in the statement of activities and changes in net assets, resulting in an unrealized loss of 
$1,643 and an unrealized gain of $123 for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. 

Medical School - Twin Cities  $       133,411 
Student scholarships and support 29,006
Academic Health Center 27,643
Faculty grants and awards 6,785
School of Public Health 7,165
Medical School - Duluth 1,393
Total  $       205,403 
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Gateway holds these derivative instruments for the fixed interest rate certainty they provide, and therefore 
entered into interest rate swap agreement to fix the rate of interest on the bond as follows, as of June 30, 
2012: 

 

The swap agreement contains the same payment dates as the corresponding original or expected issue.  The 
fair values of the swap agreements are included as a liability on the statement of financial position in the 
amounts of $2,925 and $1,282 at June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.  The fair value of the interest rate 
swap agreement represents the estimated amount Gateway would pay to terminate the agreement. 

Approximate amounts payable under financing agreements at June 30, 2012 and 2011 consisted of the 
following: 

 
 

 

 
The bonds are subject to earlier redemption upon the occurrence of certain events as specified in the bond 
documents. 

 

 

 

  

Revenue Notional Maturity Weighted Average
Bonds Amounts Date Interest Rate

Series 1997B 12,000$                 2025 3.41%

2012 2011
City of Minneapolis revenue bonds, 
Series 1997B, with interest at a variable 
rate, principal due December 2027

 $     15,000  $     15,000 

City of Minneapolis revenue bonds, 
Series 2002, with interest at a variable
rate, principal due June 2032

          7,350           7,350 

City of Minneapolis revenue bonds, 
Series 2006, with interest ranging from
4.00% to 4.50%, maturing serially from
December 2006 through December 2031

        19,530         20,145 

City of Minneapolis revenue bonds,                                                                      
Series 2009, with interest at a variable                                                                   
rate, principal due in December 2040

10,500        10,500        

Subtotal 52,380        52,995        
Less discount on Series 2006 bond (70)             (73)             
Total 52,310$      52,922$      

Aggregate annual maturities are approximately as follows:

Fiscal years ending June 30
2013 640$           
2014 665             
2015 695             
2016 720             
2017 750             
Thereafter 48,910        
Total 52,380$      
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Required Supplementary Information (RSI) (Unaudited) 
Years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 (in thousands)  
 

Schedule of Funding Progress for the SBP Plan 

 

 
Schedule of Funding Progress for OPEB 

 
  

Actuarial 
valuation 

date

Actuarial 
value of 
assets

(a)

Actuarial 
accrued liability 

(AAL)—entry age
(b)

Unfunded 
AAL 

(UAAL)
(b-a)

Funded 
ratio
(a/b)

Covered 
payroll

(c)

UAAL as 
a 

percentage 
of covered 

payroll
((b-a)/c)

7/1/2011 $2,106 $5,263 $3,157 40.02% $731 431.87%
7/1/2010 2,621 5,578 2,957 46.99% 951 310.94%
7/1/2009 3,252 6,083 2,831 53.46% 1,345 210.48%

Additional information related to the SBP Plan is provided in Note 6. 

Actuarial 
valuation 

date

Actuarial 
value of 
assets

(a)

Actuarial 
accrued liability 

(AAL)—entry age
(b)

Unfunded 
AAL 

(UAAL)
(b-a)

Funded 
ratio
(a/b)

Covered 
payroll

(c)

UAAL as 
a 

percentage 
of covered 

payroll
((b-a)/c)

7/1/2012 $ - $116,182 $116,182 0.00% $1,222,548 9.50%
7/1/2011    - 99,135 99,135 0.00% 1,175,527 8.43%
7/1/2010    - 88,936 88,936 0.00% 1,189,710 7.48%

Additional information related to OPEB is provided in Note 11.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULES 

 

The Board of Regents  
University of Minnesota 
Minneapolis, Minnesota 
 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic consolidated financial statements as of June 30, 
2012 and 2011 taken as a whole. The accompanying schedules of net assets by campus, and of revenues, expenses, and 
changes in net assets by campus as of and for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 are presented for the purpose of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic consolidated financial statements. These schedules are the 
responsibility of the University's management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic consolidated financial statements. Such schedules have been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in our audits of the basic consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such schedules directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
consolidated financial statements or to the basic consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion such schedules are fairly 
stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

 
 
October 31, 2012

Deloitte & Touche LLP 

50 South Sixth Street 
Suite 2800 
Minneapolis, MN  55402 
USA 

Tel:   612 397 4000 
Fax:  612 397 4450 
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Crookston Duluth Morris Rochester Twin Cities Total

Assets

4,314$              61,093$            4,673$              2,853$              94,818$            167,751$          
133,586            133,586            

1,522                7,110                654                   630                   233,033            242,949            
186                   2,213                164                   20,762              23,325              
116                   1,702                233                   6,814                8,865                

54                     313                   42                     5                       8,050                8,464                
221                   221                   

6,192                72,431              5,766                3,488                497,284            585,161            

187,769            187,769            
2,669                76,100              2,920                1,643,981         1,725,670         

548                   548                   
604                   8,637                1,233                42,465              52,939              

4,999                4,999                
13                     13                     

 38,768              221,845            71,406              19,987              2,344,945         2,696,951         
42,041              306,582            75,559              19,987              4,224,720         4,668,889         
48,233              379,013            81,325              23,475              4,722,004         5,254,050         

729                   5,363                771                   210                   137,000            144,073            
1,301                16,920              2,029                592                   207,518            228,360            

1,074                26                     42                     58,560              59,702              
293,941            293,941            

2,030                23,357              2,826                844                   697,019            726,076            

1,510                15,796              2,361                167                   147,425            167,259            
324                   324                   

932,448            932,448            
1,510                15,796              2,361                167                   1,080,197         1,100,031         
3,540                39,153              5,187                1,011                1,777,216         1,826,107         

2,292                26,675              (939)                  175                   699,145            727,348            

Expendable 2,613                38,407              4,667                2,302                736,454            784,443            
 1,019                52,932              1,055                210,150            265,156            
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 38,768              221,845            71,354              19,987              1,299,042         1,650,996         

44,692$            339,859$          76,137$            22,464$            2,944,791$       3,427,943$       

Statements of Net Assets by Campus
June 30, 2012 (in thousands)

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Receivables, net

Noncurrent assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables, net

Inventories
Student loans receivable, net
Prepaid expenses and deferred charges
Other assets

Total current assets

Student loan receivables
Prepaid expenses and deferred charges
Other assets
Capital assets, net 

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

Liabilities
Current liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities and other
Unearned Income
Long term liabilities - current portion 

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities
Accrued liabilities and other
Unearned income
Long term liabilities 

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

Total net assets

Net Assets
Unrestricted
Restricted 

Nonexpendable
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(Unaudited)
Crookston Duluth Morris Rochester Twin Cities Total

Assets

6,419$               64,500$             5,505$               4,448$               162,221$           243,093$           
52,265               52,265               

1,866                 11,328               1,132                 645                    243,820             258,791             
121                    2,285                 350                    21,216               23,972               
124                    1,643                 234                    6,722                 8,723                 
16                      294                    69                      3,111                 3,490                 

221                    221                    
8,546                 80,050               7,290                 5,093                 489,576             590,555             

175,939             175,939             
2,660                 70,593               2,883                 1,519,719          1,595,855          

562                    562                    
657                    8,916                 1,198                 43,040               53,811               

3,957                 3,957                 
27                      27                      

 38,734               228,554             74,022               21,683               2,242,079          2,605,072          
42,051               308,063             78,103               21,683               3,985,323          4,435,223          
50,597               388,113             85,393               26,776               4,474,899          5,025,778          

719                    5,663                 694                    222                    133,793             141,091             
1,288                 18,585               2,129                 583                    204,913             227,498             

36                      1,113                 163                    39                      58,467               59,818               
305,514             305,514             

2,043                 25,361               2,986                 844                    702,687             733,921             

1,356                 15,075               2,269                 106                    129,407             148,213             
497                    497                    

839,905             839,905             
1,356                 15,075               2,269                 106                    969,809             988,615             
3,399                 40,436               5,255                 950                    1,672,496          1,722,536          

5,134                 44,664               185                    1,176                 556,205             607,364             

Expendable 2,309                 27,179               4,885                 2,968                 765,517             802,858             
 1,022                 47,279               1,047                 204,261             253,609             
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 38,733               228,554             74,021               21,683               1,276,420          1,639,411          

47,198$             347,676$           80,138$             25,827$             2,802,403$        3,303,242$        

Receivables, net

Statements of Net Assets by Campus
June 30, 2011 (in thousands)

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments

Other assets

Inventories
Student loans receivable, net
Prepaid expenses and deferred charges
Other assets

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables, net
Student loan receivables
Prepaid expenses and deferred charges

Noncurrent liabilities

Capital assets, net 
Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

Liabilities
Current liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities and other
Unearned Income
Long term liabilities - current portion 

Total current liabilities

Unrestricted
Restricted 

Nonexpendable

Total net assets

Accrued liabilities and other
Unearned income
Long term liabilities 

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

Net Assets
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Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets by Campus

Crookston Duluth Morris Rochester Twin Cities Total
Revenues
Operating revenues

Student tuition and fees, net 9,688$              90,805$            9,770$              4,238$              581,777$          696,278$          
Federal grants and contracts 394                   10,020              730                   153                   499,390            510,687            
State and other government grants 73                     2,588                26                     (10)                    56,954              59,631              
Nongovernmental grants and contracts 591                   2,947                356                   76                     284,522            288,492            
Student loan interest income 16                     304                   39                     1,507                1,866                
Sales and services of educational activities 363                   4,396                232                   8                       155,231            160,230            
Auxiliary enterprises, net 3,716                38,033              6,125                1,057                302,640            351,571            
Other operating revenues 162                   162                   

Total operating revenues 14,841              149,093            17,278              5,522                1,882,183         2,068,917         
Expenses
Operating expenses

Educational and general
Instruction 8,529                61,607              11,368              1,847                612,866            696,217            
Research 172                   17,803              906                   587                   613,731            633,199            
Public service 552                   7,627                643                   21                     236,645            245,488            
Academic support 2,606                22,081              4,311                1,083                330,545            360,626            
Student services 2,429                12,602              3,883                1,438                85,800              106,152            
Institutional support 2,430                11,842              3,676                4,600                166,492            189,040            
Operation and maintenance of plant 4,682                27,797              6,658                3                       215,413            254,553            
Scholarships and fellowships 404                   2,526                1,176                147                   47,761              52,014              
Depreciation 1,608                11,401              3,574                1,613                165,679            183,875            

Auxiliary enterprises 4,634                31,668              6,882                1,599                182,614            227,397            
Other operating expenses, net (16)                    (23)                    (13)                    (143)                  (195)                  

Total operating expenses 28,030              206,931            43,064              12,938              2,657,403         2,948,366         
Operating Loss (13,189)             (57,838)             (25,786)             (7,416)               (775,220)           (879,449)           

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Federal appropriations 68                     15,077              15,145              
State appropriations 8,467                30,164              18,368              7,428                507,648            572,075            
Grants 4,085                23,025              5,546                144,000            176,656            
Gifts 454                   3,941                613                   52                     137,940            143,000            
Investment income, net 192                   4,073                248                   32,382              36,895              
Interest on capital asset-related debt (45,328)             (45,328)             
Other nonoperating revenues, net 14                     33                     173                   2,134                2,354                
Net nonoperating revenues 13,212              61,236              25,016              7,480                793,853            900,797            

Income (Loss) Before Other Revenues 23                     3,398                (770)                  64                     18,633              21,348              

Capital appropriations 60,570              60,570              
Capital grants and gifts 372                   8                       30,969              31,349              
Additions to permanent endowments 5,656                7                       5,771                11,434              
Transfers 248                   1,592                770                   (939)                  (1,671)               -                    
Other internal charges (2,777)               (18,835)             (4,016)               (2,488)               28,116              -                    
Total other revenues (expenses) (2,529)               (11,215)             (3,231)               (3,427)               123,755            103,353            

Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets (2,506)               (7,817)               (4,001)               (3,363)               142,388            124,701            

Net assets at beginning of year 47,198              347,676            80,138              25,827              2,802,403         3,303,242         

Net assets at end of year 44,692$            339,859$          76,137$            22,464$            2,944,791$       3,427,943$       

Year ended June 30, 2012 (in thousands)
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(Unaudited)

Crookston Duluth Morris Rochester Twin Cities Total
Revenues
Operating revenues

Student tuition and fees, net 7,831$               81,852$             7,505$               2,869$               533,985$           634,042$           
Federal grants and contracts 310                    9,376                 1,439                 46                      480,552             491,723             
State and other government grants 153                    3,043                 140                    8                        56,976               60,320               
Nongovernmental grants and contracts 711                    3,052                 374                    40                      260,825             265,002             
Student loan interest income 24                      304                    40                      1,592                 1,960                 
Sales and services of educational activities 386                    4,004                 185                    29                      113,266             117,870             
Auxiliary enterprises, net 3,457                 37,425               5,641                 41                      298,973             345,537             
Other operating revenues 2,606                 2,606                 

Total operating revenues 12,872               139,056             15,324               3,033                 1,748,775          1,919,060          
Expenses
Operating expenses

Educational and general
Instruction 7,846                 58,317               10,782               1,032                 590,065             668,042             
Research (4)                      17,212               332                    487                    607,628             625,655             
Public service 560                    6,938                 808                    (6)                      217,401             225,701             
Academic support 2,344                 19,865               4,523                 3,994                 329,090             359,816             
Student services 2,414                 12,566               3,792                 1,252                 84,839               104,863             
Institutional support 2,340                 12,628               2,936                 490                    175,603             193,997             
Operation and maintenance of plant 3,831                 23,485               6,077                 238                    231,257             264,888             
Scholarships and fellowships 237                    2,580                 986                    119                    48,388               52,310               
Depreciation 1,469                 11,435               3,164                 1,572                 146,049             163,689             

Auxiliary enterprises 4,722                 33,137               6,941                 182,196             226,996             
Other operating expenses, net (26)                    (34)                    (89)                    216                    67                      

Total operating expenses 25,733               198,129             40,252               9,178                 2,612,732          2,886,024          
Operating Loss (12,861)             (59,073)             (24,928)             (6,145)               (863,957)           (966,964)           

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Federal appropriations 891                    6,002                 1,335                 61,188               69,416               
State appropriations 10,419               40,390               19,793               7,819                 544,879             623,300             
Grants 3,939                 21,567               5,431                 143,597             174,534             
Gifts 716                    7,054                 615                    45                      139,152             147,582             
Investment income, net 193                    4,116                 253                    176,303             180,865             
Interest on capital asset-related debt (36,592)             (36,592)             
Other nonoperating revenues, net (5)                      (200)                  76                      (2,232)               (2,361)               
Net nonoperating revenues 16,153               78,929               27,503               7,864                 1,026,295          1,156,744          

Income (Loss) Before Other Revenues 3,292                 19,856               2,575                 1,719                 162,338             189,780             

Capital appropriations 75,801               75,801               
Capital grants and gifts 380                    44,433               44,813               
Additions to permanent endowments 916                    17                      1,185                 2,118                 
Transfers 5,709                 (8,023)               14,158               (5,049)               (6,795)               -                    
Other internal charges (3,196)               (19,303)             (3,536)               (1,917)               27,952               -                    
Total other revenues (expenses) 2,513                 (26,030)             10,639               (6,966)               142,576             122,732             

Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets 5,805                 (6,174)               13,214               (5,247)               304,914             312,512             

Net assets at beginning of year 41,393               353,850             66,924               31,074               2,497,489          2,990,730          

Net assets at end of year 47,198$             347,676$           80,138$             25,827$             2,802,403$        3,303,242$        

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets by Campus
Year ended June 30, 2011 (in thousands)
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INTRODUCTION TO EASTCLIFF 
 
In 1922, Mr. Edward Brooks, a local lumber baron, commissioned C.H. Johnston Sr., an 
architect of record for the University of Minnesota, to create a home for his family. The resulting 
two-story, twenty-room house reflects the family’s understated taste and the Brooks’ lumber 
heritage is evident throughout the house. Walnut, ash, cherry, cypress, knotty pine, and bleached 
oak were used in the construction and detailing; the unusually thick and wide white clapboard 
siding was custom cut, and nine fireplaces allowed the Brooks family to burn wood from their 
lumberyards to heat the home. Because of its perch atop the eastern cliffs of the Mississippi 
River, the Brooks family began calling the home Eastcliff—a name still used to this day. 
 
In 1958, the Brooks family graciously donated their majestic home to the University of 
Minnesota. Today, surrounded by a white, wooden fence, Eastcliff occupies approximately two 
acres and serves as a living teaching and learning laboratory. Faculty and students in design and 
architecture assist with renovations and improvements for the home and the grounds. Artwork 
within the residence is on loan from University of Minnesota museum collections and in the 
gardens, sculpture further accentuates the property. 
 
The Eastcliff Technical Advisory Committee (ETAC), which has main oversight responsibility 
for the house, and the Friends of Eastcliff Committee (FOE), which raises funds for 
enhancements, both provide guardianship of this property, making it an outstanding venue for 
University events as well as the residence for the president and his family. These two committees 
ensure Eastcliff presents an image worthy of the University’s rich history and tradition. Through 
their efforts, Eastcliff was placed on the National Register of Historic Places in June 2000 as one 
of the finest examples of 1920’s Colonial Revival architecture. 
 
Since 1961, eight University of Minnesota presidents and their families have resided in Eastcliff. 
In addition to housing our current president, Eric W. Kaler and his wife, Karen Kaler, Eastcliff 
serves as a special gathering place for official University functions. Its historic architecture, 
welcoming public spaces, and manicured grounds provide a comfortable setting for friends of the 
University—students, faculty, staff, alumni, donors, community leaders, and public officials, as 
well as dignitaries from around the world. A carriage house, summerhouse, pool, and terraces 
enrich the property and extend the visitor’s experience beyond the main residence.  
 
From July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2012, 3,614 people visited Eastcliff. The Office of the 
President plans and coordinates dozens of events each year. Beginning July 1, 2012, all property 
management and maintenance responsibilities were transferred from the Office of the President 
to the University’s Facilities Management. This transfer is consistent with an internal audit 
recommendation and ensures an appropriate separation of responsibilities. 
 
Routine maintenance and repairs to Eastcliff are funded by the University. Private gifts help fund 
special undertakings and ensure Eastcliff continues to be a welcoming venue for University 
meetings and receptions. The Friends of Eastcliff Committee raises private funds for 
enhancement projects and the Eastcliff Technical Advisory Committee recommends capital 
improvements, maintenance, and repairs.  Both committees report directly to the Board of 
Regents. This annual report focuses on projects completed during the past fiscal year as well as 
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projects to be completed in the future. It also includes a report on the oversight and management 
of the house and official Eastcliff activity during the past year. 
 
 
 

EASTCLIFF TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 
The Eastcliff Technical Advisory Committee is chaired by Lyndel King, director of the Frederick 
R. Weisman Art Museum, and reports to the Board of Regents. This committee plans and 
oversees all Eastcliff renovation, maintenance, and enhancement projects. The Eastcliff 
Technical Advisory Committee works closely with the Friends of Eastcliff and the University to 
combine University funds with private donations to complete major projects, needed 
maintenance, and to provide enhancements for the house. 
 
 

Eastcliff Technical Advisory Committee Roster: FY 2011-2012 
 
• Lyndel King, Committee Chair and Director, Frederick R. Weisman Art Museum  
• Mike Berthelsen, Associate Vice President, Facilities Management 
• Joe Favour, Associate Professor, Department of Landscape Architecture 
•     Steve Jorgenson, Assistant Director, Department of Central Security 
• Karen Kaler, University Associate 
• Caren Martin, Assistant Professor, Department of Design, Housing, and Apparel 
• Kevin Ross, Senior Project Manager, Capital Planning and Project Management 
• Cynthia Scott, Associate to the President, Office of the President  
• Brian Steeves, Executive Director and Corporate Secretary, Board of Regents 
• Robert Tunell, Associate Director, Facilities Management 
• J. Stephen Weeks, Associate Professor, Department of Architecture 
 
 

EASTCLIFF TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE BYLAWS 
Approved September 2002 

Mission 
 
Eastcliff has a unique role among University of Minnesota buildings in that it serves both as a 
public facility for events and meetings and as the private residence of the University president 
and family. The Eastcliff Technical Advisory Committee’s mission is to guide the improvement, 
maintenance, operation, and use of Eastcliff to ensure that it projects an image worthy of the 
University’s rich history and tradition. In doing so, the committee will appropriately separate, 
protect, and foster Eastcliff’s unique public and private uses. 
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ETAC Membership 
 
Chair: 
• Selected by the Chair of the Board of Regents from the following member representatives 
 
Members: 
• Board of Regents Executive Director (1) 
• Department of Design, Housing and Apparel (1) 
• Department of Landscape Architecture (1) 
• Department of Architecture (1) 
• Facilities Management (2)  
• President’s Spouse (1) 
• Weisman Art Museum (1) 
• University Foundation (1)  
• President’s Office (1) 
 
Advisory Members: 
• University of Minnesota Campus Health and Safety (1) 
• Facilities Management Owner’s Representative (1)  
 
Staff: 
• Eastcliff Events Coordinator (1) 
 

Responsibilities 
 
1. Master Plans.  Oversee the development and implementation of master plans that enhance the 

original integrity and design of Eastcliff and its grounds and promote it as an important 
institutional and residential University resource. The master plan will include information 
pertaining to landscaping, furnishing repair and renewal, as well as acquisitions. 

 
2. Capital Improvement Projects.  Consistent with the Eastcliff master plans and following the 

University’s established capital planning process, recommend to the vice president for 
University Services a prioritized list of future capital improvement projects, estimated project 
budgets, suggested funding sources, and project delivery methods and timing. 

 
3. Operations and Maintenance Plan.  Review annual facility operations and maintenance plan 

and budget for Eastcliff to be implemented by Facilities Management. 
 
4. Quarterly Operating Reports.  Review quarterly operating statements supplied by Facilities 

Management. 
 
5. Operating Policies and Procedures.  Advise the President’s Office and Facilities Management 

on operating policies and procedures including staffing, general maintenance, purchasing, 
security, and the appropriate level of scheduling and use of Eastcliff. 
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6. Art Works and Furnishings.  Make recommendations to the University museums for the 
provision, location, maintenance, insurance, and security of art works and furnishings to be 
shown or used in the public areas of Eastcliff. 

 
7. Minutes.  Distribute minutes of committee meetings to members of the Eastcliff Technical 

Advisory Committee. 
 
8. Annual Report.  Review and submit to the Board of Regents an annual report on Eastcliff 

comprised of information about the previous fiscal year’s financial, maintenance, and 
operational activity. 
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FRIENDS OF EASTCLIFF 
 
The Friends of Eastcliff Committee (Friends) includes private citizens along with University 
representatives. Established in 1993, the committee was created to raise private support so this 
historic residence will continue to be a gracious and welcoming home. This committee reports 
directly to the Board of Regents. The 2011-12 chair of the Friends of Eastcliff Committee is 
Patricia Simmons, a member of the University’s Board of Regents. Donations are managed by 
the University of Minnesota Foundation and are designated for enhancements to the house, as 
opposed to routine maintenance projects, which are funded by the University.  
 
 

Events Held at Eastcliff 
 
Eighty-four events were held at Eastcliff in fiscal year 2011-12 involving more than 3,600 
guests, including University of Minnesota students, faculty, staff, alumni, and friends as well as 
community, national, and world leaders. 
 
 

Fundraising Activities 
 
In 2011-2012, the Friends of Eastcliff raised $35,450 in gifts. Friends events held during this 
fiscal year include: 
 
• The Friends of Eastcliff Garden Party, an annual donor recognition and fundraising event, 

was held on June 10, 2012. 
 
• Funding and support were provided for the Friends of Eastcliff Book Club. Four meetings 

were held with approximately 25-50 members in attendance each time. The Book Club 
continues to focus on books written by University of Minnesota faculty, staff, and alumni 
authors. 

 
 

Friends of Eastcliff Committee Roster: FY 2011-2012 
 
• Patricia Simmons, Committee Chair and Regent, University of Minnesota 
• Kathy Beenen, Minnesota Medical Foundation 
• Catherine Shea Hellervik, Friend of Eastcliff 
• Andrea Hjelm, Friend of Eastcliff 
• Karen Kaler, University Associate 
• Zehra Keye, Friend of Eastcliff 
• Lyndel King, Director, Weisman Art Museum 
• Sue Nelson, Friend of Eastcliff 
• Leanna Rogers, Friend of Eastcliff 
• Lynne Schoen, Senior Project Manager, University of Minnesota Foundation 
• Ed Schneider, Director, Minnesota Landscape Arboretum 
• Cynthia Scott, Associate to the President, Office of the President 
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FRIENDS OF EASTCLIFF COMMITTEE BYLAWS 

Approved Fall 2008 
 

Mission 
 

Eastcliff has a unique role among University of Minnesota buildings in that it serves both as a 
public facility for events and meetings and as the private residence of the University president 
and family.  The Friends of Eastcliff Committee’s mission is to raise funds for financing projects 
associated with Eastcliff that are classified as enhancement projects intended to retain the 
architectural integrity of the house or to supplement the interior furnishings. 
 

Membership 

Chair: 
• Board of Regents member (selected by the chair of the Board of Regents) 
 
Members: 
• Board of Regents, ex officio (1) 
• Chair, Eastcliff Technical Advisory Committee, ex officio (1) 
• Members who are not University employees (5-10) 
• Members who are University employees (up to 2) 
• Director/Designee, Minnesota Landscape Arboretum, ex officio (1) 
• Foundation President/Designee, University Foundation, ex officio (1) 
• President’s Designee, Office of the President, ex officio (1) 
• University Associate, (President’s Spouse) ex officio (1) 
 
Staff: 
• Eastcliff Events Coordinator 
 
 

Friends of Eastcliff Executive/Nominating Subcommittee 
 
Members: 
• Chair of the Friends (who is also a Regent) 
• Chair of Eastcliff Technical Advisory Committee 
• 1-2 other members who are not University employees 
 
Advisors to the subcommittee: 
• University Associate (spouse of the president) 
• University Foundation member of the Friends of Eastcliff (when discussing nominees) 
• Eastcliff Events Coordinator 
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Responsibilities of the Subcommittee: 
 
The subcommittee will develop lists, consider recommendations, and appoint the membership of 
the Friends. It will also submit nominations to the Friends for consideration in the category of 
honorary membership. 
 
As appropriate, the subcommittee may also develop agendas for meetings and perform other 
duties customary to executive committees, including, if needed due to an emergency situation, 
act on behalf of the Friends. 
 
The subcommittee may also create special ad hoc task force groups, as it deems appropriate. 
 
The chair of the Friends will select the 1-2 other members of the Friends who are not University 
employees to serve on the Executive/Nominating Subcommittee. 
 
 

Honorary Members 
 
The category of Honorary Members is established to recognize outstanding, long-term service to 
the Friends. Honorary members shall be nominated by the Executive/Nominating Subcommittee 
and elected by a majority vote of the Friends. Honorary members shall be non-voting members 
of the Friends.  
 
Responsibilities of the Honorary Members 
 
1. Fundraising.  Plan and assist in the solicitation of private resources toward the development 

of the endowment fund (Legacy Fund) to support projects identified as enhancements by the 
Eastcliff Technical Advisory Committee. 

 
2. Project Prioritization.  Consistent with the master plan, review the enhancement 

recommendations of the Eastcliff Technical Advisory Committee and suggest a priority rank 
for private funding. 

 
3. Public Support.  Nurture continued public support of Eastcliff. Advise on issues of public 

relations, as well as on matters pertaining to donor appreciation and communications. 
 
4. Archives.  Oversee the development and maintenance of historical information pertaining to 

Eastcliff. 
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UNIVERSITY OF MINNESOTA FOUNDATION 
 
 
 

Eastcliff Endowment Funds 

Markell Brooks Eastcliff Enhancement Endowment 

Dwight F. Brooks II Eastcliff Enhancement Fund 
 

July 1, 2011 – June 30, 2012 
 
 
 Beginning Balance 7/1/11 $801,204.13 
  Contribution 0.00 
  Investment Return 2,554.41 
  Disbursements 0.00 
 Ending Balance  $803,758.54 
 
 
 
 Available Cash Balance (accumulated spendable earnings on endowment) $126,844.72 

 
 
  
 

 
 

Eastcliff Legacy Fund 
 

July 1, 2011 – June 30, 2012 
 
 
 Beginning Balance 7/1/11 $20,974.54 

  Contributions 35,450.00 
  Pledge payments 20,135.00 
  Investment Return 35.07 
  Disbursements (23,528.64) 
 Ending Balance $53,065.97 
 
 
 Available Cash Balance $53,065.97 
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Disbursements 
 
 

Eastcliff Legacy Fund  
July 1, 2011 - June 30, 2012 

 
 

 
 
2011 Garden Party            16,266.52 
 
 
2012 Garden Party              4,865.40 
 
 
Eastcliff Technical Advisory Committee meeting expense             87.62 
 
 
Recondition historic serveware              863.44 
 
 
Art installation/protection               940.66 
 
 
Piano tuning                  505.00  

     
 

Total            $23,528.64 
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CAPITAL AND MAINTENANCE PROJECTS COMPLETED FY 2011-2012 

 
Fiscal Year 2012 was a time of transition in the operations and maintenance of Eastcliff as 
Facilities Management (FM) assumed full responsibility for Eastcliff. The previous management 
model employed outside contractors almost exclusively. This change in the management of 
Eastcliff allowed for the reduction of on-site staff, as FM was able to systematize facility and 
ground operations, maintenance and repair with FM staff and vendors.  
 
There were no capital projects at Eastcliff during fiscal year 2011-2012. Capital projects are now 
being reviewed for the Eastcliff six-year capital plan. 
 
The following maintenance projects were completed at Eastcliff during fiscal year 2011-2012: 
	  
 

Maintenance Project Summary 
 
Painted interior/exterior main house and perimeter fence $33,601.77 

Rekeyed doors, repaired gates and hardware, and closets $12,574.40 

Refinished hardwood floors 
 

$5,460.00 

Fireplace repair 
 

$2,703.50 

 
Facilities Management also: 
• Conducted an Xcel energy audit; 
• Reviewed and documented electrical and HVAC infrastructure of the main house; and 
• Transferred the irrigation water source from on-site wells to city water. 
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OFFICIAL UNIVERSITY ENTERTAINING 
 
More than 3,600 guests visited Eastcliff for receptions, dinners, open houses, and breakfasts 
during fiscal year 2012. A strategic decision was made with the presidential transition that all 
events at Eastcliff would be hosted by either the president and/or his spouse. This, combined 
with “down time” during the transition, resulted in a reduction of the total number of events and 
guests from previous years 
 
 

EASTCLIFF EVENTS ACTIVITY: JULY 1, 2002 – JUNE 30, 2012 
 

Number of Events Held by Month  
 

 Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May  Jun Total 
2002-2003 6 6 9 13 10 10 13 14 9 14 14 15 133 
2003-2004 11 18 18 16 15 9 5 13 8 91 11 23 156 
2004-2005 8 23 16 17 8 10 5 8 11 13 18 22 159 
2005-2006 12 13 13 21 14 11 5 14 9 14 16 22 164 
2006-2007 4 11 18 19 17 16 12 12 10 18 19 19 175 
2007-2008 17 13 22 14 13 11 3 14 9 14 16 27 173 
2008-2009 12 9 18 20 13 20 3 10 10 17 18 16 166 
2009-2010 9 10 13 13 8 29 3 7 7 15 17 18 140 
2010-2011 7 8 16 13 5 14 4 6 4 12 18 7  114 
2011-2012 0 3 8 6 9 14 5 7 8 2 9 13 84 
 
 

 
Number of Events Held by Type 

 
 Breakfast Lunch Reception Dinner Tour Meeting Picnic Open 

House 
Other 

2002-2003 17 13 35 2 4 13 3  7 
2003-2004 11 17 43 44 3 20 3  8 
2004-2005 20 18 40 37 10 20 2  5 
2005-2006 15 17 48 28 10 25 1  13 
2006-2007 16 17 51 36 3 37 1  8 
2007-2008 8 23 53 35 6 31 1  8 
2008-2009 13 16 52 29 2 41 1  5 
2009-2010 7 19 54 22 0 24 1  13 
2010-2011 11 14 53 29 4 5 1  0 
2011-2012 7 2 34 24 1 13 0 2 1 
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Total Number of Guests Per Year 
 

Year Total Guests 
2002-2003 6,150 
2003-2004 6,374 
2004-2005 6,808 
2005-2006 8,032 
2006-2007 7,687 
2007-2008 8,891 
2008-2009 8,208 
2009-2010 6,664 
2010-2011 5,959 
2011-2012 3,614 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

121



 15 

FACILITIES MANAGEMENT (FM) & PRESIDENT’S OFFICE 
SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES FOR EASTCLIFF 

 
GENERAL OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE FUND 
12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2012 (4TH QUARTER) 

(Unaudited) 
 
 CURRENT YEAR  PRIOR YEAR 

 Facilities 

2011-12 

Events 

Management 

2011-12 

TOTAL 

 

Facilities  

2010-11 

Events  

Management 

2010-11 

TOTAL 

       

Beginning Balance (Prior Year Carry forward)  $8,391 $8,391   $0 
       
REVENUES       
       
Total Year Allocation $229,135 $184,325 $413,460 $228,962 $183,093 $412,055 
       
Transfer from Office of the President $28,000    $28,000      
       
Transfer from General Contingency Fund    $18,000  $18,000 
       
Transfer from Central Reserves $54,340  $54,340    
       
Total Resources $311,475 $192,716 $504,191 $246,962 $183,093 $430,055 
       
       
EXPENDITURES       
       
Salaries and Fringe Benefits $1,797  $52,474 $54,270 $22,651 $117,973 $140,624 
       
Supplies, Expense, Equipment $281,406 $4,896 $286,302 $220,173 $56,728 $276,902 
       
Transfer to FM   $28,000 $28,000    
       
Transfer to/(from) Eastcliff Project Reserve $20,004   $20,004 $4,138  $4,138 
       
Total Expenditures $303,207  $85,370 $388,577 $246,962 $174,702 $421,664 
 
 

      

Ending Balance $8,268 $107,347 $115,615 $0 $8,391 $8,391 
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UNIVERSITY OF MINNESOTA 
BOARD OF REGENTS 

 
 
Board of Regents December 14, 2012 
 
Agenda Item:   Consent Report 
 

  review   review/action   action   discussion 
 
Presenters: Regent Linda Cohen 
 
Purpose: 
 

 policy   background/context  oversight   strategic positioning 
 
To seek Board of Regents approval of items in the Consent Report, as required in Board of 
Regents Policy:  Reservation and Delegation of Authority.
 
Outline of Key Points/Policy Issues: 
 

• Appointment of University of Minnesota Foundation Trustees 
The president recommends approval of appointment to the University of Minnesota 
Foundation Board of Trustees. 

 
• Appointment of UMore Park LLC Board of Governors 

The President recommends approval of appointments to the UMore Park LLC Board of 
Governors.   
 

• Gifts 
The President recommends approval of the Summary Report of Gifts to the University 
of Minnesota through October 31, 2012 (attached). 
 

 
Appointments: University of Minnesota Foundation Board of Trustees 
 
To appoint the following individual to serve a 3-year term on the University of Minnesota 
Foundation (UMF) Board of Trustees: 
 
Mary K. Brainerd (term expires 2015) 

Mary K. Brainerd is president and chief executive officer for Minnesota-based HealthPartners.  
Prior to joining HealthPartners, Brainerd held senior level positions with Blue Cross and Blue 
Shield of Minnesota.  Brainerd holds a master’s degree in business administration from the 
University of St. Thomas and a B.A. degree from the University of Minnesota.  Brainerd grew up in 
St. Paul and has been actively involved in the Twin Cities community for several years. She is one 
of the founding CEOs of the Itasca Project, a group of 40 government, civic and business leaders 
addressing the issues that impact long-term economic growth, including jobs, education, 
transportation, and economic disparities.  She also serves on the boards of Minnesota Life/Securian, 
Minnesota Council of Health Plans, Minnesota Philanthropy Partners, and Minneapolis Federal 
Reserve. 
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To reappoint the following individuals to serve a 3-year term on the UMF Board of Trustees: 
 
Honorable Linda A. Cohen (term expires 2015) 

Linda A. Cohen is a licensed psychologist and licensed marriage and family therapist. She 
serves as chair of the Board of Regents of the University of Minnesota to which she was 
elected by the state legislature in 2007. Cohen was appointed to the UMF Board by the 
Board of Regents in November 2009. Previously, Cohen was a consultant for TCF Bank, 
directing a business-education partnership with Patrick Henry High School in 
Minneapolis, assistant director/interim director of Blake Middle School, and a senior 
administrative team member of the Blake School.  A graduate of the University of 
Minnesota with Master of Arts and Ph.D. degrees in educational psychology, Cohen also 
earned a Master of Arts degree in the history of science from Harvard University and is a 
Phi Beta Kappa graduate in chemistry of Wellesley College. 
 

James I. Swenson (term expires 2015) 
James I. Swenson is a 1959 graduate of the University of Minnesota Duluth.  Swenson was 
appointed to the UMF Board by the Board of Regents in June 2007. He is a native of 
Superior, Wisconsin, and a graduate of the University of Minnesota with a B.A. in 
chemistry. Swenson’s career included positions with Honeywell, Univac, Lockheed, and 
North American Rockwell Corporation. In 1978, he founded Details Incorporated, a 
manufacturer of printed circuit boards specializing in small quantity, quick turn-around 
prototyping. Swenson currently manages the Swenson Family Foundation, funding 
scholarship programs at UMD, the University of Wisconsin Superior and California 
Lutheran University. 

 
George H. Winn (term expires 2015) 

George H. Winn was appointed by the Board of Regents to serve as a UMF trustee in 
December 2006. He has both B.S. and D.D.S. degrees from the University of Minnesota, 
and maintains a private practice in New Prague, as well as serving as a faculty member in 
the University’s Department of Operative Dentistry. Most recently, Winn served on the 
School of Dentistry's Simulation Clinic Campaign Cabinet, successfully raising $10.5 
million for that state-of-the-art facility, and was the recipient of the Distinguished Dental 
Alumnus Award in 2002. Winn has served as a member of the Regents Selection Advisory 
Committee for the Minnesota Legislature. He is co-founder of the Community Security 
Bank of New Prague and of Nova Praha Development Company.  Winn is a past president 
of the Minnesota Dental Association and the Minnesota Hospital Association. 

 
Appointments of UMore Development LLC Board of Governors 
 
The following appointments are recommended: 
o Pam Wheelock, Vice President of University Services, University of Minnesota, as a 

University Governor and member of the UMore Development LLC Board of Governors for 
an indefinite term; and 

 
The reappointment of Community Governors as follows: 
o Peggy Lucas, Partner, Brighton Development Corporation: Three-year term, January 

2013 through December 2015.  Lucas was initially appointed for a three-year term, 
January 2010 through December 2012. 

 
o Roger Sit, President, Chief Executive Officer, and Global Chief Investment Officer, Sit 

Mutual Funds:  Three-year term, January 2013 through December 2015.  Sit was initially 
appointed for a three-year term, January 2010 through December 2012. 

 
Background Information: 
 
UMore Development LLC Board of Governors 
 
Nine Governors were appointed to initial staggered terms on the UMore Development LLC 
Board of Governors by the Board of Regents on December 11, 2009.  University Governors 
serve indefinite terms. 
 
On September 9, 2011, the Board of Regents appointed Allen S. Levine, Dean, College of Food, 
Agricultural and Natural Resource Sciences as a University Governor, and also reappointed as  
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Community Governors David C. Sellergren, Attorney, Fredrickson & Byron; P.A., Sarah B. 
Harris, then Chief Operating Officer, Minneapolis Downtown Improvement District; and 
Michael O’Keefe, President Emeritus of the Minneapolis College of Art and Design. 

 
Pursuant to the Resolution Related to Creation and Organization of UMore Development LLC, 
adopted by the Board of Regents on October 9, 2009, the LLC’s Oversight and Management 
Agreement provides the University of Minnesota Board of Regents with sole and final 
authority to appoint the LLC Board of Governors to manage and direct the business of the 
LLC. 
 
Current UMore Park LLC Board of Governors: 
 
o Thomas Fisher, Professor and Dean, College of Design, University of Minnesota 
o Sarah B. Harris, Managing Director, University of Minnesota Foundation Real Estate 

Advisors 
o Allen S. Levine, Dean, College of Food, Agricultural and Natural Resource Sciences 
o Peggy Lucas, Partner, Brighton Development Corporation (reappointed pending Board 

approval) 
o R. Timothy Mulcahy, Vice President for Research, University of Minnesota (to be replaced 

by Pam Wheelock, pending Board approval) 
o Michael O’Keefe, President Emeritus, Minneapolis College of Art and Design 
o Richard Pfutzenreuter, Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, University of 

Minnesota 
o David C. Sellergren, Attorney, Fredrickson & Byron, P.A. 
o Roger Sit, President, Chief Executive Officer, and Global Chief Investment Officer, Sit 

Mutual Funds (reappointed pending Board approval) 
 
The University Governor appointment and two Community Governor reappointments were 
approved by the LLC on November 28, 2012. 
 
President's Recommendation for Action: 
 
The President recommends approval of the Consent Report. 
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07/01/12 07/01/11
2012 2011 09/30/12 09/30/11

34,055$                         62,532$                         92,102$                     66,449$                        

21,075                             36,025                             86,389                           103,018                        

486,264                         2,188,389                 1,041,436               2,371,729                

1,178,525                 1,913,094                 7,850,989               5,437,178                

5,626,190                 6,111,218                 21,373,097           27,128,939            

7,346,109$             10,311,258$         $30,444,013 35,107,313$        

*Detail  on  gifts  of  $5,000  and  over  is  attached.

Pledges  are  recorded  when  they  are  received.    To  avoid  double  reporting,  any  receipts  
which  are  payments  on  pledges  are  excluded  from  the  report  amount.

U  of  M  Gift  Receiving

4-‐H  Foundation

Arboretum  Foundation

MN  Medical  Foundation

Univ  of  MN  Foundation

Total  Gift  Activity

MEETING  OF  THE  BOARD  OF  REGENTS
GIFTS  TO  BENEFIT  THE  UNIVERSITY  OF  MINNESOTA

SUMMARY  REPORT*

December  2012  Regents  Meeting

September Year-‐to-‐Date
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Donor Rec'd  by Gift/Pledge Purpose  of  gift

$500,000  -‐  $1,000,000
Hormel  Foundation UMF Gift Hormel  Institute
Warren  and  Nancy  Dunn UMF Gift Law  School

$250,000  -‐  $500,000
Frank  and  Eleanor  Maslowski  
Charitable  Trust

UMF Pledge College  of  Science  and  Engineering

Benjamin  Y.  H.  and  Helen  Cheng  Liu UMF Pledge College  of  Liberal  Arts

Dr.  Tu  and  Pi-‐Fang  Chen UMF Gift College  of  Science  and  Engineering

$100,000  -‐  $250,000
Alfred  Harrison UM Gift Minnesota  Landscape  Arboretum
John  J.  Ukasick  Estate UMF Gift Unrestricted
Anonymous UM Gift Minnesota  Landscape  Arboretum
Ardath  A.  Riess MMF Gift Medicine,  Schulze  Diabetes  Institute
Mr.  and  Mrs.  George  Taylor  Estate UMF Gift College  of  Science  and  Engineering
The  McKnight  Foundation UMF Gift Dance,  Transitway  Impact  Research,  College  

of  Food,  Agricultural  and  Natural  Resource  
Sciences

Dr.  Margaret  P.  Martin  Estate UMF Gift Scholarships
Eddy  Foundation  Charitable  Trust  U/W UMF Gift University  of  Minnesota  Duluth

Target  Corporation UMF Gift/Pledge Various  Colleges

$50,000  -‐  $100,000
Sping  Lin MMF Gift Scholarships
Celladon  Corporation MMF Pledge Biochemistry,  Molecular  Biology  and  

Biophysics
Amy  A.  Lackner MMF Gift Masonic  Cancer  Center
Dow  AgroSciences  LLC UMF Gift College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  Natural  

Resource  Sciences
Pioneer  Hi-‐Bred  International  
Incorporated

UMF Gift College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  Natural  
Resource  Sciences

Karl  Potach  Foundation UMF Gift Hormel  Institute
Anonymous MMF Gift Neurosciences
Asahi  Kasei  Corporation UMF Gift College  of  Science  and  Engineering
Broadcom  Foundation UMF Gift College  of  Science  and  Engineering

Gifts  to  benefit  the  University  of  Minnesota

Gifts  received  in  September  2012
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$50,000  -‐  $100,000
Dr.  Mary  Ann  C.  Sabino  and  Kurt  
Dahmann

UMF Pledge School  of  Dentistry

$25,000  -‐  $50,000
Kenneth  G.  Brown  Estate UMF Gift College  of  Liberal  Arts
3M  Company UMF/MMF Gift College  of  Biological  Sciences,  SPH  

Environmental  and  Occupational  Health

Ashland  Incorporated UMF Gift College  of  Science  and  Engineering
Mae  L.  Johnson  Charitable  Trust UMF Gift College  of  Education  and  Human  

Development
June  M.  Rogier  Estate UM Gift Minnesota  Landscape  Arboretum
Red  Wing  Area  Fund  of  the  Saint  Paul  
Foundation

UMF Gift College  of  Design

Thomas  J.  Maloney MMF Gift/Pledge Masonic  Cancer  Center
John  William  Perry MMF Gift Medical  School  Administration
Valard  A.  Lufi  Estate UMF Gift Carlson  School  of  Management
Noreen  J.  Harmer MMF Gift Schulze  Diabetes  Institute
J.  J.  Taylor  Distributing  of  Minnesota UMF Gift Department  of  Intercollegiate  Athletics

Nihon  Kohden  Corporation UMF Gift College  of  Science  and  Engineering
MN  Professional  Engineers  Foundation UMF Gift University  of  Minnesota  Duluth

Michael  Flaherty UMF Gift Department  of  Intercollegiate  Athletics
Barbara  J.  Swanstrom UMF Gift School  of  Nursing
Cynthia  Breen UMF Gift Carlson  School  of  Management
Dr.  Leon  and  Ms.  Linda  Assael UMF Pledge School  of  Dentistry
Ecolab  Incorporated UMF Gift College  of  Science  and  Engineering
Ford  Motor  Company UMF Gift College  of  Science  and  Engineering
Glen  and  Harold  Bend  Foundation-‐St.  
Paul  Foundation

UMF Gift College  of  Education  and  Human  
Development

Kellogg's UMF Gift College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  Natural  
Resource  Sciences

Mary  Ann  Anderson UMF Pledge Department  of  Intercollegiate  Athletics
NatureWorks  LLC UMF Gift College  of  Science  and  Engineering
Stephanie  K.  Carlson MMF Pledge Scholarships

$10,000  -‐  $25,000
The  Carter  Family  Foundation UMF Gift University  of  Minnesota  Duluth
The  Cliffs  Foundation UMF Gift/Pledge University  of  Minnesota  Duluth
Southern  Minnesota  Beet  Sugar  
Cooperative

UMF Gift College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  Natural  
Resource  Sciences
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$10,000  -‐  $25,000
West  Central  Incorporated UMF Gift College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  Natural  

Resource  Sciences
Center  for  Computer-‐Assisted  Legal  
Instruction

UMF Gift Law  School

Bayer  Corporation UMF Gift College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  Natural  
Resource  Sciences

Dr.  Nathan  E.  and  Elaine  L.  Ballou UMF Gift University  of  Minnesota  Duluth
Jay  L.  Kim UMF Pledge Law  School
Keith  E.  Wyche MMF Gift Scholarships
Land  O'  Lakes  Incorporated UMF Gift College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  Natural  

Resource  Sciences
Renata  R.  Winsor UM Pledge Minnesota  Landscape  Arboretum
Power  Play  Club UMF Gift Department  of  Intercollegiate  Athletics
Frontier  Ag  Incorporated UMF Gift College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  Natural  

Resource  Sciences
Douglas/Margaret  Goodlund  Fund-‐AZ  
Community  Foundation

UMF Gift School  of  Dentistry

Muriel  M.  Orcutt  Estate UMF Gift Libraries
Claire  E.  Bender MMF Gift Scholarships
Dr.  Kristin  and  Honorable  Russell  
Anderson

UMF Pledge College  of  Education  and  Human  
Development

Honorable  Russell  A.  and  Dr.  Kristin  
Anderson

UMF Pledge Law  School

General  Mills  Foundation UMF/UM Gift/Pledge Various  Colleges
Midwest  Ag  Enterprises  Incorporated UMF Gift College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  Natural  

Resource  Sciences
William  B.  Ramsay UMF Gift Department  of  Intercollegiate  Athletics
Receptors  LLC UM Gift College  of  Science  and  Engineering
Duane  F.  Rost MMF Gift Family  Medicine  and  Community  Health

Barbara  L.  Forster MMF Gift Masonic  Cancer  Center
Virginia  G.  Puzak UMF Gift College  of  Education  and  Human  

Development
Anthony  R.  Dorso MMF Gift Medicine
Bill  Tyrrell UMF Gift University  of  Minnesota  Crookston
Heidi  and  Michael  Wilson UMF Pledge Law  School
Kevin  P.  Harris UMF Gift Department  of  Intercollegiate  Athletics
Lakewinds  Natural  Foods  and  Home UM Gift Minnesota  Landscape  Arboretum

Lisa  D.  Steele UMF Gift College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  Natural  
Resource  Sciences

Margaret  G.  Aldrich  Irrevocable  Trust  
U/W

UMF Gift College  of  Science  and  Engineering
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$10,000  -‐  $25,000
Mississippi  River  Fund UMF Gift River  Life  Program
National  Bank  of  Commerce UMF Pledge University  of  Minnesota  Duluth
Paul  and  Mary  Reyelts  Foundation-‐
Signature  Fund  Minneapolis  
Foundation

UMF Gift College  of  Design

T.  J.  Technologies  Incorporated UMF Gift College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  Natural  
Resource  Sciences

The  Bergquist  Company UMF Gift College  of  Science  and  Engineering
The  Valspar  Foundation UMF Gift Weisman  Art  Museum
William  H.  Kelty UMF Gift College  of  Liberal  Arts
Wolters  Kluwer  Financial  Services UMF Gift Weisman  Art  Museum

$5,000  -‐  $10,000
William  A.  Milbrath  Estate UM Gift 4H  Foundation
Minnesota  Soybean  Growers  
Association

UM Gift 4H  Foundation

Michael  J.  Hoffman UMF Gift Carlson  School  of  Management
Medica  Foundation MMF Gift Medicine
Dr.  Scott  D.  Augustine UMF Gift Department  of  Intercollegiate  Athletics
Ladies  Auxiliary  VFW UMF Gift Hormel  Institute
Gregory  J.  Connell MMF Gift Pharmacology
North  Central  Cheese  Industries  
Association

UMF Gift College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  Natural  
Resource  Sciences

Wound  Ostomy  and  Continence  
Nurses  Society  Foundation

UMF Gift School  of  Nursing

Friedell  Family  LP UMF Gift Law  School
Gary  R.  Wedin UM Gift University  of  Minnesota  Duluth
Hearing  Components  Incorporated UMF Gift College  of  Science  and  Engineering

Minnesota  Pork  Board UMF Gift College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  Natural  
Resource  Sciences

Segetis  Incorporated UMF Gift College  of  Science  and  Engineering
Twin  Town  Trading UMF Gift Department  of  Intercollegiate  Athletics
Richard  and  Patty  DeLano UMF Gift University  of  Minnesota  Duluth
Eva  L.  Phelps  Estate UMF Gift School  of  Nursing
Dr.  Heidi  L.  Thorson UMF Gift/Pledge Scholarships,  College  of  Biological  Sciences

Ion  Corporation UMF Gift Department  of  Intercollegiate  Athletics
Bremer  Bank UMF Gift Department  of  Intercollegiate  Athletics
Tricia  Peterson UMF Gift Department  of  Intercollegiate  Athletics
American  Crystal  Sugar  Company UMF Gift College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  Natural  

Resource  Sciences
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$5,000  -‐  $10,000
John  G.  Davies UMF Gift College  of  Education  and  Human  

Development
Marty  J.  and  Linda  L.  Wolf UMF Pledge University  of  Minnesota  Morris
Minnesota  Power  Foundation UMF Gift University  of  Minnesota  Duluth
Patricia  R.  Thayer UMF Gift Carlson  School  of  Management
Rodney  H.  Forristall UMF Gift College  of  Science  and  Engineering
Webster  Veterinary  Supply  
Incorporated

UM Gift College  of  Veterinary  Medicine

Susan  M.  Corbin UMF Gift Department  of  Intercollegiate  Athletics
Jerry  V.  Noyce UMF Gift Department  of  Intercollegiate  Athletics
Ronald  S.  Leafblad UMF Gift Department  of  Intercollegiate  Athletics
Glenn  W.  Hasse  Jr. UMF Gift Department  of  Intercollegiate  Athletics
Evelyn  Sweasy UM Gift Minnesota  Landscape  Arboretum
James  T.  and  Sharon  Hale UMF Gift Law  School
Andrea  Hricko  Hjelm  and  Kenneth  E.  
Hjelm

UMF Gift Department  of  Intercollegiate  Athletics,  
Weisman  Art  Museum

Alan  E.  Peterson UMF Gift College  of  Continuing  Education
Alta  M.  Oben UMF Gift University  of  Minnesota  Duluth
Anonymous UMF Gift College  of  Liberal  Arts
Bonita  M.  Kozub-‐Frels UMF Gift College  of  Liberal  Arts
Catherine  A.  Taylor UMF Gift Law  School
Charles  J.  Schoen UMF Gift Department  of  Intercollegiate  Athletics
Deanna  L.  Croes UMF Pledge College  of  Biological  Sciences
DLR  Group  Architects  and  Engineers UMF Gift Department  of  Intercollegiate  Athletics

Dr.  Andrew  G.  Pearson UMF Pledge School  of  Dentistry
Dr.  Christina  M.  and  Mark  J.  Bigelow UMF Pledge College  of  Biological  Sciences

Dr.  Gary  B.  Silberstein UMF Gift College  of  Biological  Sciences
Dr.  Glen  D.  Nelson UMF Gift Weisman  Art  Museum
Dr.  Terry  and  Barbara  Cisler UMF Pledge School  of  Dentistry
Drs.  Todd  D.  Sorensen  and  Kristin  K.  
Janke

UMF Gift College  of  Pharmacy

Education  Minnesota  Foundation UMF Gift Bell  Museum  of  Natural  History
Exos  Corporation UMF Gift College  of  Veterinary  Medicine
Food  and  Agriculture  Organization  of  
the  United  Nations

UMF Gift College  of  Veterinary  Medicine

Harvey  A.  Bartz MMF Gift Masonic  Cancer  Center
Interstate  Companies  Incorporated MMF Gift Masonic  Cancer  Center

James  J.  Blanchard UMF Gift Law  School
Kathleen  G.  Fahey UMF Gift College  of  Biological  Sciences
Keith  P.  Carpenter UMF Gift College  of  Veterinary  Medicine
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$5,000  -‐  $10,000
LeJeune  Family  Foundation MMF Gift Masonic  Cancer  Center
Leland  T.  Lynch  and  Terry  Saario  Fund-‐
Minneapolis  Foundation

UMF Gift College  of  Liberal  Arts

Leona  Fangmann UMF Gift School  of  Nursing
Life  Innovations  Incorporated UMF Gift College  of  Education  and  Human  

Development
Mary  L.  Devlin UMF Gift College  of  Liberal  Arts
Peter  and  Eunice  Weisensel  Charitable  
Gift  Fund

UMF Gift College  of  Liberal  Arts

Richard  S.  Caldecott UMF Pledge College  of  Biological  Sciences
Steven  C.  Leuthold  Family  Foundation UMF Gift College  of  Veterinary  Medicine

The  Canadian  Institute  for  Advanced  
Research

UMF Gift College  of  Education  and  Human  
Development

The  Nash  Avery  Foundation MMF Gift Academic  Health  Center
Transplant  Connect MMF Gift Ophthalmology
Tubby  Smith  Enterprises  LLC UMF Gift Humphrey  School  of  Public  Affairs
Warren  E.  and  Mary  E.  Ibele UMF Gift College  of  Science  and  Engineering
Wesley  J.  Miller MMF Pledge Masonic  Cancer  Center
William  R.  Dircks UMF Gift Department  of  Intercollegiate  Athletics
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07/01/12 07/01/11
2012 2011 10/30/12 10/30/11

175,014$                     45,254$                         267,116$                 111,703$                    

99,288                             224,492                         185,677                     327,510                        

1,976,957                 264,927                         3,018,393               2,636,656                

6,273,966                 10,246,975             14,124,955           15,684,152            

6,948,808                 14,770,367             28,321,905           41,899,306            

15,474,033$         25,552,015$         $45,918,046 60,659,327$        

*Detail  on  gifts  of  $5,000  and  over  is  attached.

Pledges  are  recorded  when  they  are  received.    To  avoid  double  reporting,  any  receipts  
which  are  payments  on  pledges  are  excluded  from  the  report  amount.

U  of  M  Gift  Receiving

4-‐H  Foundation

Arboretum  Foundation

MN  Medical  Foundation

Univ  of  MN  Foundation

Total  Gift  Activity

MEETING  OF  THE  BOARD  OF  REGENTS
GIFTS  TO  BENEFIT  THE  UNIVERSITY  OF  MINNESOTA

SUMMARY  REPORT*

December  2012  Regents  Meeting

October Year-‐to-‐Date
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Donor Rec'd  by Gift/Pledge Purpose  of  gift

$1  Million  and  Over
K.A.H.R.  Foundation UM Pledge Minnesota  Landscape  Arboretum

$500,000  -‐  $1,000,000
Richard  J.  Ames UMF Pledge Department  of  Intercollegiate  Athletics

J.  A.  Wedum  Foundation UMF Gift/Pledge Carlson  School  of  Management

$250,000  -‐  $500,000
Anonymous UMF Gift Humphrey  School  of  Public  Affairs
The  Richard  M.  Schulze  Family  Foundation MMF Gift Medical  School

$100,000  -‐  $250,000
Anonymous UMF Gift College  of  Veterinary  Medicine
Gary  D.  Hanovich MMF Pledge Scholarships
Pamela  Safar UM Gift Minnesota  Landscape  Arboretum
Michele  and  David  Mittelman  Family  
Foundation

UMF Gift Center  for  Spirituality  and  Healing

Lowell  F.  Schwab UMF Gift Undesignated
Roger  E.  Ekman UMF Gift College  of  Liberal  Arts
3M  Company UMF/UM Gift Various  Colleges
St.  Jude  Medical  Foundation UMF/MMF Gift Department  of  Intercollegiate  Athletics,  

Pediatrics
Bradley  A.  Hoyt MMF Pledge Masonic  Cancer  Center
David  Maiser UM Pledge Minnesota  Landscape  Arboretum
Dr.  Phillip  L.  and  Gail  L.  Minerich UMF Pledge College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  

Natural  Resource  Sciences

$50,000  -‐  $100,000
Haworth  Incorporated UM Gift College  of  Science  and  Engineering

Medica MMF Gift Scholarships
Minnesota  Corn  Growers  Association UM Gift 4H  Foundation
Starke  and  Virginia  Hathaway  Trust UMF Gift College  of  Liberal  Arts
Epidermolysis  Bullosa  Medical  Research  
Foundation

MMF Gift Pediatrics

Gifts  to  benefit  the  University  of  Minnesota

Gifts  received  in  October  2012
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$50,000  -‐  $100,000
Jackson  Gabriel  Silver  Foundation  
Incorporated

MMF Gift Pediatrics

Dr.  Thomas  D.  Dressel UM Gift College  of  Science  and  Engineering

Philip  L.  Gardner MMF Gift Ophthalmology
Center  for  Computer-‐Assisted  Legal  
Instruction

UMF Gift Law  School

Medtronic  Incorporated UMF/MMF Gift College  of  Science  and  Engineering,  
Neurosurgery

Ross  and  Bridget  E.  Levin UMF Pledge Department  of  Intercollegiate  Athletics

Anonymous UMF Gift College  of  Liberal  Arts
Coleman  Family  Foundation  Incorporated UMF Gift Department  of  Intercollegiate  Athletics

Eino  K.  Latvala UMF Gift College  of  Science  and  Engineering

Henkel  Corporation UMF Gift College  of  Science  and  Engineering

Schlumberger  Technology  Corporation UMF Gift College  of  Science  and  Engineering

Schmidgall  Family  Fund-‐  Fidelity  
Charitable  Gift  Fund

UMF Gift College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  
Natural  Resource  Sciences

Twin  Cities  Area  Chapter  of  CFMA UMF Gift College  of  Continuing  Education
Valspar  Corporation  and  Subsidiaries UMF Gift College  of  Science  and  Engineering

$25,000  -‐  $50,000
ConAgra  Foods  Enterprise  Services  
Incorporated

UMF Gift College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  
Natural  Resource  Sciences

PayPal  Incorporated UMF Gift College  of  Science  and  Engineering

Phi  Upsilon  Omicron-‐Alpha  Alumni  
Chapter

UMF Gift Scholarships

Michael  and  Connie  Murtaugh UMF Gift College  of  Veterinary  Medicine
Marla  S.  Spivak UMF Gift College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  

Natural  Resource  Sciences
Michael  A.  Johnson UMF Pledge Department  of  Intercollegiate  Athletics

The  McKnight  Foundation UMF Gift Bell  Museum
The  Caravan  Trust UMF Gift College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  

Natural  Resource  Sciences
Katherine  R.  Lillehei  Charitable  Trusts UMF Gift School  of  Nursing
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$25,000  -‐  $50,000
Anheuser-‐Busch  Companies  Incorporated UMF Gift Department  of  Intercollegiate  Athletics

Syngenta  Crop  Protection  Incorporated UMF Gift College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  
Natural  Resource  Sciences

ExxonMobil  Corporation UMF Gift College  of  Science  and  Engineering,  
Carlson  School  of  Management

PIC  USA  Incorporated UMF Gift College  of  Veterinary  Medicine
Ann  Carlson  Birt UMF Pledge College  of  Design
Blue  Cross  and  Blue  Shield  of  Minnesota MMF Gift School  of  Public  Health

Community  Foundation  of  Collier  County MMF Gift Neurology

Fairview  Health  Services MMF Gift Pediatrics
Holly  Christina  Stahl  Foundation  
Incorporated

UMF Gift College  of  Design

James  H.  Michael UMF Gift Law  School
M.  A.  Mortenson  Company MMF Gift Academic  Health  Center
MOM  Brands  Company UMF Gift College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  

Natural  Resource  Sciences
Pfizer  Incorporated UMF Gift College  of  Veterinary  Medicine
S.  Bartley  Osborn  Family  Charitable  Trust UMF/UM Gift Department  of  Intercollegiate  Athletics,  

Minnesota  Landscape  Arboretum

Shirley  L.  Zimmerman UMF Gift College  of  Education  and  Human  
Development

$10,000  -‐  $25,000
GE  Foundation UMF Pledge University  of  Minnesota  Duluth,  College  

of  Science  and  Engineering

Gary  J.  and  Patricia  K.  Ray UMF Gift Hormel  Institute
Dr.  Donald  F.  Mowbray UMF Gift University  of  Minnesota  Duluth
John  H.  Daniels  Jr. UM Gift University  of  Minnesota  Duluth
Anonymous UMF Gift College  of  Design
Alice  Warren  Gaarden  Fund-‐Minneapolis  
Foundation

UMF Gift College  of  Science  and  Engineering

Katharine  E.  Dumas UMF Gift University  of  Minnesota  Duluth
Cureium  Therapeutics,  LLC MMF Gift Surgery
McLaughlin  Gormley  King  Company UMF Gift College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  

Natural  Resource  Sciences
MN  Golf  Course  Superintendents  
Association  Incorporated

UMF Gift College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  
Natural  Resource  Sciences
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$10,000  -‐  $25,000
Suean  Groves MMF Pledge Pediatrics
BASF  Corporation UMF Gift College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  

Natural  Resource  Sciences
Bayer  Corporation UMF Gift College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  

Natural  Resource  Sciences
Dr.  Timothy  and  Susan  Durtsche UMF Gift School  of  Dentistry
Cornerstone  Parking  Group  Incorporated MMF Gift Unrestricted

ExxonMobil  Foundation UMF Pledge College  of  Science  and  Engineering

Anonymous MMF Gift Neurology
Anonymous MMF Gift OB/Gyn
Cuningham  Group  Architecture  
Incorporated

UMF Gift College  of  Design

Danisco UMF Gift College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  
Natural  Resource  Sciences

Dr.  Mary  A.  Ebert  and  Mr  Paul  R.  Stembler UMF Gift University  of  Minnesota  Duluth

Gordon  and  Llura  Gund  Foundation UMF Gift Department  of  Intercollegiate  Athletics

Ilene  Fl  Levin  Estate UMF Gift University  of  Minnesota  Duluth
J.  Frank  Schmidt  Family  Charitable  
Foundation

UM Gift Minnesota  Landscape  Arboretum

Stuart  A.  Nielsen  Revocable  Trust UMF Gift College  of  Liberal  Arts
SunOpta  Foods  Incorporated UMF Gift College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  

Natural  Resource  Sciences
TIC  Gums  Incorporated UMF Gift College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  

Natural  Resource  Sciences
Valent UMF Gift College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  

Natural  Resource  Sciences
Karine  M.  Semmer MMF Gift Urologic  Surgery
Keith  Rachey UMF Gift Department  of  Intercollegiate  Athletics

E.  I.  DuPont  De  Nemours  and  Company UMF Gift College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  
Natural  Resource  Sciences

Land  O'Lakes  Foundation UMF Gift/Pledge College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  
Natural  Resource  Sciences

Horizon  Milling  LLC UMF Gift College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  
Natural  Resource  Sciences

RBC  Wealth  Management UM Gift Minnesota  Landscape  Arboretum
Stratasys  Incorporated UMF Gift College  of  Science  and  Engineering

The  Luther  Family  Foundation MMF Gift Neurology
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$10,000  -‐  $25,000
Upsher-‐Smith  Laboratories  Incorporated MMF Gift Neurology

Anonymous UMF Gift Department  of  Intercollegiate  Athletics

Douglas  R.  and  Carol  A.  Skanse UMF Pledge Department  of  Intercollegiate  Athletics

Superior  Beverages  LLC UMF Gift University  of  Minnesota  Duluth
Michael  E.  Dougherty UMF Gift Department  of  Intercollegiate  Athletics

Gordon  R.  Johnson  Endowed  Fund-‐
Minneapolis  Foundation

UMF Gift Department  of  Intercollegiate  Athletics

The  Minneapolis  Foundation MMF Gift Unrestricted
Virginia  M.  Kivits  Estate UMF Gift Minnesota  Landscape  Arboretum
Friends  of  Minnesota  Women's  Track UMF Gift Department  of  Intercollegiate  Athletics

Jean  and  Mark  Schroepfer  Fund-‐Saint  Paul  
Foundation

UMF Gift College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  
Natural  Resource  Sciences

Lake  Region  Medical UMF Gift College  of  Science  and  Engineering

Dr.  John  W.  and  Diane  E.  Newstrom UMF Gift University  of  Minnesota  Duluth
Anonymous UMF Gift Carlson  School  of  Management
B.  John  Lindahl  Jr. UM Gift Minnesota  Landscape  Arboretum
Ben  and  Jeanne  Overman  Charitable  Trust UMF Gift University  of  Minnesota  Duluth

Bergren  Family  Foundation  of  the  
Minneapolis  Foundation

UM Gift Minnesota  Landscape  Arboretum

Bruce  and  Joan  Richard  Family  Fund UMF Gift Carlson  School  of  Management
Children's  Cancer  Research  Fund MMF Gift Amplatz  Childrens  Hospital
Chorzempa  Family  Foundation MMF Gift Masonic  Cancer  Center
Coyne  Family  Fund-‐Renaissance  
Charitable  Foundation  Incorporated

UMF Gift College  of  Veterinary  Medicine

Delta  Dental  of  Minnesota MMF Gift Academic  Health  Center
Donna  M.  Pociask UMF Gift College  of  Veterinary  Medicine
Dow  AgroSciences  LLC UMF Gift College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  

Natural  Resource  Sciences
Dr.  Constantine  Xykis UMF Gift College  of  Science  and  Engineering

Dr.  Thomas  R.  and  Julie  D.  Seidelmann UMF Pledge School  of  Dentistry

General  Mills  Incorporated UMF Gift Weisman  Art  Museum
Grace  Lee UMF Gift Carlson  School  of  Management
Hoeft  Family  Fund-‐Minneapolis  
Foundation

UM Gift Minnesota  Landscape  Arboretum
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$10,000  -‐  $25,000
Jean  Roberts MMF Gift Medicine
Max  A.  Lauffer  Estate UMF Gift College  of  Biological  Sciences
Robert  and  Maureen  V.  Vince UMF Gift Scholarships
Schwing  America  Incorporated UMF Gift Global  Programs  and  Strategy  Alliance

The  Bergquist  Company UMF Gift College  of  Science  and  Engineering

Vanguard  Charitable  Endowment  Program MMF Gift Amplatz  Childrens  Hospital

$5,000  -‐  $10,000
Iris  A.  and  Peter  Kiedrowski UMF Gift Humphrey  School  of  Public  Affairs
Minikahda  Club UMF Gift Department  of  Intercollegiate  Athletics

Dr.  Gail  N.  Anderson UMF Gift College  of  Education  and  Human  
Development

Ralco  Nutrition  Incorporated UMF Gift College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  
Natural  Resource  Sciences

Joon  Woo  Hahn UMF Gift College  of  Liberal  Arts
Oberlin  College UMF Gift Graduate  School
Rosemary  J.  Graham UMF Gift College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  

Natural  Resource  Sciences
CHS  Foundation UMF Gift College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  

Natural  Resource  Sciences
Community  Health  Charities  Minnesota MMF Gift Masonic  Cancer  Center

Wound  Ostomy  and  Continence  Nurses  
Society  Foundation

UMF Gift School  of  Nursing

Dr.  William  F.  Hueg  Jr.  and  Hella  Mears  
Hueg

UMF Gift College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  
Natural  Resource  Sciences

Frank  Wheeler MMF Gift Pediatrics
Jim  Smith  Foundation MMF Gift Medicine
Midwest  Dairy  Association UMF Gift College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  

Natural  Resource  Sciences
Rodney  H.  Forristall UM Gift Minnesota  Landscape  Arboretum
Jane  A.  Starr UMF Gift College  of  Liberal  Arts
The  Fund  for  the  Tiger UMF Gift College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  

Natural  Resource  Sciences
Gold  Country  Incorporated UMF Gift Department  of  Intercollegiate  Athletics

Sping  Lin MMF Gift Neurosciences
Owen  H.  and  Sarah  D.  Wangensteen  Trust  
Fund

UMF Gift Libraries
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$5,000  -‐  $10,000
Barbara  L.  and  Robert  R.  de  la  Vega UMF Pledge College  of  Biological  Sciences
James  E.  Johnson UM Gift Minnesota  Landscape  Arboretum
Rainbow  TreeCare  Scientific  
Advancements  Incorporated

UMF Gift College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  
Natural  Resource  Sciences

Benjamin  F.  Nelson  Estate UMF Gift Academic  Health  Center
Hockey  for  the  Heart MMF Gift Medicine
David  L.  Cole UM Gift Minnesota  Landscape  Arboretum
Demeter  Services  Veterinaires  
Incorporated

UMF Gift College  of  Veterinary  Medicine

Diamond  V.  Technologies  Incorporated UMF Gift College  of  Veterinary  Medicine

Fairmont  Veterinary  Clinic  LLP UMF Gift College  of  Veterinary  Medicine
Nazie  Eftekhari MMF Pledge Neurology
Weck  Charitable  Trust UMF Gift Humphrey  School  of  Public  Affairs
West  Central  Incorporated UMF Gift College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  

Natural  Resource  Sciences
Twin  City  Hardware  Company UMF Gift Department  of  Intercollegiate  Athletics

Ruth  M.  Anderson UM Gift Minnesota  Landscape  Arboretum
Red  Lake  Watershed  District UMF Gift College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  

Natural  Resource  Sciences
Evelyn  Sweasy UM Gift Minnesota  Landscape  Arboretum
Tom  Morris UMF Gift Department  of  Intercollegiate  Athletics

James  H.  and  Mary  B.  Hammill UMF Gift Various  Colleges
Yvonne  Pollard  Oaks MMF Gift Unrestricted
GeoDigm  Corporation UMF Gift School  of  Dentistry
Agricultural  and  Applied  Economics  
Association

UMF Gift College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  
Natural  Resource  Sciences

Albert  A.  Woodward UMF Pledge Law  School
ALD-‐AMN  Global  Alliance MMF Pledge Pediatrics
Alfred  W.  Erickson  Foundation MMF Gift Pediatrics
Allina  Health  System UMF Gift College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  

Natural  Resource  Sciences
Anonymous UMF Gift College  of  Veterinary  Medicine
Bridgewater  Bank MMF Gift Urologic  Surgery
Calvin  H.  Simmons UMF Gift Scholarships
Chloe's  Fight MMF Pledge Pediatrics
Community  Initiatives UMF Gift Center  for  Spirituality  and  Healing
Dave  and  Jodi  Dent  Family  Fund-‐
Minneapolis  Foundation

UMF Gift Carlson  School  of  Management

Dorsey  and  Whitney  LLP UMF Gift Weisman  Art  Museum
Douglas  J.  and  Wendy  Dayton UMF Pledge College  of  Biological  Sciences
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$5,000  -‐  $10,000
Dr.  Alan  B.  Hooper UMF Gift College  of  Biological  Sciences
Dr.  Bruce  G.  Dumke UMF Pledge College  of  Biological  Sciences
Dr.  Dennis  J.  and  Elizabeth  Cronin UMF Gift College  of  Science  and  Engineering

Dr.  James  Lee UMF Pledge College  of  Science  and  Engineering

Dr.  John  T.  and  Joy  M.  Wetzel UMF Gift College  of  Liberal  Arts
Dr.  Mark  S.  and  Alexa  E.  Umbreit UMF Gift College  of  Education  and  Human  

Development
Dr.  Mirng-‐Ji  Lii UMF Gift College  of  Science  and  Engineering

Dr.  Rebecca  A.  Urbanski  and  Scott  L.  
Junkert

UMF Gift College  of  Veterinary  Medicine

Dr.  Robert  C.  Hodson UMF Gift College  of  Biological  Sciences
Dr.  William  C.  Scharf UM Gift College  of  Food,  Agricultural  and  

Natural  Resource  Sciences
Duluth  Superior  Area  Community  
Foundation

MMF Gift Scholarships

DUSA  Pharmaceuticals  Incorporated MMF Gift Dermatology
Dwight  A.  and  Marjorie  S.  Peterson UMF Gift Carlson  School  of  Management
Eugenia  R.  Taylor UMF Gift School  of  Nursing
G.  Martin  Johnson UMF Gift Department  of  Intercollegiate  Athletics

Hope  G.  Brown MMF Gift Amplatz  Childrens  Hospital
Idea  Drilling  LLC UMF Gift University  of  Minnesota  Duluth
Institute  for  Engineering  in  Medicine MMF Gift Medical  School
Irene  M.  Ott UMF Gift College  of  Education  and  Human  

Development
Jack  and  Gretchen  Norqual  Foundation-‐
MN  Community  Foundation

UMF Gift Department  of  Intercollegiate  Athletics

Joleen  H.  Durken UMF Gift 4H  Foundation
Jon  R.  Campbell UM Gift Minnesota  Landscape  Arboretum
K  L  S-‐Martin  LP UMF Gift School  of  Dentistry
Mauritz  A.  Mortenson MMF Gift Masonic  Cancer  Center
Minnesota  Veterinary  Medical  Foundation UMF Gift College  of  Veterinary  Medicine

National  Wild  Turkey  Federation  
Incorporated

UM Gift 4H  Foundation

Norwood  T.  Teague UMF Pledge Department  of  Intercollegiate  Athletics

P.  and  D.  Kahn  Philanthropic  Fund-‐Jewish  
Community  Fund

UMF Gift College  of  Science  and  Engineering
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$5,000  -‐  $10,000
Patrick  T.  Fortunato UMF Gift Department  of  Intercollegiate  Athletics

Renaissance  Charitable  Foundation  
Incorporated

MMF Gift Scholarships

Richard  and  Jaci  Lindstrom  Foundation MMF Gift Ophthalmology

Sinclair  Winton UM Gift Minnesota  Landscape  Arboretum
Stephens  Instruments MMF Gift Ophthalmology
Tankenoff  Families  Foundation MMF Gift Ophthalmology
Thomas  G.  and  Nancy  C.  Wallrich UMF Gift College  of  Liberal  Arts
William  A.  and  Diane  B.  Hansen UMF Gift College  of  Liberal  Arts
William  N.  and  Joanne  L.  Blatt UMF Gift College  of  Science  and  Engineering

Willmus  Family  Charitable  Trust UMF Gift College  of  Veterinary  Medicine
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UNIVERSITY OF MINNESOTA 
BOARD OF REGENTS 

 
 
Board of Regents December 14, 2012 
 
 
Agenda Item:   Report of the Student Representatives to the Board of Regents 
 

  review   review/action   action   discussion 
 
 
Presenters: Meghan Mason, Vice Chair, Student Representatives to the Board of Regents

 
 
Purpose: 
 

 policy   background/context  oversight   strategic positioning 
 
The Report of the Student Representatives to the Board of Regents provides the student 
perspective on issues and concerns facing University students.
 
 
Outline of Key Points/Policy Issues: 
 
The Report will discuss and make recommendations regarding the following issues: 
 

• Undergraduate finances and shrinking lower and middle class representation 
 

• Graduate student unionization concerns  
 

• Student mental health 
 

A report from the campus student governance organizations is also included in the docket 
materials. 
 
Background Information: 
 
Board of Regents Policy:  Student Representatives to the Board of Regents allows the Student 
Representatives to the Board of Regents, with consent of the Executive Director, to make a 
report to the Board each semester.     
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Fall 2012 Semester Report of the Student Representatives to the  
University of Minnesota Board of Regents 

 
The 2012 Student Representatives to the Board of Regents discussed a range of topics for this 
semester’s report ranging from the role of athletics at a Big Ten institution, the prospect of the 
Twin Cities becoming a smoke-free campus, and the impact on public safety that the new light 
rail line through campus might present. Ultimately, the group decided that there were unique 
concerns of both the undergraduate and graduate students that warranted their own attention, as 
well as one joint item to bring to the attention of the Board. The following report therefore 
highlights the issues of undergraduate finances and the shrinking representation of lower and 
middle classes, the graduate student experiences that likely contributed to the unionization effort 
last year, and the increased use of student mental health resources at the University of 
Minnesota.   
 
1. Undergraduate Finances and Shrinking Lower and Middle Class Representation 

Background:  
The University of Minnesota has always served an important role as an educator, 

employer, and more in the state of Minnesota. As a public University incorporated for service to 
society at large, the University of Minnesota is “dedicated...to the application of...knowledge to 
benefit the people of the state, the nation, and the world.” It is guided by a consideration of 
community problems and changing environments and is committed to serving the many 
communities of the state1. It is clear that the people of the University have always tried to ensure 
and guarantee the healthy, representativeness, and academic prowess of the University. 
However, changes in society over the past decade such as increased financial pressures and 
greater academic competition worldwide have altered the demographics of the undergraduate 
student body at the University of Minnesota. Of gravest concern to the Student Representatives 
is the shrinking proportion of students from lower and middle income backgrounds; the exact 
population that land-grant universities were intended to educate.  
 
Table 1: Twin Cities Undergraduates’ Household Income Ranges, as a Percent of the 
University Undergraduate Population 2001-20112 
 
 2001 2011 Change 
$0-30,000 24% 20% -4% 
$30,001-48,000 14% 8% -6% 
$48,001-75,000 21% 12% -9% 
$75,001-110,000 18% 16% -2% 
>$110,000 9% 23% 14% 
Unknown 14% 21% 7% 
 

                                                
1 The University of Minnesota’s Mission Statement, Available at the Board of Regents Website 
2 According to “University of Minnesota TC Undergraduates Household Income Ranges” chart provided by the 
Office of Undergraduate Education and the Office of Student Finance. 

Note: Effort was made to attempt to generate 
inflation-adjusted ranges, but unfortunately the 
request for such information would not have 
been completed until after this publication. 
 
Note: Although this information does not 
reflect coordinate campus information, there is 
concern that it represents a University-wide 
trend. 
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 Table 1 documents the change in the proportion of the student body by household income 
range over the past decade.  While it is tempting to assume that overall household income has 
increased over the past ten years, resulting in a greater proportion of students from households 
that make more than $110,000 annually, we submit that the costs of attending the University of 
Minnesota are beginning to require higher household contributions. Lower and middle income 
classes constituted 75-85% of the population of Minnesota in 20113, yet made up only 56% of 
the undergraduate student body. This discrepancy was not apparent in 2001 when 77% of the 
University of Minnesota student body was from lower and middle household income ranges. 
Moreover, it is suspected that the proportion of students from the highest household income 
range is actually larger than the 23% depicted in Table 1. Those students in the “Unknown” 
category did not fill out the Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA). In conversations 
with the Office of Student Finance it was speculated that the only students that do not submit 
FAFSAs are either international students or from families with incomes above federal aid cut-
offs. The international student population was 20.5%3 in 2011, making it likely that most who 
did not report were international students, but nonetheless representing students for whom 
federal financial assistance was not necessary.  
 
Reasons for Changing Demographics:  
 The first possible explanation for the changing student body income backgrounds is the 
societal shift in income generation among Minnesota households. According to State Department 
census data, those making above $110,000 in 2000 have seen two to three times higher income 
growth rates as compared with those making less than that4. Yet, households in the $110,001+ 
income range in Minnesota still make up only 17-18% of the state’s population, suggesting that 
23% of the student body coming from these households is not fully explained by these societal 
trends5. 
 A second possible explanation is that the University of Minnesota has become a more 
selective and competitive institution over the past decade. Applications in 2012 hit over 38,0006 
for Twin Cities alone, with thousands more for coordinate campuses. In the past decade, these 
numbers have increased by about 250%. In 2012, offers were made to about 19,000 applicants 
(half of those who applied), and about 5,500 of those students enrolled. In 2002, just 10 years 
earlier, 11,000 students were offered a place at Minnesota (over 2/3 of those who applied), and 
about 5,200 enrolled. Attractive student applications may correlate with students from higher 
income backgrounds, thereby increasing the proportion of the student body from these income 
ranges.   

The last, and most concerning explanation for the difference in student body 
demographics, is the cost of attendance for undergraduate students. Admissions surveys among 
matriculating students at the University of Minnesota found that students chose to enroll not only 
because of the esteemed academic programs and faculty, but also due to financial 
considerations7. We speculate that the University of Minnesota was more affordable for in-state 
students than some of other schools to which they gained acceptance. The concerning statistic is 
that 50% of non-matriculating students said that one thing that could have brought them to the 

                                                
3 2012 University Plan, Performance, and Accountability Report, by the Provost’s Office 
4 Income Distribution Trends in Minnesota, at Department of State, by Minnesota State Demographic Center 
5 Minnesota Income Data, at City Data, from U.S. Census Bureau 
6 2012 University Plan, Performance, and Accountability Report, by the Provost’s Office 
7 According to a study conducted by the Office of Undergraduate Admissions, relayed to Representatives 
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University of Minnesota would have been more financial aid. This suggests that for about 9,500 
admitted students annually, the cost of attendance at the University is a significant factor in their 
decision to not attend the University.  
 
Cost of Attendance at the University of Minnesota: 
 Arguably, cost of attendance has always been an important factor for students when 
deciding to enroll at a college or university, but in the past decade, the rate of tuition increases 
has been much more rapid than inflation. Such increases may be putting the University out of 
reach for students from lower and middle income backgrounds. Within the Big Ten schools, the 
University of Minnesota is the fourth highest for resident tuition behind the University of 
Michigan, University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign, and the Pennsylvania State University8. 
For non-resident tuition, the University of Minnesota is actually the lowest in the Big Ten, 
perhaps bringing students from higher income backgrounds to the University and away from 
their respective state universities. 
 
Table 2: University of Minnesota Undergraduate Tuition Rates and Change between 2002-
2003 and 2012-20139 
 
 2002-2003 2012-2013 Change 
Twin Cities - Resident  $   7,482.91   $  12,060.00  61.17% 
Twin Cities – Non-Resident  $ 21,314.53   $  17,310.00  -18.79% 
Duluth - Resident  $   7,698.77   $  11,720.00  52.23% 
Duluth – Non-Resident  $ 21,118.30   $  14,385.00  -31.88% 
Morris - All  $   8,740.09   $  11,720.00  34.09% 
Crookston - All  $   6,279.37   $  10,030.00  59.73% 
Rochester - All  N/A   $  11,720.00  N/A 
 
 We recognize that the decreased state funding is likely a significant contributor to the 
increased resident tuition rates at the University, but that this trend is constant across Big Ten 
schools. But, we do want to draw your attention to the personal financial burden undergraduate 
education at the University of Minnesota appears to have on the student body. On the Twin 
Cities campus, in the past ten years, the percentage of students with debt increased from 58% to 
64%10. The average loan debt for graduates (including PLUS parent loans), inflation adjusted, 
increased by 20.7% to $32,326. It does appear that more students are receiving financial 
assistance for their education with 82% of enrolled students receiving support in the form of a 
combination of financial aid or loan support, up 11 percentage points from a decade ago. Total 
financial aid dispersed by the University has also increased 14%, adjusted for inflation, to over 
$345 million. These figures demonstrate the fact that more and more students are requiring more 
and more help to pay for their education at the University. Of note, this trend is constant across 
all campuses. Lawmakers in California proposed a bill in their last session and plan to pursue it 
again to help alleviate the burden placed on the middle class. The Middle Class Scholarship Act 
would end a tax break for out-of-state companies that do business in California, with the 

                                                
8 2012-2013 Academic Year Tuition and Required Fees at Public Big Ten Universities, by University of Wisconsin 
9 University of Minnesota Annual Tuition Rates, by the Office of Institutional Research 
10 Student Financial Support Years 2003-2012, by the Office of Institutional Research 

Note: The 2002-2003 
column shows inflation-
adjusted figures, so the 
percent change column 
shows a pure tuition 
increase. 
 
Note: Rochester did not 
open until fall 2009. Tuition 
at that time was $10,030. 
From then to now, tuition 
rose 16.8%. 
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resulting $1 billion in revenue going toward scholarships for public college students whose 
families earn less than $150,000 a year11. 
 
Benefits of the Increased Attendance Costs: 
 While we believe that the costs of attending the University of Minnesota should be kept 
as stable as possible, higher costs do offer some productivity benefits. More students than ever 
are graduating on time, the average number of credits taken each semester has been increasing, 
suggesting that without more money to continue longer, students are obtaining their degrees 
faster. Students are also increasingly taking jobs while in school, possibly gaining perspective on 
how to manage their finances that will facilitate their loan repayments in the future. 
 
Public versus Private Good: 
 An important aspect of the discussion on the increased cost of attendance at the 
University of Minnesota is the topic of public vs. private good. From both the undergraduate and 
graduate/professional student perspective, the degrees they obtain provide both a public and 
private good. As Minnesota surely models, increased education is highly correlated with 
increased income and standards of living. Minnesota, for example, has the 11th highest average 
income in the nation at just under $57,000 per year. It is also the 10th most educated state; 32.4% 
of residents have a bachelor’s degree or higher, and 10.5% have graduate or professional 
degrees. It also has the 11th lowest poverty rate, at 11.9%. In addition, investment in the 
University yields 13-times output for the state economy12. Clearly, there are strong ties between 
education and socio-economic status, and clearly institutions like the University contribute 
significantly to the public good and the state’s economy. 
 However, at what point does a state school degree endanger the future public good? If the 
University educates many of the state’s future leaders and workers, and the University relies on 
state support of education, then the University must ensure that its graduates can pay for the debt 
they are undertaking. Otherwise, the future of the state’s economy and return on educational 
investment is at risk. Currently, the average college graduate makes $41,000, starting13. If the 
average loan debt for our students is more than $30,000, the Office for Student Finance suggests 
they should make at least $43,20014 in order to afford to pay off those loans. As it stands now, 
our graduates, on average, may already be behind.  
 

Recommendations: 
1.   Continue to support the freeze on in-state undergraduate education because of the 

land-grant mission of the University of Minnesota.  
2.   Foster greater state, federal, and private financial support for non-loan-based aid 

for students in lower and middle household annual income ranges. This will assist 
in making the makeup of the student body more compatible with the makeup of 
the State of Minnesota.  

                                                
11 San Francisco Examiner March 15, 2012, Middle class being squeezed by tuition  
12 2012 University Plan, Performance, and Accountability Report, by the Provost’s Office 
13 Class of 2011 Scores Higher-paying Jobs, by Blake Ellis at CNN Money.  
14 According to “Estimated Minimum Salary Required for Loan Payment” table provided by the Office of 
Undergraduate Education and the Office of Student Finance. 
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3.   Engage in continued dialogue about the public and private good of a student’s 
degree from a land-grant university, particularly with legislators.  

 
2. Addressing Graduate Student Unionization Concerns 

In an effort to move beyond the graduate student unionization vote last year, the graduate 
student representatives to the Board of Regents wanted to address the underlying graduate 
student concerns that gave rise to the unionization push. The student representatives conducted 
an electronic, open-ended survey to solicit responses from the graduate and professional student 
body about their graduate student experience. Over 1,000 responses were received with 450 
answering essay questions relevant to this section of the report. 

 
Advising:  

Students’ sentiments about academic advising generally fell into one of three categories: 
first, their adviser was excellent and there was a positive adviser-advisee relationship, second, 
that their adviser was inaccessible to their student, and third, that there was unresolved conflict 
between students and their advisers. For the first group, the concern was that faculty did not get 
compensated for their advising time, particularly when the faculty are taking extra time and care 
with their students. The second group cited difficulties in contacting their adviser, and that their 
adviser had little interest in maintaining a regular dialogue about the students’ academic 
progress. Of the gravest concern is the dissatisfaction students had with their advisers and the 
inability to resolve conflicts in confidence. Some students were aware of the Student Conflict 
Resolution Center services but expressed a desire for a protocol of who to contact about tenuous 
situations with their adviser and difficulties in changing advisers in the event that disputes are 
irresolvable or research interests diverge between the adviser and advisee.  

Recommendations: 
1. Advising should be considered as part of the promotion and tenure process in the 

way that other service to the University community is incorporated.  
2. A consistent protocol for the resolution of adviser/advisee conflicts should be 

followed across all departments.  
3. Like course evaluations, a means for students to provide feedback on their 

advisers is warranted.  
  

Assistantships:  
As with advising, students had conflicting opinions on their experience with 

assistantships and corresponding benefits and workload. While students appreciated the 
healthcare benefits for dependents, others feared that the rise in fringe benefits caused faculty to 
hire more undergraduate student workers than pay for a graduate assistantship. Students also 
noted that assistantships were more difficult to obtain than they had originally been portrayed 
and that the positions were often reserved for ‘particular’ individuals. The overall graduate 
assistantship compensation was not a major concern as the University has some of the highest 
wages among the CIC schools, but that discrepancies in the hours worked, and the pay per hour 
were prevalent across departments. The majority of students did explain that the 20 hour per 
week assistantship is rare, and that most students work 2-4 times that much, particularly when 
the student’s research for their degree is integrated with the source of their assistantship funding. 
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 Recommendations: 
1. Create a transparent process for the application and hiring of graduate assistants 

across the University.  
2. Provide a mechanism for graduate assistants to address the imbalance of workload 

and compensation in a specific Board of Regent’s policy for graduate assistants 
similar to the “Conflict Resolution for Employees” policy, but provides 
consistency in the handling of student grievances across departments.  

3. Include the College Fee to be covered by assistantships. 
 
Progress toward degree:  

Of particular concern to the graduate representatives to the Board of Regents were 
comments surrounding students’ progress toward degree. While the following statements have 
elements of mental health, adviser/advisee relationships, and assistantships at their core, they 
warranted a specific section. Students have noted that there is complacency about delaying a 
student’s progress on a degree for reasons such as the inability to contact advisers and committee 
members to sign forms as well as excessive workloads associated with research and teaching 
assistantships.  

Another element possibly preventing students from making adequate progress toward 
their degree is harassment from their advisor, other professor, and colleagues. The Student 
Conflict Resolution Center has conducted a series of surveys on harassment during students’ 
graduate program. The values below are from the 2011 iteration of the survey. While we are 
concerned about the number of students who have experienced harassment during their graduate 
program (17%) or witnessed others being harassed (16%), the shocking statistic is that 18% of 
students of those in either category considered leaving the University as a direct result of that 
harassment. It can be supposed that any additional barriers to sufficient degree progress such as 
those mentioned above, in addition to individual or bystander harassment would increase the 
likelihood of a student not completing their graduate education at the University of Minnesota. 

The University of Minnesota should be preparing the next generation of researchers, 
educators, and professionals through its graduate and professional programs. If students are 
unable to attain their degree in a timely manner, then their opportunities are being given to 
graduates of other institutions. Moreover, the desire to attend the University of Minnesota will 
diminish if alumni do not feel that they received a quality education and graduated within a 
reasonable window of time.  
 Recommendations: 

1. Conduct a “leavers” study to determine why students have left the University 
during their graduate or professional education.  

2. Make more paperwork electronically submitted to the Graduate School or the 
department depending on the degree requirements. 

 
3. Students Seeking Mental Health Resources Increase in Number 

Statistics provided below were generously provided by Boynton Health Services (BHS), 
and UMD Health Services. The BHS data came from their annual student health survey as well 
as internal data about students accessing services. Statistics regarding UMD Health Services 
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came from their 2010-2011 Health Services Fact Sheet. While these statistics describe the Twin 
Cities Campus and the Duluth Campus, similar findings and trends can be found on the other 
coordinate campuses. 

• 26.8% of all students cite having unmanaged stress at any given time in the semester 
• 10.8% of male students and 14.8% of female students are clinically depressed at any 

given time in the semester 
• 1 in 10 students seriously considered suicide, and 0.6% attempted to do so last year; with 

65,000 students across all campuses, that’s 390 attempts annually 
• 17% of graduate students report experiencing harassment during their graduate program, 

16% of graduate students have witnessed harassment of others, and 18% of students have 
considered leaving their program specifically due to harassment 

 
Access:  

The biggest struggle for students to access services is the 4 week waiting list at BHS. Triage 
is done to ensure that the most serious cases receive care, but it is always best to see students 
with mental health concerns as soon as possible. This year, there is also a 2-4 week waiting list 
for students to seek services from the University Counseling and Consulting Services (UCCS). 
This service used to be focused on academic and career counseling, but now seen a greater 
demand for psychological counseling services.  

An additional access concern is the $10 fee assessed per visit in the mental health clinic at 
BHS. For the many of students, this may not be a large impediment to seeking treatment, 
particularly when the majority of cases only require 1-2 visits to resolve their concerns. 
However, for those patients that need the maximum 11 visits annually, $110 may be a burden to 
seeking adequate treatment. Assuming that these are also the most severe cases, we would not 
want to pose any barriers to students receiving proper mental health treatment. It should be noted 
that this $10 is not assessed on visits to BHS for physical health concerns. 

We are aware of the planned addition of a new $500,000 mental health clinic on the St. Paul 
campus and commend this step towards more resources and support in regards to student mental 
health. Added mental health staff has a strong potential to satisfy the increased demand for 
services as well as decrease the wait list time at BHS. This will also make services more 
accessible to students whose primary campus is Saint Paul, and not close to the East Bank Clinic. 
However, conversations with BHS have led us to believe that as increased clinical space and 
personnel is provided, additional students will seek treatment at the clinic, creating a perpetual 
need for growth. To complement the additional staff at the mental health clinic on the Saint Paul 
Campus, we encourage an evaluation of peer-to-peer counseling approaches that might offer 
additional options and benefits to student mental health. Peer-to-peer counseling approaches 
could serve to be significantly valuable on the coordinate campuses where student mental health 
support and resources are still lacking. The University of Wisconsin has implemented a program 
called SPILL (Supporting Peers in Laidback Listening) which is an online, anonymous portal for 
students to receive peer support on “college problems that everyone seems to go through”. The 
Active Minds group at the University of Minnesota Twin Cities Campus is seeking to start up a 
similar website as well.  In-person or over the phone peer counseling should also be considered if 
space is available for those resources. 
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        Recommendations: 

1.   To decrease the wait list within BHS and UCCS, look into peer-to-peer 
counseling approaches such as the SPILL initiative at the University of 
Wisconsin. 

2.   Reevaluate the need for the $10 fee for mental health services at BHS. 
 
Awareness and Public Health Model:  

BHS has a 5% annual increase in students seeking services on the Twin Cities campus. 
As reported by Health Services at UMD, counseling visits in Duluth increased 19% in the 2010-
2011 academic year alone reaching 3,070 visits. Both campuses attribute the uptick in mental 
health visits to decreased stigma associated with seeking care for mental illness and increased 
knowledge of the services provided by the respective campus health services. The Provost’s 
Committee on Student Mental Health is also in an ongoing effort to enhance the awareness of 
mental illness across campus and promote resources to students. The push towards increased 
awareness concerning mental health and wellness has been seen on the coordinate campuses, as 
well.  

Detecting mental illness is critical in providing the best mental health care for students, 
but prevention of mental illness is ideal. The BHS student health survey last year showed that 
students with mental illness had significant lower grade point averages than those without mental 
illness; as did those students who had higher numbers of stressful life events in the past year. It is 
recognized that stressful life events are not unique to the students at the University, but affect 
faculty and staff as well. These stressful life events may affect faculty and staff so much that they 
cannot adequately perform their teaching, research or service duties central to the University’s 
mission. They should not be overlooked in the discussion of mental health at the University of 
Minnesota. Fostering an environment that promotes mental health and wellness, is critical to 
students’ academic success and ensures that the University of Minnesota is an institution where 
people want to work.  
 
        Recommendations: 

1.   Continue to support the efforts of the Provost’s Committee on Student Mental 
Health to spread awareness about mental illness and ways of promoting student 
mental health 

2.   Evaluate the health and well-being of faculty and staff at the University using a 
tool similar to the BHS student health survey to identify potential mental health 
barriers to a healthy and productive university community 

 
The Student Representatives to the Board of Regents urge your thoughtful reflection of 

the report presented above. We request your consideration of our recommendations, and look 
forward to working with you to both address the concerns of the University of Minnesota student 
body as well as to highlight the strengths of the University as it compares to its peer institutions.  
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Respectfully submitted,  
 
Melissa Erlandson - Rochester 
Jesse Jennings - Crookston 
Hannah Keil - Duluth Alternate 
Kyle R. Kroll - Twin Cities 
Kevin Lang - Twin Cities Alternate 
Meghan Mason - Twin Cities, Vice Chair  

Cody Mikl - Twin Cities, Chair 
James Rook – Morris, Vice Chair 
Julia Schliesing - Twin Cities 
Mike Schmit - Twin Cities Alternate 
Molly Tomfohrde - Duluth  

 
4.   Duluth Campus Report 
 University of Minnesota Duluth Student Association (UMDSA) has been working 
diligently over the past few months. This year there was a new Vice Presidential position added: 
the Vice President of External Affairs. We also folded the previously named Student Legislative 
Coalition and our Legislative Certificate Program under External Affairs. This group has started 
gathering names for a “Put the Public Back in Public Education” petition that will be sent to 
legislators urging them to vote for policies in favor of higher education funding. This group is 
also a member of the Minnesota Student Legislative Coalition (MSLC) and will be attending 
those meetings regularly.  

The Fund Allocation Committee (FAC) successfully met with student groups and 
allocated $60,000.00. This process was extensive and included over 30 hours of interviews and 
deliberation. The group left $5,000.00 for the spring semester for groups that are newly formed 
or did not receive funding in the fall.  

The Student Life Committee’s largest success so far this year is the complete funding and 
installment of the new maroon and gold street signs on campus. This committee has worked for 
the last five years on this initiative and has been fundraising for the last year and a half. As part 
of the Strategic Plan Goal #6, this initiative creates a “soft edge” to campus by defining the 
perimeter of “Bulldog Country” while still encouraging the community to flow into campus and 
students to venture out into the city. This committee has also finally been given the charge of 
revamping the parking situation on campus and has since formed an Ad Hoc committee to plan 
out the best course of action for a potential new parking system. They are working with 
UMDSA’s Marketing and Communications (MAC) group to create focus groups for students. 
They have also created a Facebook and Twitter page where students can voice opinions and 
concerns or ask questions to the members of the committee. Student Life is currently planning 
the fall semester charity event as well as continuing to work with the Dining Center and Food 
Services to improve the on-campus dining experience for students.  

Academic Affairs has been working on continuing to find a way to improve academic 
advising, increase library hours, increasing the textbook rental program on campus, and the 
possibility of adding majors in the curriculum. The Senators (who sit on committees for the 
University Senate) have been meeting with their Deans to gauge support for these proposed 
initiatives, and in cooperation with MAC have published a survey for students to determine what 
hours would be most beneficial for the library to be open for use. 

Bulldog Taxi has signed up 2,250 students thus far and is continuing to operate on a 
24/7/365 schedule for students. Better Neighbors has continued their BBQ sponsorship program 
this year to encourage college students to introduce themselves to their neighbors and initiate a 
dialogue. Better Neighbors has also collaborated with the College of Saint Scholastica to put on a 
Renter’s Rights panel and is in the works on creating an “Ask a Cop” session. These events 
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encourage students to ask questions on anything that they might have in an open and respectful 
environment.  

 
5.   Morris Campus Report 

The Morris Campus Student Association has had a busy first semester so far this year. Here 
are a few of the things we have done: 

• Sustainability Officers – Two students were chosen through an application process to be 
our new Sustainability Officers. They are working hard on overall sustainability efforts, 
collaborating with faculty and other student groups to best increase our involvement in 
green actions.  

• Student Org Representatives - This year was a brand new year in terms of opening up 
Forum to Student Organization Reps. Through an application process that was left by the 
wayside in earlier years to be advertised, we now have 8 new members that represent 
multiple different organizations and groups on campus.  

• Opposition of the Voter ID Amendment - MCSA as a body, formally opposed the Voter 
ID Amendment - matching its opposition of the Marriage Amendment from last Spring.  

• Mental Health Awareness Week - Through the hard work and dedication of Forum 
Members, among many others, the stigma of mental health was stamped out. One of the 
biggest displays of that week was 1,100 pairs of shoes that were put out on the Mall to 
represent the number of student suicides that are committed each year.  

• Composting in Dining Hall and during Homecoming- We have worked with the Green 
Team to make composting more prevalent on campus by getting separate trash bins in 
the Dining Hall and during outside Homecoming Events.  

• Initiation of the Green Reinvestment Fund- With the constant building of the Green-
Reinvestment Fund, we hope to see its completion soon, and will hopefully be able to 
start funding projects to help the Morris Campus become more sustainable. 

• Gender Neutral Housing on Campus- We are currently running our own task force and 
working with Queer Issues Committee to move the campus to having more gender 
neutral housing options. 

• Composting in Dorms, TMC, and Community Meals- As part of our overall composting 
project, we are moving to put different bins in the TMC, dorms, and Community Meals. 

• Resource Allocation Review- We will be pushing for student’s voices in the campus-
wide resource review.  

• Gender Neutral Bathrooms- Help to work with the Queer Issues Committee and the 
planning Committee to make more gender neutral bathrooms available on campus. 

• GenEd Discussion with Campus - The Academic Affairs Committee is planning to hold 
a General Education Discussion to understand the overall student feeling towards the 
system and to brainstorm ideas on how to improve it overall.  

• Off-Campus Housing Interface- We will hopefully be moving to make an interactive list 
of available off-campus housing to help students living on campus find first time housing 
away from the dorms. 

 
6.   Twin Cities Campus Report 
 This fall, students have made many contributions to the University of Minnesota’s 
tradition of excellence. One of the most discernible trends from this semester is an increasingly 
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engaged student body. In this year’s election, many students were involved in campaigns that 
advocated for and against the two amendments on the state ballot. Their advertising and 
advocacy efforts played a significant role in increasing student voter turnout by about 6%, one of 
the largest increases in the state. In addition, there is a growing consciousness of policy changes 
at the University level, partly due to a joint effort by the Minnesota Student Association and 
Graduate and Professional Student Assembly to increase student engagement within both groups. 
The Minnesota Student Association has nearly tripled its size this year alone. One area of recent 
interest amongst students is the university’s policy regarding the use of tobacco on campus. 
Already, both student governments have expressed interest in exploring the idea further, and a 
grassroots effort to raise awareness of the issue is well under way. 
 Students have found ways besides campus politics to become more involved as well 
which is reflected by the continued rapid increase in the number of registered student groups on 
campus, a number which peaked at just over 900 earlier this fall. Homecoming events saw large 
participation rates, with sellout crowds at both the Friday night concert and football game the 
following day. A movement to build a stronger campus community has been seeing increased 
support in the past few months, an effort that is being spearheaded by a student driven initiative 
to raise money for the construction of a Goldy Gopher statue in front of Coffman Memorial 
Union.  
 Some other highlights from this fall include the continued recruitment of top academic 
talent, the successful addition of alcohol sales at football games, and the widespread approval of 
President Kaler’s promise to keep tuition constant for in-state undergraduates next academic 
school year. As this fall comes to a close, students reflect on their successes from the semester 
and look toward the spring for continued improvement and development at both the personal and 
University levels. 
 
7.  Crookston Campus Report 
 The University of Minnesota, Crookston (UMC) campus has undergone quite a change to 
start the year. With arrival of a brand new Chancellor, Dr. Fred Wood, had his first day of work 
on July 1st. All of the students arrived to a brand new remodeled Eagles Nest and there was quite 
a jolt of excitement with the addition of not only an Erbert’s & Gerbert’s, but also a Caribou 
Coffee. This was a huge step for the Crookston campus, making it the first two food 
establishments to set up shop in the UMC community.  There was also a buzz of anticipation 
with the breaking ground of a new residence hall on campus. This building is nearing completion 
giving students the opportunity to move into the halls next semester. The name for the new 
residence hall is still undecided.  
 As for the institution, UMC was named one of the best colleges in the Midwest for the 6th 
consecutive year, according to the Princeton Review. For the 2012-2013 school year, enrollment 
is on pace for a 6th year of record enrollment, which is roughly 1,773 total undergrads. Lastly, the 
UMC campus has formed a search committee for the Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs. This 
position is number 2, right below the Chancellor. 
As for the Crookston Student Association (CSA), was challenged with the task of filling 9 open 
positions. Elections were called off this year due to the fact that exactly nine students applied. 
Lastly, CSA held the annual Santa Land on December 9th, and for the first time ever the event 
will be held on the Crookston campus in our notorious Bede Ballroom. This event is also 
receiving volunteers from many other clubs on campus.  
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UNIVERSITY OF MINNESOTA 
BOARD OF REGENTS 

 
 
Board of Regents December 14, 2012 
 
 
Agenda Item:   Board of Regents Policy:  Board Operations and Agenda Guidelines 
 

  review   review/action   action   discussion 
 
 
Presenters: Regent Linda Cohen 

 
 
 
Purpose: 
 

 policy   background/context  oversight   strategic positioning 
 
To consider proposed amendments to Board of Regents Policy: Board Operations and Agenda 
Guidelines.
 
 
Outline of Key Points/Policy Issues: 
 
The proposed amendments update portfolios of responsibility for the Board’s committees and 
seek to articulate areas of governance oversight; clarify how work plans and agendas are 
developed, and update the duties and responsibilities of the executive director. 
 
Significant changes include: 
 

1. Moving student affairs issues from Faculty, Staff, and Student Affairs to Educational 
Planning and Policy and renaming both committees. 

 
2. Moving operations from Finance and Operations to Facilities and renaming both 

committees. (Note: The Finance Committee would continue to have primary 
responsibility for oversight of the current Enterprise Systems Upgrade Project as 
outlined in the authorizing resolution adopted by the Board in July 2012.) 

 
3. Delineating oversight responsibility for areas such as technology; public safety; 

academic medicine; enrollment and demographic trends; e-Learning; public 
engagement; international partnerships and education; senior leader compensation, 
benchmarking, and terms of employment; employee engagement; long range financial 
planning; and the University's financial relationship with clinical operations and 
external entities (e.g. UMP and Fairview).
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February 10, 2012  

Supersedes:  (see end of policy)

DRAFT for action December 14, 2012

Page 1 of 12

 BOARD OPERATIONS AND AGENDA GUIDELINES

SECTION I.  PRINCIPLES OF BOARD OPERATIONS.

 The Board of Regents (Board), created under the Minnesota Territorial Laws of 1851 

by the passage of the University charter and perpetuated by the Constitution of the State 

of Minnesota, is the governing body of the University.  The Board, guided by the laws and 

constitution of the state:   

 of the University;

 by trust and openness.            

agenda guidelines.    

SECTION II.  BOARD OPERATIONS.

 Subd. 1.  Governing Documents.  The Board exercises its authority consistent with 

the University Charter, the Constitution of the State of Minnesota, the Board of Regents 

conduct of the business of the Board.  

 Subd. 2.  Board Business.  

 

  research, and outreach functions of the University.  The Plan publicly
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Board policies.

    

 (c) Reports on federal and legislative relations and issues.

      

. 

 

 (h) Gifts.
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, 

 and Minnesota Medical Foundation, 

 with the president and vice chair.  

 

 Subd. 3.  Committees.  

act on consent reports 

 authority to itself as outlined in Board of Regents Policy: Reservation and   
 Delegation of Authority and other Board policies;

Board policies;

local, regional, and national

consultation with the president and the Board vice chair.   

(a)  Responsibilities of Committee Chairs.  

 The 

 

(b)  Committee Descriptions.  

  

(1)  Audit Committee.  

of 
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 .  

independent auditor and internal auditors.  

 audit of the University 

 ; 

  budget; and 

 cCharter.

 report, prior to issuance; 

 periodic  reports   

 ; 
controller reports of the controller;

  regarding audit issues, reports on 

   enterprise  and     

  

in Board of Regents Policy: Audit Committee Charter.

(2)  Educational Planning and Policy Academic and Student Affairs  

Committee.  The  

and external 

 

revisions, or discontinuations ;

                                  Page 4 of 12
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rates and certain fees policy; 

also receives reports on provides governance oversight to:  

 

student affairs;

  raised by external accreditation agencies.  

international partnerships and education; and 

intercollegiate athletics.  

(3)  Facilities and Operations Committee.  The Facilities  

and operations

use of existing facilities and infrastructure; oversees policy related to technology, operations 

and

 

  capital budget.

  

 

long range physical asset planning strategies;

technology infrastructure and long range planning; and

reviews:

reviews

 reports; 

                               Page 5 of 12
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receives

  

reviews

reviews

  construction contracts, consistent with Board policies.

 (4)  Faculty, Staff, and Student Affairs Committee and Staff Affairs 

Committee.  The Faculty   

 faculty, and 

staff, including 

 

conditions personnel 

 leaders;  

  approval of  personnel  

  , consistent with Board policy; and

reviews provides governance oversight to:

policy as well as other policies related to 

; and

 professional staff; 

(5)  Finance and Operations Committee.  The Finance 

condition.   

the University operating budget;

                                 Page 6 of 12
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.; and

 Policy:  Purchasing;

  

(6)  Litigation Review Committee.  The Litigation Review  

 is to reviews s legal advice regarding 

for review or approval. 

(7)  Nominating Committee.  

   

(8)  Presidential Performance Review Committee.  The  Presidential 

(9)  Special Committees.  
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 Subd. 4.  Board Meetings.  

the Board  to plan, to a 

 priorities

 Subd. 5.  Committee Meetings.    

 

, Staff, and Student and Staff

 Subd. 6.  Meeting Procedures.  

                             Page 8 of 12
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., as  

   allowed by Board policy or under special 

  

  

 

 Subd. 7.  Workplans Work Plans.   the Board outlines its priorities and 

  with the advice of the president or delegate. 

 Subd. 8.  Staff Responsibilities.    

(a)  Administrative Staff.   leader 

 

 

 

, for University Services 

, Staff, and Student and Staff , for

  Resources

                              Page 9 of 12
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(b)  Board Staff.  

duties and responsibilities include: 

  leadership, to advance good governance practices;

acting as a liaison between the Board and senior leaders of the University;

 Board

the the

the Board of Regents Calendar; and providing to the Board

  

  

  Board policies;

 

 Subd. 9.  Docket.  
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 Subd. 10.  Emergency Approvals.  

Board, consistent with Board policy.  

SECTION III.  BOARD MEETING AGENDAS.

 Subd. 1.  Agenda Development.  

nior  leaders priorities, and

Following this 

to an approved and, in 

tee chair directly or through staff.    

 Subd. 2.  Requests to Appear Before the Board.  

SECTION IV.  BOARD OF REGENTS CALENDAR.

 

routinely

reviewed annually      

SECTION IV .  PRESIDENTIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW, EVALUATION, AND 

COMPENSATION.

 Subd. 1.  Presidential Performance Review.  

Page 11 of 12
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 Subd. 2.  Presidential Compensation.  

  individual who can achieve excellence for the University and 

  contribute to the vitality of the state of Minnesota

  

 
SUPERSEDES:  BOARD OPERATION AND AGENDA GUIDELINES ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 11, 1992, LAST AMENDED MARCH 8, 1996.  

    Page 12 of 12
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UNIVERSITY OF MINNESOTA 
BOARD OF REGENTS 

 
 
Board of Regents December 14, 2012 
 
Agenda Item:   2013 State Capital Budget Request  
 

  review   review/action   action   discussion 
 
Presenters: President Eric W. Kaler  

Vice President/CFO Richard Pfutzenreuter 
Vice President Pamela Wheelock 

 
Purpose: 
 

 policy   background/context  oversight   strategic positioning 
 
Board of Regents Policy:  Board Operations and Agenda Guideline requires the Board to 
approve the University’s legislative capital request before it is submitted for consideration by 
the Governor and Legislature.
 
Outline of Key Points/Policy Issues: 
 
The 2013 state capital budget request (capital request) is built around the University’s 
previously expressed priorities.  The 2013 request includes funding for Higher Education Asset 
Preservation and Renewal (HEAPR), Eddy Hall, design funds for the Tate Laboratory 
renovation project and St. Paul Laboratory Replacement project, the Crookston Wellness 
Center, Research Laboratory Improvement projects and Classroom Renewal projects.   
 
The 2013 capital request is built upon a combination of funds appropriated by the State of 
Minnesota ($172.7 million) and the University of Minnesota ($23.8 million).  The total cost of 
the capital plan is $196.5 million. 
 
The administration will outline individual project costs, highlight required University 
contributions to each project, identify the scope of debt financing to meet the required share of 
each capital project, and outline the incremental facility operating costs associated with each 
project.   
 
Background Information: 
 
In October 2011, the Board of Regents approved the Eddy Hall project as part of the 2012 
State Capital Budget Request.  
 
In March 2012, the Board of Regents approved the 2012 Six Year Capital Plan for Fiscal Years 
2013-18.  The projects in the 2013 capital request were included in the approved Six-Year 
Capital Plan for funding in future years.  
 
President's Recommendation for Action: 
 
The President recommends approval of the University’s State Capital Budget Request for the 
2013 legislative session.  
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REGENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY OF MINNESOTA 
 

RESOLUTION RELATED TO 
 

2013 STATE CAPITAL BUDGET REQUEST 
 

 
WHEREAS,  the Board of Regents has directed the administration to 

annually submit a capital improvement budget and a six-year capital 
improvement plan in support of the University’s strategic priorities; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Regents recognizes the importance of 

sustaining and improving the University’s facilities in support of teaching, 
research, and outreach; and 

 
WHEREAS, the administration has developed a capital planning 

framework designed to focus its capital planning efforts toward projects that 
support the University’s institutional priorities within a financial strategy 
that is realistic 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Regents 

approves the University’s 2013 State Capital Budget Request to the 
Minnesota Legislature in the amount of $196,500,000 consisting of 
$172,700,000 from the State of Minnesota and $23,800,000 from the 
University of Minnesota. 
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2013 State Capital Budget Request 

Page	  1	  of	  3 
 

 

Project List: 

Campus Project Request 
(in 000’s) 

SYSTEM Higher Education Asset Preservation & Replacement 
(HEAPR) 

 $125,000  

UMTC Eddy Hall Renovation  $14,500  

UMTC Design: St. Paul Campus Laboratory Replacement   $6,000  

UMTC Design: Tate Laboratory Renovation   $9,000  

UMC Campus Wellness Center  $18,000  

SYSTEM Research Laboratory Improvement Fund  $12,000  

SYSTEM Active Learning Classroom Fund  $12,000  

   

 Total: $196,500 

 
 
 
Project Summaries: 
 
Higher Education Asset Preservation and Replacement (HEAPR)  
This request is for funds used system-wide to maximize and extend the life of the University’s 
existing physical plant.  Individual projects will fall into one of four broad categories – Health 
and Safety, Building Systems, Energy Efficiency, and Utility Infrastructure.  The system-wide 
HEAPR advisory committee makes recommendations on individual projects to the Vice 
President for University Services using data from the Facility Condition Assessment and 
Building Code Deficiency Report.  HEAPR funds do not require a one-third University funding 
match. 
 
 
Twin Cities:  Eddy Hall Renovation 
This request is for funds to rehabilitate historic Eddy Hall for the undergraduate, international 
and transfer student admissions program on the Twin Cities campus.  Located directly across 
Pleasant Street from the Office of Admissions’ Undergraduate Welcome Center in Jones Hall, 
Eddy Hall will complement the Jones Hall operations. This project will utilize Alternative 
Workplace Strategies and reduce the University’s overall facility operating costs, and 10-year 
FCA deferred renewal estimates by allowing underutilized buildings, such as Fraser Hall, to be 
decommissioned.  
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Twin Cities:  Design -- St. Paul Campus Laboratory Replacement 
This request is for funds to design a new laboratory facility on the St. Paul campus to replace 
obsolete facilities in the College of Biological Science; the College of Food, Agriculture and 
Natural Resource Sciences; and the College of Veterinary Medicine. This project will be the first 
component in the University’s St. Paul research laboratory improvement program currently 
planned for the 2014 and 2016 capital requests.   
 
 
Twin Cities:  Design -- Tate Laboratory Renovation  
This request is for funds to design a complete renovation of the Tate Laboratory building for use 
by the School of Physics and Astronomy and the School of Earth Sciences.  At nearly 200,000 
gross square feet, Tate has been the home for Physics since its construction in 1926.  In 2011 a 
new Physics and Nanotechnology lab building began construction and many of the labs currently 
found in Tate will relocate to the new building. The Physics and Nanotechnology building is 
slated to open in 2013. The existing Tate building will continue to house the Physics and 
Astronomy program as well as these programs geology, geobiology, hydrogeology, 
geochemistry, and geophysics.  Full funding for the Tate project will be sought in the 2014 
capital request.    
 
 
Crookston:  Campus Wellness Center 
This request is for funds to design, renovate and expand the existing campus wellness/ recreation 
center at the Crookston campus.  The current facility can no longer support the activities of 
students, athletes and the Crookston community as a shared-use facility.  The purpose of the 
expansion is to support the academic mission of the University by providing a supportive facility 
that enriches campus life and fosters a sense of social integration and commitment to the campus.  
The new facility is anticipated to be approximately 55,000 square feet in size, in addition to 
remodeling of associated spaces in the existing building. As a focal point for student and staff 
activity on campus, the center will provide a place to teach and learn behaviors that are 
conducive to a healthy life style.  Healthy life style choices built on the seven dimensions of 
wellness will be the common thread of programming and services offered by the Center. In the 
early phases of project design, the project is also considering integrating an admissions/ welcome 
center function, which would take advantage of proximity to the main entrance to receive 
prospective students and their families.   
 

 
System-wide: Research Laboratory Improvement Fund 
This request is for funds to improve existing research facilities system-wide.  Updated research 
facilities are critical to continuing the University’s strong record of research discoveries.   
Funding will be used to replace the University’s existing Bee research facility in the College of 
Food, Agriculture and Natural Resources Sciences (CFANS) and to replace obsolete greenhouses 
in the College of Biological Sciences. The remaining funds will be used system-wide for 
targeted, strategic investments in research laboratory space that will provide the margin-of-
excellence that is needed to attract and retain top researchers or to obtain competitively awarded 
sponsored research grants. 
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Systemwide: Active Learning Classroom Fund 
This request is for funds to be used system-wide to renovate existing classrooms. Multiple 
objectives will drive projects in this fund. First, conversion of traditional learning spaces to 
active learning classrooms is desired based on significantly improved learning outcomes. 
Second, rehabilitation of existing resources in underserved areas across the campuses are needed, 
both to meet current demand and in anticipation of future changes, such as renovation of Tate 
Laboratory of Physics, a location that currently houses large scale classrooms. Third, renovation 
of existing learning spaces with climate conditioning systems to extend use potential in warmer 
seasons is an important part of making more efficient use of campus resources.  
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Board of Regents December 14, 2012 
 
 
Agenda Item:   Annual Report on the Status of University Research                                      
 

  review   review/action   action   discussion 
 
 
Presenters: Vice President Timothy Mulcahy  

Purpose: 
 

 policy   background/context  oversight   strategic positioning 
 
To fulfill an annual obligation of accountability and an opportunity for the Vice President for 
Research to brief members of the Board of Regents about the health of the University of 
Minnesota’s research programs.
 
Outline of Key Points/Policy Issues: 
 
University of Minnesota faculty and staff competed successfully for $749.1 million in 
sponsored research awards in FY 2012. The award total was down $20 million (2.6%) from the 
total for FY 2011. As expected, awards from American Recovery and Reinvestment Act funds 
declined precipitously, netting $2.5 million in FY 2012 versus $74.2 million in FY 2011. If 
ARRA funds are excluded from the award totals, awards were actually 7.4% higher in FY2012 
than the previous year. 
 
According to the National Science Foundation R&D expenditure data for FY 2011, the 
University retained its eighth-place ranking among public research universities. Research 
expenditures topped $847 million, up 8% from the high-water mark of $786 million set the 
previous year. For reference, the average annual increase for the top 20 research universities 
in the United States was 6.8%.  Based on the 2011 year-over-year expenditure growth, the 
University ranked second among the top 20 universities. 
 
Research expenditures increased 59% from FY 2005 to FY 2011. In contrast to the previous 10-
year interval during which the University lagged its peers in growth, the nearly 60% growth 
since 2005 ranked the University sixth among the top 20 and fourth among public research 
universities in terms of portfolio growth. The growth of research expenditures among the top 
20 universities over this interval averaged 45%.  As a result of a much stronger than average 
performance since 2005, the University reclaimed two positions in the national rankings, 
improving from tenth in 2005 to eighth in 2011. All of this was accomplished during a 
frighteningly competitive economic downturn and is testimony to the strong performance by 
University faculty. 
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The Office for Technology Commercialization continued its robust performance and 
productivity in FY 2012. With two exceptions, all key performance metrics showed 
improvement over the previous fiscal year. There was an unanticipated jump in revenue 
collected from Ziagen, the anti-HIV agent used in AIDS treatments around the world. Even 
though patents on the drug in various markets continue to expire, worldwide sales were 
unexpectedly strong in FY 2012 and generated $35 million in royalties. Nevertheless, the 
Ziagen royalty stream will be exhausted in the very near future. Royalty revenue from other 
technologies totaled $10.7 million. 
 
The report will also provide a comparative analysis of performance improvements resulting 
from implementation of new policies, procedures and practices since 2005. 
 
Background Information: 
 
Each year in December, the Vice President for Research provides the Annual Research Report 
for the Board of Regents, summarizing the University’s research metrics for the past year, 
documenting the trends in research productivity and benchmarking the University’s 
performance and ranking among its peer group. 
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Board of Regents December 14, 2012 
 
 
Agenda Item:   UMD & UMR Brand Campaigns                                                                    
 

  review   review/action   action   discussion 
 
 
Presenters: Senior Vice President Robert Jones  
     Chancellor Lendley Black 
     Chancellor Stephen Lehmkuhle 
                             Chief Communications Officer Diana Harvey 
                                    
Purpose: 
 

 policy   background/context  oversight   strategic positioning 
 
The goal of the University’s Administrative Policy:  Brand Policy: Trademarks, Logos, Colors, 
and Seal is to strengthen and consolidate the public image and reputation of the University of 
Minnesota. A key to representing the University’s mission and impact successfully is the 
development and maintenance of a consistent visual and brand identity. Under the Brand 
Policy, each campus of the University has latitude to develop marketing strategies, within 
policy parameters, to convey distinctive strengths and strategic goals; honor and build on 
regional connections; and reflect unique contributions to the excellence of the University of 
Minnesota system serving students, the region, and the state. Chancellors Black and 
Lehmkuhle will highlight recent marketing campaigns developed through collaborations on 
their campuses and with enterprise-level support from University Relations. 
 
Outline of Key Points/Policy Issues: 
 
This fall, new marketing campaigns were developed through UMD and UMR that conveyed 
their distinctive attributes and strengths while also strengthening the U of M system and 
brand, Driven to Discover. Both campaigns resulted from campus-driven efforts leveraged by 
strategic, financial, and creative support from University Relations, advancing operational 
excellence goals of enhanced service, cost-effectiveness, and resource sharing.  The campaigns 
are: 
 

• University of Minnesota Duluth: Those Who Can, Duluth 
• University of Minnesota Rochester: Recoding the DNA of Learning

 

175



 
 

UNIVERSITY OF MINNESOTA 
BOARD OF REGENTS 

 
 
Board of Regents December 14, 2012 
 
 
Agenda Item:   Annual Financial Report 
 

  review   review/action   action   discussion 
 
 
Presenters: Vice President/CFO Richard Pfutzenreuter  
 Associate Vice President/Controller Michael Volna
 
 
Purpose: 
 

 policy   background/context  oversight   strategic positioning 
 
 
To present an overview of the 2012 Annual Financial Report to the Board of Regents.
 
 
Outline of Key Points/Policy Issues: 
 
The annual financial report presents the financial position and results of operations for the 
University of Minnesota and its component units for FY 2012 and FY 2011.  This presentation 
will provide the Board of Regents with an overview of the report. 
 
A copy of the FY 2012 audited financial statements is included in the docket materials.
 
 
Background Information: 
 
This report is prepared annually and discussed in detail with the Board of Regents Finance 
and Operations Committee in conformance with Board of Regents Policy: Board Operations 
and Agenda Guidelines. 
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